
AUGUST 12, 2019 - City Council Regular Meeting -  7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

a rQp`_ Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us ,     2, Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

City Council 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Martha Salcedo, Vice Mayor Appeals

Paul Akinjo
Referrals and Reports from

Commissions and Committees

Diane Lazard All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action

Jennifer Torres- O' Callaghan
Items

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City Staff
7. Adjournment

Stephen . Salvatore, City Manager Order of Discussion

Generally,, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their

Glenn- Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative, or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may
Cari James, Finance & Administrative only speak once to each item. At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Mark Meissner, Community
Development Director

Consent Calendar

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Director routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

Ryan Biedermann, Lieutenant /  discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or

Acting Chief of Police interested resident so requests,  in which case the

item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and
Michael King, Assistant Public Works considered separately.

Di rector

AUGUST 12, 2019 - Regular Meeting Agenda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the meeting.
To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, address and
number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the City Council,
please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and address. In

order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Mayor
for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may
only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material;

do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in

court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or
prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under
the Citizen' s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to the
commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have
expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called

upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from
taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item
meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathrop. ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide Web
Address: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the City
Council Page or use the URL https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ citvcouncil/ paae/ live-
stream

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop,  on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.  Supplemental

documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk' s Office.
This agenda was posted at the following locations:   City Hall, Community Center, Generations
Center, Senior Center, and " J" Street and River Islands Fire Department Offices. The meetings of

the Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or accommodations to this
meeting.   [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II]   Interested persons must request the

accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk
at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City of Lathrop City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City' s business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, AUGUST 12, 2013,

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGEN DA

PLEASE NOTE: There wi// be a C/osed Session commencina at 6; 00 p. m,  The Reau/ ar

Meetin4 wi// reconvene at 7:00 a. m., or immediate/ v fol%wina the C/ osed Session,    '

whichever is /ater,

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

3 Potential Case( s)    

1. 2. 2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54957

Title( s): City Manager, City Attorney

RECONVENE

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE

2. 2 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

August 12, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



i

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda
may do so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City
Clerk prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum.  Only those who have
submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the

conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the

California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate
action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets

stringent statutory requirements.  The City Council can,  however,  allow its

members or stafF to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to statements
made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report on

his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)).
Unless directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked

and not answered at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business
days.  ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

discussion of these items unless the Mayor,  Councilmember,  or citizen so

requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of July 8, 2019

4. 3 UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Approve Write- Off of Uncollectible Utility and Miscellaneous Accounts for
Fiscal Year ( FY) 2018/ 19

4. 4 CREATION OF A JOB DESCRIPTION FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

III GRADE 47

Adopt a Resolution to Approve the Creation of a Job Description for

Administrative Assistant III Position Grade 47

4. 5 APPROVE POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT

IMPACT FEES AND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO ACCESSORY

DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO STATE LAW

Adopt Resolution Approving a Policy to Guide Staff Interpretation of
Development Impact Fees and the Municipal Code as They Relate to
Accessory Dwelling Units to Conform to State Law

August 12, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 6 RATIFY PURCHASE OF A TELESCOPIC HANDLER

Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s Action to Purchase a Telescopic
Handler for the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works
Department, and Approve Related Budget Amendment

4. 7 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY

CONSULTING SERVICES WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING AND ASSOCIATED
ENGINEERING GROUP

Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with Dokken
Engineering for Right- of- Way Consulting Services and Amendment No.  1

for Associated Engineering Group Related to the Louise Avenue and
McKinley Avenue Intersection Capital Improvement Project PS 15- 02 and
Authorizing Related Budget Amendment

4. 8 REINSTATE A MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT AND APPROVE TASK

ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

Adopt Resolution Reinstating the Master Professional Consulting Agreement
and Approve Task Order No. 7 with Interwest Consulting Group to Provide
Continued Professional Services in the Building Division

4. 9 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- WAY AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

DEDICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH BUILDING PERMIT 19- 0218 LOCATED
AT 14226 AVON AVENUE

Adopt Resolution Accepting Dedication of Public Right- of-Way and a Public
Utility Easement for Avon Avenue Associated with Building Permit 19- 0218
Located at 14226 Avon Avenue

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM( S)

4. 10 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 3 TO THE MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT
WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC., TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION

INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT STAGE 2A

AND PHASE 1B IMPROVEMENTS

Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No.  3 to the Master Consultant

Agreement dated, July 9,  2018,  with Vali Cooper & Associates,  Inc., to

Provide Construction Management and Inspection Services for River Islands

Development Stage 2A and Phase 1B Improvements

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO

TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM AND TITLE 3, CHAPTER 3. 30

INFORMAL BIDDING OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE

CHAPTERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA UNIFORM PUBLIC
CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT

August 12, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amendment to
Title 2, Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System and Title 3, Chapter
3. 30 Informal Bidding of the Lathrop Municipal Code to Update
the Chapters in Accordance with the California Uniform Public

Construction Cost Accounting Act

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO COfVSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO

l"ITLE 3, CHAPTER 3. 32 COUNTY FACILITY FEE, SECTION 3. 32. 150 SUNSET
CLAUSE

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amendment to
Title 3,  Chapter 3. 32 County Capital Facility Fees,  Section

3. 32. 150 Sunset Clause of the Lathrop Municipal Code to
Remove the Sunset Clause of the County Facilities Fee
Program

5. 3 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE

LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT FIRE FACILITIES FEE STUDY AND THE
FEES RECOMMENDED THEREIN

Council to Consider the Following:   
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt A Resolution Adopting the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District
Fire Facilities Fee Study and the Fees Recommended Therein

5. 4 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER MUNICIPAL CODE

TEXT AMENDMENT NO. TA- 19- 78

City Council to Consider the Following:   
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amendment to
Title 17 of the Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)  by Adding
Chapter 17. 13 to Allow the Creation of Easements by
Covenant.

5. 5 APPOINTMENT OF VOTING DELEGATE FOR 2019 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA
CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Appoint City' s Voting Delegate for the 2019 League of California Cities
Annual Conference, October 16- 18, Long Beach

2.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 COUNCIL REFERRALS

6. 1. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL: Appointment of Three ( 3) Members to

the Youth Advisory Commission with Term Expiring May 31, 2020.
Three ( 3) Applications Received; Four ( 4) Vacancies Available

August 12, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Centra/ Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Akinjo/ Salcedo)
Council of Governments ( Dhaliwal/ Lazard)  ,

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste, Division ( Akinjo/ Torres-

O' Callaghan)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Torres- O' Callaghan/ Lazard)
Tri Valley- San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority ( Akinjo)
San Joaquin Area F/ood Control Agency ( Akinjo & Lazard)

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

sa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

I

August 12, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



i

i

i

I

i

8



i

I ITEM 4. 2
CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COU NCIL REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, ] ULY 8, 2019

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

i MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a C/osed Sesl ion which commenced at 6: 35 v.m. The Reaular Meefinq
reconvened at 7: 05 a. m.     

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6: 35
p. m.    

I
1. 2 CLOSED SESSION i

i
1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Expo'sure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

3 Potential C'ase( s)

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 05 p. m.

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was

provided in regards to Item 1. 2;  no other reportable action was
taken.

i
1. 3 ROLL CALL Preisent: Mayor Dhaliwal, Councilmembers: Akinjo,

Lazard and Torres- O' Callaghan

Absent: Vice Mayor Salcedo

1. 4 INVOCATION - Associate Pastor Ryan Strong, Grace Community Church,
provided the invocation.      

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Associate Pastor Ryan Strong led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided various announcements,

including an overview ; of the City' s
30t'' 

Anniversary event and the debut
of the City' s new website both on July 1,  2019;  announced closed

captioning features to I be made available in the near future for televised
public meetings;  and a brief overview of the information related to the  _

July 8, 2019 Lathrop Gity Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



i
city' s emergency preparedness plan to be provided during Item 2. 4.
Mayor Dhaliwal recognized and welcomed Sheriff Pat Withrow.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL

ITEi(
S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

Councilmember Lazard declared a conflict of interest on Items 4. 15, 4. 16

and 4. 17, due to her employment with Dell' Osso Family Farms.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

i
2. 1 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO THE LATHROP LITTLE LEAGUE MINOR

PHILLIES FOR THE 2019 MINOR LEAGUE CALIFORNIA DISTRICT 67

TOURNAMENT OF CHAMPIONS VICTORY

Mayor Dhaliwal introduced the item and welcomed the Lathrop Little
League Minor Phillies.  Coach Logan Orndoff provided an overview of the

2019 Lathrop Little League season and thanked all the coaches, parents,
volunteers and players involved during the season.  Parks and Recreation

Director Zach Jonesl,   accompanied by the City Council,   presented

Certificates of Recognition to the members of the Lathrop Little League
Minor Phillies for the 2019 Minor League California District 67 Tournament
of Champions victory.

2. 2 PROCLAMATION DECIARING JULY AS PARKS MAKE LIFE BETTER MONTH

Councilmember Akinjo presented a proclamation declaring July 2019 as
Parks Makes Life Better Month to Parks and Recreation Director Zach
Jones. 

I

2. 3 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEE:

Parks and Recreation Director Zach ] ones introduced Breann Loughran,
Recreation Coordinator.

i    `

2. 4 PRESENTATION PROVIDED BY PG& E ON,  PUBLIC  . SAFETY DURING
PLANNED POWER OUTAGES

City Manager Stephen Salvatore introduced the item and explained that
city staff would be  providing an introductory presentation related to
emergency preparedn; ess prior to the PG& E presentation. Deputy Finance
Director Vanessa Portillo and Lathrop- Manteca Fire District ( LMFD) Chief

Gene Neely provided ian overview of the City' s emergency preparedness
plan,  development of the city' s incident response team and command
system, partnership with local agencies to provide essential services, and
provided information  related to frequently asked questions during an
extended power outage.

i

July 8, 2019 Lathrop_ City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



i

A question and answer period ensued throughout the stafF presentation.

City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional information.  During
the question and answer period,  the City Council reached consensus
directing the City Manager to br,ing back an actionable item for Council
ratification of a purchase of a generator for the Lathrop Community
Center, the purchase wo,uld be in preparation for the anticipated extended
power outages.  The question and answer period continued.  Fire Chief

Neely encouraged Lathrop residents that require power for medical

devices to register with the LMFD for assistance during an extended
outage.  The question and answer period continued.  Councilmembers

expressed interest in Ij earing from the Manteca and Banta School Districts
on their emergency p' ans for students and directed staff to contact each
District.       

i

Public Affairs Representative Dylan George,  Pacific Gas and Electric,   "

provided a presentation on public safety during planned outages, which

included information on PG& E' s community wildfire safety program, real-

time monitoring and intelligence efforts, public safety power shutoffs and
notification process,  the process involved with restoring power,  and

efforts put in place to prepare PG& E customers. A question and answer

period ensued throughout this presentation.  Various members of the

public ( Jack Varella, Michelle Maddon, Bennie Gatto, Tina Moran, Brandy
Perkins and other speakers ( purple, cards or names not provided for the

record)) commented on the matter and expressed various concerns with
the extended planned power outages.

Mayor Dhaliwal recessed the meeting at 9: 27 p. m. and reconvened at 9: 35 p. m.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

San Joaquin County Sheriff; Pat Withrow commented on his continued support
and assistance to the City, including providing a temporary office location for the
Police Services Department during the construction of the new facility,  brief

overview of current staffing levels and ongoing labor negotiations with San
Joaquin County and the SherifF' s OfFice.  

i
4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Mayor Dhalliwal, seconded by Councilmember Lazard, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar, except *** Items, 4. 15, 4. 16 and 4. 17,

by the following roll call vote;, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None      

Absent: Salcedo

Abstain: None      

uly 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



Prior to the readingj of the consent calendar,  City Clerk Teresa Vargas
announced that a public comment letter was received, dated Ju/y 8, 2019,
addressing Items 4. 5, 4. 9, 4. 10, 4. 11. 4. 12, 4. 13, 4. 14, 4. 15, 4. 16, and
4. 17 of the Consent Calendar,   and Item 5. 1 of Scheduled Items,
submitted by Martin Harris with Terra Land Group,  LLC;  the letter was
distributed. to the Cit y Council via their tablets  ( same process as the

agenda) and copies were made available for the public at the beginning of
the meeting.       

City Clerk Teresa Vargas amended Items 4. Z and 4. 3, to clarify method
of distribution for information or documents received for the City Council
related to items on the agenda) after the agenda is published.

Items 4. 15,  4, 16 and 4. 17 -  The City Council voted on the items
separately, following the vote of the Consent Calendar,

i
4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

j
Waived the reading  of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

t

4. 2     ** APPROVAL OF MINUiTES

Approved Minutes forithe Regular Council Meeting of June 10,  2019,  as

amended by the City Clerk to clarify method of distribution for information
or documents received for the City Council  ( related to items on the
agenda) after the age da is published.

4. 3     ** APPROVAL OF MINUTES
i

I
Approved Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of June 12,  2019,  as

amended by the City Clerk to clarify method of distribution for information
or documents received for the,  City Council  ( related to items on the
agenda) after the agerida is published.

4. 4 GRANT APPLICATION  TO PURCHASE TWO ALTERNATIVE FUEL CITY
VEHICLES

Adopted Resolution  19- 4593 authorizing th'e submittal of a grant

application to San ] oaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( SJVSPCD)

and authorized the purchase of two alternative fuel vehicles.

4. 5     * APPLICATION FOR STATEWIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY
REVITALIZATION PROGRAM

Adopted Resolution   19- 4594 approving the application for the

Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Program for
the Lathrop Communit; y Sports Park.

uly 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



i

i
4. 6 RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S ACTION TO EXTEND JANITORIAL SERVICES

CONTRACT WITH KOREAN PROFESSIONAL BUILDIIVG MAINTENANCE

Adopted Resolution 19- 4595 to ratify City Manager' s action to extend
the contract with Korean Professional Building Maintenance for janitorial
services.

4. 7 TPX COMMUNICATION SERVICES AGREEMENT

Adopted Resolution 19- 4596 authorizing a service agreement with TPX
Communications for d i ta, fax, and telephone services at city facilities.

i

4. 8 CREATE CIP PS 20- 13 CITYWIDE PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND STRIPING

PROGRAM AND APPRO/ E A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Adopted Resolution 19- 4597 creating CIP PS 20- 13 Citywide Pavement
Markings and Striping jProgram and approved a construction contract with

Chrisp Company, and approved related budget amendment.
i

4. 9     * APPROVE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR CIP PK 19- 03 MOSSDALE

SOUTH NEIGHBORHOOD PARK
I

Adopted Resolution 19- 4598 approving a construction contract with
WABO Landscape and Construction, Inc., for construction of CIP PK 19- 03
Mossdale South Neighborhood Park,   and approved related budget
amendment.       

i

4. 10   * APPROVE AGREEMENTS WITH EKI AND WOODARD & CURRAN TO ADD

MOSSDALE URBAN USE AREAS FOR CIP RW 19- 16 RECYCLED WATER

PROGRAM EXPANSION AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution  19- 4599 approving Task Order No.   2 to the

respective Master Agreements with EKI and Woodard and Curran to add
Mossdale urban use areas for the CIP RW 19- 16 Recycled Water Program
expansion, and approve related budget amendment.

4. 11   * APPROVE A CONSTR, UCTION , CONTRACT FOR PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE

AND REPAIRS,    PURSUANT TO CIP PS 18- 01 CITYWIDE ROAD

MAINTENANCE AND i REPAIR PROGRAM   ( PHASE II),   AND RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT
i

Adopted Resolution 19- 4600 approving Construction Contract with VSS
International,  Inc.,  fo;r pavement maintenance and repairs,  pursuant to

CIP PS 18- 01 Citywide Road Maintenance and Repair Program ( Phase II),

and approved related budget amendment.

4. 12   * ACCEPT THE CLSR RECYCLED WATER IMPROVEMENTS,    RECORD

ASSOCIATED GRANT DEEDS AND IRREVOCABLE OFFERS OF

DEDICATIONS AND AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE OF BONDS ASSOCIATED

WITH ENCROACHMENT PERMIT NO. 2017- 46

July 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



i

Adopted Resolution 19- 4601 accepting the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
recycled water pond,  pump station,  sprayfield,  and offsite conveyance

r

system improvement's;   authorized recording of Grant Deeds and

Irrevocable Offer of D edications of Easements from Saybrook CLSP,  LLC

for the Central Lathrop Specific Plan development project; and authorized
the release of bonds associated with Encroachment Permit No. 2017- 46.

4. 13   * ACCEPTANCE OF GRAVITY SEWER MAIN AND SANITARY SEWER PUMP

STATION, APPROVE AN OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR PORTIONS OF APN:
196- 03- 03,   APPROVE A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH PILOT

TRAVEL CENTERS L C,   AND AUTHORIZE THE RELEASE OF BONDS

ASSOCIATED WITH ENCROACHMENT PERMIT NO. 2017- 26

Adopted Resolution 19- 4602 accepting the gravity sewer main and
sanitary sewer pump station constructed by Mark III Construction, Inc., in

Roth Road and Harlan; Road and Offer of Dedication for portions of APN:
196- 03- 03;  and apprioved reimbursement agreement with Pilot Travel

Centers LLC,   and authorized the release of bonds associated with

Encroachment Permit No. 2017- 26
i

4. 14   * VALIDATE THE JUNE 20,  2016 FINDING OF ADEQUATE PROGRESS IN
THE MOSSDALE

TRACT
AREA

Adopted Resolution 19- 4603 Acting as the Land Use Agency Validating
the June 20,  2016,  Urban Level of Flood Protection  ( ULOP)  Finding of
Adequate Progress in the Mossdale Tract Area  ( Formally referred as
Reclamation District 17 Basin)

i
RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEMS   !

Councilmember Lazard recused herself,  following the vote of the consent calendar
Items 4. 1 to 4. 14), and left the cl amber at 9: 47 p,m., prior to the vote of Items 4. 15

through 4. 17, due to declared conflict of interest as noted in Item 1. 8.
I

On a motion by Councilmember Torres O' Callaghan,   seconded by Mayor

Dhaliwal, the City Council approved Items, 4. 15 through 4. 17, by the following
roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None      

Absent: Salcedo  

Abstain: Lazard

I

4. 15     /      APPROVAL OF A JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH
RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR RIVER ISLANDS
PHASE 2 COMMUNITYiFACILITIES DISTRICT 2019- 1

Adopted Resolution . 19- 4604 approving a Joint Community Facilities
Agreement between City of Lathrop and River Islands Public Financing
Authority  ( RIPFA)  Community Facilities District No.  2019- 1  ( phase 2

public improvements).

July 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



i

i
4. 16   */*** ACCEPTANCE OF, PREVIOUSLY RE] ECTED ROADWAY AND EASEMENT

DEDICATIONS FOR RIVER ISLANDS STAGES 1A, 1B AND 2A

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo for additional clarification on the item in
regards to previously rejected roadway and easement dedications.  City
Engineer Glenn Gebhardt provided the information.

Adopted Resolution 19- 4605 accepting previously rejected roadway and
easement dedications for eight final maps in Stages lA, 1B and 2A for the

River Islands development area.   

4. 17   */*** ADOPT THE ADEQUATE PROGRESS FINDINGS TOWARD PROVISION'

OF 200- YEAR URBAN ; LEVEL OF FLOOD PROTECTION FOR RECLAMATION

DISTRICT 2062 ( RIVER ISLANDS)

Adopted Resolution 19- 4606, acting as the Land Use Agency, adopting
adequate progress findings toward providing a 200- Year Urban Level of
Flood Protection in Phase 1   ( Stage 1,   2A and 2B)  area levees of

Reclamation District 2062 by the Year 2025.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

Councilmember Lazard returned to the dais at 9: 51 p. m.,  for the remainder of the

meeting. 

5. 1     * PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF

THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES AIVD

CITY FEES STUDY AND THE FEES RECOMMEIVDED THEREIN

Assistant Public WorkS Director Michael King introduced Principal Engineer

Jay Davidson.  Mr.  Davidson provided the presentation.  A question and

answer period followed the presentation.  Mayor Dhaliwal opened the

public hearing. There! were no speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public
hearing.      

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Torres O' Callaghan, tlie City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 19- 4607 adopting the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan capital facilities fees,  city fees study,  and the

fees recommended therein.

Ayes:       Akinjo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:       None

Absent:   Salcedo

Abstain:   None

5. 2 LIGHTED CROSSWALK ON SPARTAN WAY AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King provided the presentation. A
question and answer 'period followed.

uly 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



Michelle Maddon   ( Lathrop,   CA)   expressed support for the project,

installation of a pushbutton and overhead warning lights.  The question

and answer period continued.  City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt provided
additional information.,

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal,  seconded by Councilmember Torres-
O' Callaghan,  the City Council adopted Resolution 19- 4608 approving
Option 1,  as amended to include the installation of a lighted crosswalk,

signage,   manual pedestrian pushbutton,   and overhead signage on

existing street light pole on Spartan Way,  and approved related budget
amendment of $ 40, 000 associated with traffic calming measures CIP PS
18- 02. 

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None       

Absent: Salcedo

Abstain: None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Water Advisory Board ( Torres- O' Callaghan/ Lazard)
Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan reported on a potential water tax to

be considered at the n'ext regular Water Advisory Board meeting.

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo expressed appreciation to the Lathrop Police

Services staff for prcjactive policing and Parks  &  Recreation staff for

organizing recent community events.   Councilmember Lazard,  Torres-

O' Callaghan and Mayor Dhaliwal all expressed similar sentiments,

including appreciation to staff for the information presented related to
emergency preparedness,  encouraged the public to stay informed and
prepared for potential ' extended power outages.

7.       AD) OURNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 10: 25 p. m.

Gi Gj

T resa Vargas, CMC

ity Clerk

July 8, 2019 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



ITEM 4. 3

CITIr NIA IAGER°S R P61tY

AUGIJST 12, 2019 CITY COl1i ICIL IZEGIJLAR MEETIn1C

ITEM:       UIVCOLLECTI LE IDTILITY. AfVD IWISCELLAN Ol1S

CUSTONIER ACCOUNT

F ECOMIMEIVD/ ATYON:   Approve 1A/ rite- Off of llncollectible Uti ity and
I+ iscellaneous Accounts for Fi§ cal lfear ( Fl() 201/ 19

SU I' 9 NIAItI(:

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles  ( GAAP)  and Governmental Accounting
Standards Board ( GASB) require municipalities to evaluate and write- off delinquent
accounts that are deemed uncollectible. As part of the annual audit process and in

compliance with both GAAP and GASB requirements, the Finance Department has
reviewed unpaid delinquent accounts assigned to collections. After a thorough review,
staff has determined $ 42, 595 to be uncollectible for FY 2018/ 19 as detailed in Table

1 below:.

Table 1. 
z 3

1.      ':. I           s ti      

i!( " S'. k$ 1M4' P r

s 

J 1'' S+ E3     » tGQ' t11143 1 C' G  f5  
y+

IL`, itt1" tD

St C"
A         

k"
Zt7,  ". 5 Y - 

t Y   # L  '' 9     '
Jt4'$' / a

NJ 4k a 6i A G 

Ga, r;'      '     
r,>' ..... ,:.,. "`„<;,. ,. . . .,

a s

r;  3..   i .`*,.':"'    .... .. , .,   .. t.,,. ..

Utility Customers
Residential and Commercial 35 172 41 832 18. 94%    162

Miscellaneous Customers 8 939 763 90. 67% 7

Tot ls,  19;          = 4 i95  - 69;  

The recommended utility write- offs represent 0. 27% of the annual water and sewer
charges billed to customers.   Collecting a security deposit,  requiring occupants to
provide rental agreement or purchasing agreement before establishing service has
proven to be effective means in maintaining low levels of uncollectible accounts. The
increase of 18. 94% is primarily due to increased water and sewer rates.  Although,

the utility write=off amount in FY 2018/ 19 has increased by almost $ 7 thousand or

18. 94%, it is significantly lower than prior year's change in write- offs of 66. 89%.

The recommended miscellaneous customers' write- offs have significantly decreased
by approximately  $ 8 thousand or 90. 67%  due to a change in the accounting
methodology for miscellaneous charges.

Even though these accounts will reflect as " written off" in the City' s financial system,
there are further collection measures in place to seek repayment.   For instance, the

collection agency will continue to pursue repayment efforts on these accounts and
forward any recovered payments to the City.  Additionally, the Finance Department
conducts a review of all new customers prior to establishing service to ensure there
are no outstanding balances.     

Tonight staff is requesting Council' s approval to write- off $ 42, 595 of uncollectible

charges.

17



CI.TY MANAGER' S REPORT'   PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY AND. MISCELLANEOUS CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

ACKGROUND:   

On May 19, 1998, the City Council of the City of Lathrop ad,opted Resolution 98- 664
regarding the approval and i mplementation of a revenu'e collecfion policy.    On

October 18, 2010, Council authorized :the execution of an agreement with Golden

State Collections, LLC.      

The collection policy was put in place to help decrease the number of delinque.nt
accounts  ( 60- 90 days).  After unsuccessful collection attempts by City staff,  the

collection procedures allow City staff to refer customers' accounts that remain unpaid
for 60- 90 days to the collection agency for collection proceedings.  The collection

agency works on a cornmission- based structur.e.  Their fee is 30% of the total amount

collected.       

Currently, there are two types of customer accounts referred to the collection agency.
They are utility and miscellaneous customer accounts. The utility customer accounts
include charges for water and wastewater.  Miscellaneous customer accounts include

charges rendered by:  Finance;  Animal Control,  Community Development, . Police;

Parks  & Recreation,  and Public Works.   Charges include animal impound,  unpaid

business license fees,  court ordered restitution,  materials/ equipment,  and checks

returned for insufficient funds.

Utility Customer Accounts
In FY 2018/ 19, the City referred 172 delinquent utility customer accounts totaling

44, 557 to Golden State Collections, LLC for further collection processes.  During the
fiscal year, customers paid $ 1, 142 in outstanding charges . directly to the City while
Golden State Collections recovered. $ 1, 583 from 15 accounts on current and prior

year claims representing a 3. 56% recovery rate ( see Table 2).  Also included in Table

2, are accounts with balances less than  $ 5, which are not sent to the collections

agency. During FY 2018/ 19, there were ,no accounts with balances less than $ 5.

Table 2.
R

J(!'      ' C:+ I*`,``              1f'=2Q  ,$  ' X    3    
aH, r v   5. Ea H_ v:   , a v

Total Utilit Customers 6 229 6 532 6 973

Accounts Sent to Collection Agency 128 179'   172

Amount Assigned to Collection Agency 22 020 35 172 44 557

Amount Recovered by Collection Agency 354 286 1 583

Recovery Rate 1. 6%  i 0. 8% 3. 56%

Account < $ 5. 00 0 i 2 0

Total Write tiffs      ';   .$ Z'1; Q7b.       `  . .$ 35; 172 :;  41; 832',,

I

i

I

18



i

i

CITY MAN14GEIt' S REPORT PAGE 3

LDGIJST 12, 2019 CITY COURlCIL ItEGULI R MEE'p'IP G

Uf+ICOLLEfCYI LE UTILITY IVD MYSC LLANEOUS CUSYONIE ACiCOUIV

Although, the utility write- off amount in FY 2018/ 19 has increased by $ 6, 660 or

18. 94%, the number of accounts sent to collection has decreased by 10% from FY

17/ 18.  The increase of 18. 94%  in uncollectable charges were primarily due to
increased water and sewer rates. As development continues to advance, our utility
customer base also increases producing a larger risk of accounts referred to the
collections process.   However,  re- enforcing current programs that offers payment
assistance, such as extending payment due date or granting payment arrangements,
to utility customers carrying past due balances contributes to maintaining a low level
of accounts referred to collections.

Miscellaneous Customer Accounts

Miscellaneous customers' accounts referred to collections for FY 2018/ 19 totaled

763 from 7 accounts related to Animal Services billings, as summarize in Table 3.

Animal Services billings included emergency.   call costs,   veterinary costs,

impoundment, and shelter fees.

Table 3.

1 fi t r a t: rR s

3`        .      
5 ';

r.,

A ci a_'     
y     ., 

rif-+ rui,;   

Accounts Sent to Collecfion A enc 7

Amount Assi ned to Collection A enc 763

Amount Recovered b . Collection A enc 0

Accounts <   5. 00 0    '
y. .

i' t l OAirete.:' offS     :<  __.,,, '°      , 63;:

I E14S0109 FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Finance Department has conducted a thorough review of the utility and
miscellaneous customer accounts and  ' recommends  $ 42, 595 to be considered

uncollectible. 

FISCAL INIPACT: 

Decrease customers' outstanding balances due to uncollectible debt as follows:

Utility customer accounts:      41, 832

Miscellaneous customer accounts: 763

Total amount of uncollectible accounts:  42, 595

AT7'ACM N9 E IV' TS:

None.     

19



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING{

UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY.AND MISCELLANEOUS CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

APPROVALS:   

a7/ 9

Chia Lor Date

Management Analyst

i    + e•    '       0'' 2°i' t

Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director i

i

a ffq
Cari ] a Date

Financ   & Administrative Services

Director

7, 3  1
Salvador Navarrete Dafe
Gity Attorney

i' Z- 6

S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

I

20



ITEM 4. 4
i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       CREATIOIV OF A JOB DESCRIPTION FOR AN

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III POSITION

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution to Approve the Creation of a ) ob

Description for an Administrative Assistant III

Position Grade 47

SUMMARY:

There are currently three levels to the Administrative Class Series: Administrative

Assistant I, Administrative Assistant II and Senior Administrative Assistant.   The

Administrative Assistant I/ II position provides office,  clerical and administrative

support to management staff in the department they are assigned.   The Senior

Administrative Assistant performs a variety of supervisory duties, overseeing clerical
support staff and performing confidential and complex administrative duties.  There

is a need for a higher level of administrative support within the departments that is

below the level of a Senior Administrative Assistant.

Staff is proposing the creation of an Administrative Assistant III position that will give
departments a higher level of support and allow additional growth opportunities for

current staff.    

BACKGROUND:

Due to the fast pace of work within the City, it is necessary to have qualified staff to
support and keep up with the daily needs within departments.   As development

throughout the City increases, so does the amount of work coming into the City
Departments.    There is a need for a higher level of administrative support that is

below the level of a Senior Administrative Assistant, but more than an Administrative

Assistant II.

The job description for the Administrative Assistant III has been sent to Service

Employees International Union ( SEIU) 1021 for review and acceptance to their list of

represented positions. The position is FLSA Non- Exempt and will be added to the

Grade- Step Table at Grade 47.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council approve the creation of a job description for an

Administrative Assistant III position to assist with higher- level administrative support

within all City departments.   It is important to have staff in place with the skills

necessary to keep up with demanding workload of the City.       

21



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FUNDING FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Administrative Assistant III position will be placed at Grade 47 of the grade step
table.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation and Funding for an Administrative Assistant
III

B. . Job Description for Administrative Assistant III

I

i

I

j
22



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FUNDING FOR AN ADMYNISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III

APPIaOVALS: 

1      
Ca    s Date

Direct r of Finance and

Admi i trative Services

r  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

r
Steph       . Salvatoce Date

Cit anager

23



Attachment A ii

RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE  " CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING CREATION OF A 70B DESCRIPTION FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE

ASSISTANT III POSITION

WHEREAS,  the Administrative Class Series is currently comprised of an
Administrative Assistant I,  Administrative Assistant II and Senior Administrative

Assistant; and

WHEREAS, there is a need for a higher level of administrative support within

the departments that is below the level of a Senior Administrative Assistant; and

WHEREAS, due to the fast pace of work within the City, it is necessary to have
qualified staff to support and to keep up with. .the daily needs within the City
Departments; and

WHEREAS, it is important to have staff in place with the skills necessary to
keep up with demanding work load which will also provide additional growth
opportunities; and

WHEREAS,  the City has recommended adopting a new classification of
Administrative Assistant III; and

WHEREAS,   this position will be represented by Service Employees

International Union ( SEIU) 1021, is FLSA Non- Exempt and will be added to the Grade-

Step Table at Grade 47;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop, does hereby approve the new job classification of Administrative Assistant
III.

I

Resolution No. 19-

24



PASSED AND ADOPTED this
12th

day of August 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 19-

25



i       -- -  ---     ---

A ttachment B I

CITY OF LATHROP

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III

Class spec cations are only intended to present a descriptive summary of the range of duties and responsibilities associated
with specified positions. Therefore, specifications n:av not include a[ l duties performed by individuals within a classification. In
addition, specifications are intended to outline the minimum qualifications necessary for entry into the class and do not
necessarily convey the qualifications of incumbents within the position.

DEFINITION:

Under general supervision, performs routine and complex tasks and duties assigned to classes within the

Administrative Assistant series by providing office, clerical and administrative support to management
staff, and other staff, in one or more departments as needed; interprets and applies policies, procedures

and work methods associated with assigned duties; performs other related duties as required.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The Administrative Assistant III is an advanced level class in the Administrative Assistant series in

which incumbents are expected to independently perform the full scope of assigned duties conforming to
policy and requirements.  Incumbents perform a full range of office and administrative support duties,

preparation of reports, and preparing responses to public inquiries with a high level of administrative
detail.  This classification is distinguished from the next higher classification of Senior Administrative

Assistant in that the latter supervises, assigns, oversees and reviews work of lower level staff.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED/ EXERCISED:

Receives general supervision from a department head and/ or management staff.  May provide technical
and functional supervision to lower level administrative positions.

ESSENTIAL FiJNCTIONS:  ( include but are not limited to thefollowin

Performs a wide variety administrative duties for the Department Head, management staff, and other
staff, in one or more departments.

Organizes own work, sets priorities, meets deadlines.

May assist or be responsible for organizing and coordinating the work of an office or function.
Answers phone and greets customers at the front counter; responds to questions and concerns from

the general public; provides information as is appropriate and responds to complaints.

Composes independently or from oral instructions, notes or rough draft, a variety of materials
including inter- office communications,  letters,  forms,  memoranda,  bulletins;  legal documents,

notices and other materials; proofreads and verifies accuracy of documents; transcribes dictation
from a mechanical source.

Prepares a wide variety of reports and forms requiring independent assembly of information;
judgment and interpretation; prepares routine agenda reports,. ordinances and resolutions for City .
Council and/ or various Commissions.

Coordinates, schedules and attends a variety of public and private ,meetings as assigned; assures
proceedings comply with established requirements; prepares and sends out notices of ineetings;

maintains appointment and activity calendar; reserves facilities; collects and compiles information
for meetings; prepares agendas, supplemental materials and other documents; takes and transcribes
minutes as directed.

Researches and assembles information from a variety of sources for the completion of claims,

26



ADMII TISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III

Page 2 of 3

reports, and responses to record requests.

Reviews reports for possible action on accidents involving City property or employees; obtains
reports and information from other City departments; prepares reports and reviews for accuracy and
errors and makes recommendations for action.

Confers with claimants,  departments,  vendors,  and other members. of the public on matters

specifically assigned.

Assures timely communications between assigned office and City employees; initiate and receive
phone calls to receive and transmit inforniation; resolve issues as appropriate,

Coordinate travel arrarigements and hotel reservations as necessary; prepare and assure proper
completion of reimbursement forms.

Reviews applications, permits, records and files to determine accuracy and completeness; receives
and processes fees, fines or other money; prepares receipts and balances money received; performs
accounts payable and receivable for assigned department;  assists with the development,

administration and monitoring of a department' s budget. 
Tracks and monitors outside contracts; applies and monitors compliance for various grants for

assigned programs. 

Acts as a liaison with City employees and management on a variety of issues.
Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations,
state/ local agencies and associations, City management and staff, and the public.

PHYSICAL, MENTAL AND ENVIIZONMENTAL WORKING CONDITIONS:

Position requires prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, bending,
squatting, and stooping in the performance of daily activities.   The position also requires grasping,
repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing statistical reports and data using a computer
keyboard.  Additionally, the position requires near vision in reading correspondence, statistical data and
using a computer.  Acute hearing is required when providing phone and personal service.  The need to

lift, drag and push files, paper and documents weighing up to 25 pounds also is required.

Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and
requesting such accommodations.

QUALIFICATIONS:      ( The following are minimal qualifications necessary for entry into the
classification.)

Education and/ or Experience:

Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills and
abilities necessary for an Administrative Assistant III.  A typical way of obtaining the required
qualifications is to possess the equivalent of four years of significant directly related and
progressive clerical experience related to municipal government or a related field, and a high

school diploma or equivalent.       

License/ Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid class C California driver' s license may be required for
some positions.      

i

27



ADMR ISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III

Page 3 of 3

KNOWLEDGE/ ABILITIES/ SKILLS:     ( The following are a representative sample of the KAS' s
necessary to perform essential duties of the position. The level and scope of the knowledge and abilities
listed below vary between the I and II levels.)

KnowledEe of:

Standard office and administrative policies and procedures; City codes and ordinances; depending
on assignment, knowledge of accounting, clerical, construction and computer terminology may be
required; basic principles of mathematics; applicable federal, state and local laws, codes and

regulations; methods and techniques of scheduling work assignments; standard office procedures,

practices and equipment; modern office practices, methods and equipment, including a computer
and applicable software; methods and techniques for record keeping and report preparation and
writing;  proper English,  spelling and grammar;  occupational hazards and standard safety
practices.

Ability to•

Provide general clerical support to one or more departments; read, understand, and review

documents for accuracy and relevant information;  use applicable office terminology,  forms,
documents, and procedures in the course of the work; read, understand and explain plans, maps,

aerial photos, drawings, reports, applications, construction documents, and specifications; learn the

policies, procedures, and guidelines of the Department to which assigned in a timely manner;

maintain a high level of confidentiality; maintain accurate office files; compose correspondence or
documents; meet critical deadlines; deal successfully with the public, in person and over the
telephone; courteously respond to community issues, concerns and needs; perform mathematical
calculations quickly and accurately; interpret, explain and apply applicable laws, codes and
regulations; read, interpret and record data accurately; organize, prioritize and follow- up on work
assignments; work independently and as part of a team; make sound decisions within established
guidelines; analyze a complex issue, and develop and implement an appropriate response; follow
written and oral directions; observe safety principles and work in a safe manner; communicate
clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; establish and maintain effective working
relationships.

Skill to:

Operate standard office equipment, including a computer and variety of word processing and
software applications.

Historical Data

Adopted: August 12, 2019

Resolution: 19-

Unit: SEI[ J

Pay Grade: Grade 47
FLSA Status: Non- Exempt

28



i

ITEM 4. 5

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF

INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES

AND THE MUIVICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO

STATE LAW

RECOMMENDATION:   
y
Adopt Resolution Approving a Policy to Guide Staff
Interpretation of Development Impact Fees and the

Municipal Code as They Relate to Acc ssory Dwelling
Units to Conform to State Law'.

SUMMARY:

Accessory Dwelling Units  ( ADUs)  are defined as attached or detached secondary
dwelling units with complete independent living facilities for one or more persons.
The California Department of Housing and Community Development  ( HCD)  has

established laws through the state legislature to reduce the burden on ADU

development.   The subsequent state laws require some interpretation and

standardization by the local agency to ensure consistency among projects.

Pursuant to the California Government Code Division 1 Chapter 5, Chapter 7 and

Section 65852. 2, ADUs that conform to the definition and requirements set forth by
the Government Code shall not be considered by a local agency to be a new
residential use for purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for
utilities, including water and sewer service, unless the ADU was constructed with a
new single- family home.

It is the interpretation by City staff of this Government Code that Capital Facility Fees
CFFs) related to sewer and water connections shall not apply to ADUs.  Further, the

requirements for right- of- way and public utility easement dedication,  frontage

improvements, and utility connection requirements set forth by the City of Lathrop
Municipal Code Sections 12. 12. 070, 12. 12. 040, and 13. 16. 040 are not applicable to

ADUs.

All CFFs not related to sewer and water connections are applicable to ADUs as long
as such fees are allowed to be applied by State Law.   In an effort to be consistent

with neighboring Cities, all applicable CFFs will be applied at the Multi- Family dwelling
rate.  The Multi- Family dwelling rate provides a discount as compared to the Single
Family dwelling rate to promote development of ADUs within Lathrop.

Staff recommends that City Council approve this policy to guide staff interpretation
of development impact fees and the Municipal Code as they relate to accessory
dwelling units to conform to state law.

29



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT

IMPACT FEES AND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO ACCESSORY       ,

DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO STATE LAW

BACKGROU N D:

Accessory Dwelling Units ( ADUs)  are defined as attached or detached secondary
dwelling units with complete independent living facilities for :one or more person.
ADUs address the needs of individuals or small families seeki;ng living quarters in high
opportunity areas with limited space.  The California Department of Housing and
Community Development ( HCD) has established laws through the state legislature to
promote development of ADUs in an effort to supplement the shortage of available

housing.

Pursuant to the California Government Code Division 1 Chapter 5, Chapter 7 and

Section 65852. 2, dwelling units that meet the HCD definition of an ADU, shall not be
considered by a local agency to be a new residential use for purposes of calculating
connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer service,
unless the ADU was construction with a new single- family home.

The foregoing statements are interpretations and clarifications by City Staff of the
applicability of CFFs and Lathrop Municipal Code to ADUs that meet the definition and
requirements set forth by the California Government Code.  The foregoing statements
are not applicable to ADUs constructed at the same time as the primary dwelling unit:

1.  Water Connection Fees

Connection to the City water system independent of the existing dwelling unit on
the parcel is not required.  The ADU shall be connected to the water service for
the existing dwelling unit.  If independent connection to the City water system is
requested, CFFs and capacity fees related to additional use are not applicable.
Connections to the City system will be approved through a City . Encroachment
Permit and the applicant will be responsible for all cost including but not limited
to engineering, construction and permitting.

2.  Sewer Connection Fees

Connection to the City sewer system independent of the existing dwelling unit on
the parcel is not required.  The ADU shall be connected to the sewer service for

the existing dwelling unit.   If connection to the City sewer system is requested,
CFFs and capacity fees related to additional use are not applicable.  Connections

to the City system will be approved through a City Encroachment Permit and the
applicant will be responsible for all cost including but not limited to engineering,
construction and permitting.

Use or expansion of an existing septic system shall be approved by the San
Joaquin County Health Department.   The City will allow use or expansion of an
existing septic system if it is approved by the County.

30



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT

IMPACT FEES AND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO ACCESSORY
DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO STATE LAW

3.  Other Development Impact Fees and Requirements

CFFs not related to sewer and water connection or capacity including but not
limited to Culture and Leisure,  Municipal Services, transportation, levee impact

and reimbursements apply to ADUs at the Multi- Family Dwelling rate.

Requirements for right- of- way and public utility easement dedications,  street

frontage improvements, and utility connection requirements set forth by the City
of Lathrop Municipal Code Sections 12. 12. 070, 12. 12. 040, and 13. 16. 040 are not    ,
applicable to ADUs.

These interpretations and clarifications shall be in effect as long as required by
California law.    

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Council is requested to approve this policy to guide staff interpretation of

development impact fees and the Municipal Code as they relate to accessory dwelling
units to conform to state law.  A policy is needed at this time due to the ambiguity of
the state law related to ADUs and the growing number of applications for ADUs in the
City of Lathrop.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving a Policy to Guide Staff Interpretation of Development
Impact Fees and the Municipal Code as They Relate to Accessory Dwelling Units
to Conform to State Law

31



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT

IMPACT FEES AND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO ACCESSORY

DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO STATE LAW

APPROVALS:

g/ /
Brad T lor Date

Associate Engineer

s -  - a

Michael King Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

7   
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

Cari Ja Date

Finance & Administrative

Services irector

l 

Salvador Navarrete      Date

City Attorney

8 ' ' I,
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

i

i

32



RESOWTION NO. 19 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A POLICY TO GUIDE STAFF INTERPRETATION OF DEVELOPMENT

IMPACT FEES AND THE MUNICIPAL CODE AS THEY RELATE TO ACCESSORY
DWELLING UNITS TO CONFORM TO STATE LAW

WHEREAS,  Accessory Dwelling Units  ( ADUs)  are defined as attached or

detached secondary dwelling units with complete independent living facilities for one
or more persons; and

J

WHEREAS,   the California Department of Housing and Community
Development ( HCD) has established laws through the state, legislature to reduce the
burden on ADU development; and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to California Government Code Division 1 Chapter 5,

Chapter 7 and Section 65852. 2, ADUs meeting the definition and requirements set
forth by the Government Code shall not be considered by a local agency to be a new
residential use for purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for
utilities, including water and sewer service, unless the ADU was construction with a
new single- family home; and

WHEREAS,  City staff wishes to provide clarification on the state laws to
maintain consistency between projects and the foregoing clarifications shall be in
effect as long as allowed by California law.    The foregoing statements are not
applicable to ADUs constructed at the same time as the primary dwelling unit:

1.  Water Connection Fees

Connection to the City water system independent of the existing dwelling unit on
the parcel is not required.  The ADU shall be connected to the water service for
the existing dwelling unit.  If independent connection to the City water system is
requested, CFFs and capacity fees related to additional use are not applicable.
Connections to the City system will be approved through a City Encroachment
Permit and the applicant will be responsible for all cost including but not limited
to engineering, construction and permitting.

2.  Sewer Connection Fees

Connection to the City sewer system independent of the existing dwelling unit on
the parcel is not required.  The ADU shall be connected to the sewer service for
the existing dwelling unit.   If connection to the City sewer system is requested,
CFFs and capacity fees related to additional use are not applicable.  Connections

to the City system will be approved through a City Encroachment Permit and the
applicant will be responsible for all cost including but not limited to engineering,
construction and permitting.  

Use or expansion of an existing septic system shall be approved by the San
Joaquin County Health Department.   The City will allow use or expansion of an
existing septic system if it is approved by the County.     ,

33



3.  Other Development Impact Fees and Requirements

CFFs not related to sewer and water connection or capacity including but not
limited to Culture and Leisure, Municipal Services, transportation, levee impact

and reimbursements apply to ADUs at the Multi- Family Dwelling rate.

Requirements for right- of-way and public utility easement dedications,  street

frontage improvements, and utility connection requirements set forth by the City
of Lathrop Municipal Code Sections 12. 12. 070, 12. 12. 040, and 13. 16. 040 are not
applicable to ADUs.       

RIOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve the application of Capital Facility Fees and Municipal Code to
accessory dwelling units as described herein as long as required by California law.

34



1

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of August
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

IVOES:

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

35



36



r

ITEM 4. 6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RATIFY PURCHASE OF A TELESCOPIC HANDLER

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s Action to
Purchase a Telescopic Handler for the Operations
and Maintenance Division of the Public Works

Department,      and Approve Related Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department relies upon

a boom truck, a crane attached to a large flatbed truck, to maintain essential utility
infrastructure.  The City' s boom truck has exceeded its useful life and can no longer
meet industry safety standards.  The City cannot properly maintain essential utility
infrastructure without the ability to lift heavy material and equipment.  Utilizing
section 2. 36. 080 Emergency Procedures" of the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC), the

City Manager approved the immediate purchase of a telescopic handler to preserve
public health and safety. The total cost of the telescopic handler was $ 109, 717 and

sufficient funds were not allocated in the approved fiscal year. 2019/ 20 budget.

StafF requests City Council ratify the City Manager' s action to purchase a telescopic
handler for the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department
and approve related budget amendment.

BACKGROUND:      

The Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department relies upon
a boom truck,  a crane attached to a large flatbed truck,  to maintain utility
infrastructure.  The boom truck is a 1991 Kodiak flatbed and has been used by City
staff since 1991.   On June 12, 2019 City staff had the boom truck inspected and it
no longer met industry safety standards.   The cost to address the deficiencies was
estimated to be much greater than the value of the truck.   In addition to the initial

repair costs, the boom truck will require extensive ongoing . maintenance due to its
age.

A telescopic handler  ( telehandler)  is a versatile machine widely used in the

construction industry. Telehandlers are utility lifting machines, usually mounted on a
four-wheel drive chassis and equipped with a telescopic boom that can provide lift
heights to 50 feet or more.   On the end of the boom the operator can fit one of
several attachments, such as a bucket, pallet forks, or winch.

37



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETINGi
RATIFY PURCHASE OF A TELESCOPIC HANDLER

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City' s boom truck has exceeded its useful life and can no longer meet industry
safety standards.   The City cannot properly maintain essential utility infrastructure
without the ability to lift heavy material and equipment. A telescopic handler is a
versatile machine widely used in the construction industry and will meet the needs
of the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department.  

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the telescopic handler was  $ 109, 717.  The approved fiscal year

2019/ 20 budget did not i'nclude the purchase of the telescopic handler, therefore, a
budget amendment in the amount of $ 109, 717 will be required.  A total of $ 44,467

will be carried over from fiscal year 2018/ 19 into fiscal year 2019/ 20 to cover forty
percent of the cost. The remaining sixty percent in the amount of$ 62, 250 is proposed
to be funded with the available capital replacement reserves balance in the Storm

Drain Fund 2510, Stonebridge Drainage and Lighting Fund 2560, Mossdale CFD Fund
2570/ 2590,  Mossdale Landscape and Lighting Fund 2580/ 2610, Water Fund 5620,

Sewer Fund 6010, and the Sewer West I5 Fund 6080. City staff is requesting Council
approve the following budget amendment:   

Decrease Approuriations

2500- 5021- 450- 3800 6, 584

2510- 5020- 420- 5800 3, 141

2510- 5020- 430- 2600 3, 049

2550- 5060- 430- 2600 549

6080- 5034- 420- 5800 9, 200

2510- 243- 0000 2, 039

2560- 243- 0000 4, 389

5620- 243- 0000 30, 721

6010- 243- 0000 12, 069

6080- 243- 0000 8, 355

Increase Transfer Out

Mossdale CFD Capital Replacement

2590 - 9900- 990- 9010 6, 583

Mossdale Landscape & Lighting Capital Replacement
2610- 9900- 990- 9010 1, 098

Increase Transfer In

2570 - 9900- 393- 0000 6, 583

2580- 9900- 393- 0000 1, 098

G

38



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY PURCHASE OF A TELESCOPIC HANDLER

Increase Appropriation

2500- 5021- 450- 2000 6, 584

2510- 5020- 450- 2000 8, 229

2550- 5060- 450- 2000 549

2560- 5061- 450- 2000 4, 389

2570- 5063- 450- 2000 6, 583

2580- 5064- 450- 2000 1, 098

5620- 5050- 450- 2000 3.0, 721

6010- 5030- 450- 2000 12, 069

6080- 5034- 450- 2000 17, 555

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s Action to Purchase a Telescopic Handler
for the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works

Department, and Approve Related Budget Amendment

39



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY PURCHASE OF A TELESCOPIC HANDLER

APPROVALS:      

I  g - - a

Michael King      Date

Assistant Director of Public Works
I

g  ,  
Cari Ja Date

Finance Administrative

Services irector

r 7 -- 

Salva or Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s•S•
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

40



i

RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYING CITY

MANAGER' S ACTION TO PURCHASE A TELESCOPIC HANDLER FOR THE

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE DIVISION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS

DEPARTMENT, AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works

Department relies upon a boom truck, a crane attached to a large flatbed truck, to
maintain utility infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the City' s boom truck has exceeded its useful life and can no
longer meet industry safety standards; and

WHEREAS, the City cannot properly maintain utility infrastructure without the
ability to lift heavy material and equipment; and

WHEREAS,  a telescopic handler is a versatile ma'chine widely- used in the
construction industry and will meet the needs of the Operations and Maintenance
Division of the Public Works Department; and

s

l
WHEREAS, the total cost of the telescopic handler was $ 109, 717; and

WHEREAS,   section 2. 36. 080   Emergency Procedures"   of the Lathrop
Municipal Code ( LMC) allows for the elimination of the purchasing procedures in an
effort to efficiently and timely maintain essential public services; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager approved the immediate purchase of a telescopic
handler to preserve public health and safety; and

WHEREAS,  the approved fiscal year 2019/ 20 budget did not include the

purchase of the telescopic handler, therefore, a budget amendment in the amount of
109, 717 will be required.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby ratifies the City Manager' s action to purchase a telescopic handler for
the Operations and Maintenance Division of the Public Works Department and

approves the following Budget Amendment:

Decrease Appropriations

2500- 5021- 450- 3800 6, 584

2510- 5020- 420- 5800 3, 141

2510- 5020- 430- 2600 3, 049

2550- 5060- 430- 2600 549

6080- 5034- 420- 5800 9, 200
i

2510- 243- 0000 2, 039

41



i

r

2560- 243- 0000 4, 389

5620- 243- 0000 30, 721

6010- 243- 0000 12, 069

6080- 243- 0000 8, 355

Increase Transfer Out

Mossdale CFD Capital Replacement

2590 - 9900- 990- 9010 6, 583

Mossdale Landscape & Lighting Capital Replacement
2610- 9900- 990- 9010 1, 098

Increase Transfer In

2570 - 9900- 393- 0000 6, 583

2580- 9900- 393- 0000 1, 098

Increase Appropriation

2500- 5021- 450- 2000 6, 584

2510- 5020- 450- 2000 8, 229

2550- 5060- 450- 2000 549

2560- 5061- 450- 2000 4, 389

2570- 5063- 450- 2000 6, 583

2580- 5064- 450- 2000 1, 098

5620- 5050- 450- 2000 30, 721

6010- 5030- 450- 2000 12, 069

6080- 5034- 450- 2000 17, 555

i

42



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th

day of August 2019, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FAIZM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

43



44



ITEM 4. 7

CITV MANe4GER' S REPOIaT

i4ltGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUfVCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE PROFESSIOIVAL ERVICES

a4GREEMENTS FOR RIGHT- OF- VI/ AY

CONS! lLTING SERVICES WITH DOKKEIV

EMGIMEERINC ND ASSOCIATE EFdGINEERING

GROUP

RECOMMENDATIOM: 4dopt Itesolution Approving a Professional

Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering
for Right- of-Way Gonsulting Services and

Amenclment No.  1 for Associated Engineering
Group Related to the Louise Avenue and

McKinley Avenue Intersection Capital

Improvement Project PS 15- 02 and

Authorizing Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY

City Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  Public

Streets ( PS) 15- 02 for the intersection improvements of Louise Avenue and McKinley
Avenue.   A professional services agreement with Associated Engineering Group for
the design engineering of PS 15- 02 was approved during the March 11, 2019 City
Council regular meeting.    According to the McKinley Avenue Precise Plan Line,
additional right- of- way is needed to complete the intersection improvements.

In June of 2019, staff requested proposals for right- of-way consulting services from
four ( 4) firms.   After reviewing and evaluating the proposals,  Dokken Engineering
was selected based on previous work history, qualifications, positive references, and
their overall understanding of the project requirements.

The professional services proposal from Associated Engineering Group included add
alternatives related to environmental consulting services.   With the acquisition of

right- of- way,  the add alternatives are necessary to increase the scope of the

environmental consulting services to satisfy Caltrans requirements associated with
the federal funding for the project.

Staff requests that City Council authorize the following:

A Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering in the amount of
22, 024 plus a 15% contingency for a total cost of $ 25, 327.

Amendment No.  1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Associated

Engineering Group in the amount of $ 40, 000 plus a 15% contingency for a
total cost of $46, 000.

Related budget amendment for CIP 15- 02 in the amount of $71, 327 from the

Local Transportation fund.

45



J

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY

CONSULTING SERVICES AND AMENDMENT NO.   1 FOR ASSOCIATED

ENGINEERING GROUP RELATED TO THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY
AVENUE PRO] ECT CIP PS 15- 02 AND A BUDGET AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND

The City' s Traffic Monitoring Plan ( TMP) calls for upgrades to the Louise Avenue and
McKinley Avenue intersection. Louise Avenue is a key east and west route for trucks
and vehicles traveling between Lathrop,  Manteca and unincorporated San Joaquin

County. In 2015, City Council approved the creation of CIP, PS 15- 02 Louise Avenue
and McKinley Avenue Intersection Improvement Project to widen Louise Avenue,
modify lane configurations and upgrade the traffic signal equipment at the

intersection.   Staff applied for and received federal Congestion Mitigation and Air

Quality ( CMAQ) funding from the San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG) in

the amount of $ 400, 000 to construct the improvements.

The project will provide protected left- turns for both eastbound and westbound Louise
Avenue.  The intersection will be widened to provide exclusive left- turn lanes for all
directions and will satisfy the Federal Highway Administration   ( FHA)   Surface

Transportation Assistance Act ,(STAA) truck route requirements for truck access to
local businesses.

According to the McKinley Avenue Precise Plan Line, additional right- of-way is needed
to complete the intersection improvements.    In June of 2019,  staff requested

proposals for right- of- way consulting services from four ( 4) firms.   After reviewing
and evaluating the proposals, Dokken Engineering was selected based on previous
work history, qualifications, positive references, and their overall understanding of
the project requirements.

The professional services proposal from Associated Engineering Group included add
alternatives related to environmental consulting services.   With the acquisition of
right- of-way,  the add alternatives are necessary to increase the scope of the
environmental consulting services to satisfy Caltrans requirements associated with
the CMAQ funding.

Staff requests that City Council authorize the following:       

A Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering in the amount of
22, 024 plus a 15% contingency for a total cost of $25, 327.

Amendment No.  1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Associated

Engineering Group in the amount of $ 40, 000 plus a 15% contingency for a
total cost- of $46, 000.

Related budget amendment for CIP 15- 02 in the amount of $ 71, 327 from the

Local Transportation fund.

i
I

46



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY

CONSULTING SERVICES AND AMENDMENT NO.   1 FOR ASSOCIATED

ENGINEERING GROUP RELATED TO THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY

AVENUE PROJECT CIP PS 15- 02 AND A BUDGET AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

Right- of- way acquisition is required to advance the Louise Avenue and McKinley
Avenue Intersection Improvement Project PS 15- 02.  Staff recommends City Council
approve a Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering, Amendment

No. 1 with Associated Engineering, and the related budget amendment for CIP 15- 05
in the amount of $ 71, 327 necessary to advance the project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests that City Council authorize the following:

A Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering in the amount of.
22, 024 plus a 15% contingency for a total cost of $25, 327.

Amendment No.  1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Associated

Engineering Group in the amount of $ 40, 000 plus a 15% contingency for a
total cost of $46, 000.

Related budget amendment for CIP 15- 02 in the amount of $71, 327 from the

Local Transportation fund.

CIP PS 15- 02 currently holds a budget of $ 109, 330. 50 for engineering services. The
CMAQ funding can only be used for construction, therefore, staff requests a budget
amendment in the amount of$ 71, 327 from the Local Transportation CFF Fund ( 2250)

to acquire the necessary right- of- way for advancement of the Louise Avenue and
McKinley Avenue Intersection Project, PS 15- 02.

Transfer Out

2250- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 71, 327

Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 15- 02 71, 327

Increase Expense

3310- 8000- 420- 8400 PS 15- 02 71, 327

47



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4  

AUGUST 12, 20,19, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE . PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY

CONSULTING SERVICES AND AMENDMENT NO.   1 FOR ASSOCIATED

ENGINEERING GROUP RELATED TO THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY

AVENUE PROJECT CIP PS 15- 02 AND A BUDGET AMENDMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with Dokken

Engineering for Right- of- Way Consulting Services and Amendment No.  1 for

Associated Engineering Group Related to the Louise Avenue and McKinley
Avenue Intersection Capital Improvement Project PS 15- 02 and Authorizing
Related Budget Amendment

B.  Agreement for Professional Services with Dokken Engineering for Right- of-
Way Consulting Services

C.  Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Associated

Engineering Group

48



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY

CONSULTING SERVICES AND AMENDMENT NO.   1 FOR ASSOCIATED

ENGINEERING GROUP RELATED TO THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY

AVENUE PROJECT CIP PS 15- 02 AND A BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS

Brad ylor Date

Associate Engineer

3--  

Michael King Date

Assistant Director of Public Works

Cari Jam Date

Finance & A ministrative

Services i ector

d' '  /

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

v/

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

49



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH DOKKEN

ENGINEERING FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY CONSULTING SERVICES AND

AMENDMENT NO.  1 FOR ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP RELATED TO

THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PS 15- 02 AND AUTHORIZE RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,    the Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection

Improvement Project PS 15- 02 was included in the approved FY 2019/ 20 budget;
and

WHEREAS, the project consists of the installation of new traffic signals and
widening the intersection of Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the intersection improvements will help reduce delays, excessive
traffic back up and provide Surface Transportation Assistance Act ( STAA) truck route
compliance; and

WHEREAS, staff applied for and received federal Congestion Mitigation and

Air Quality ( CMAQ) funding from San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG) in the
amount of $400, 000 to construct the improvements; and

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement with Associated Engineering
Group was approved for the design engineering of PS 15- 02 during the March 11,
2019 City Council meeting; and

WHEREAS,  right- of-way consulting services and acquisition are needed to

advance the Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection Improvement Project
PS 15- 02; and

WHEREAS, staff requested proposals for right- of-way consulting services from
four ( 4) firms and received proposals from four ( 4) firms and Dokken Engineering
was selected based on previous work history, qualifications, positive references, and
their overall understanding of the project requirements; and

WHEREAS, the professional services proposal from Associated Engineering
Group included add alternatives related to environmental consulting services.  With

the acquisition of right- of-way, the add alternatives are necessary to increase the
scope of the environmental consulting services to satisfy Caltrans requirements
associated with the CMAQ funding; and

WHEREAS,  staff is requesting City Council to authorize the following
necessary to advance the Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection

Improvement Project PS 15- 02:

A Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering in the
amount of $22, 024 plus a 15% contingency for a total cost of $ 25, 327.

50



I

I

1

Amendment No.   1 to the Professional Services Agreement with

Associated Engineering Group in the amount of $ 40, 000 plus a 15%

contingency for a total cost of $46, 000.

Related budget amendment for CIP 15- 02 in the amount of $ 71, 327

from the Local Transportation CFF Fund ( 2250).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve the following necessary to advance the Louise Avenue and
McKinley Avenue Intersection Improvement Project PS 15- 02

A Professional Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering in the
amount of $ 22, 024 plus a 15% contingency for a total cost of $ 25, 327.

Amendment No.   1 to the Professional Se,rvices Agreement with

Associated Engineering Group in the amount of $ 40, 000 plus a 15%

contingency for a total cost of $46, 000.

Related budget amendment for CIP 15- 02 in the amount of $ 71, 327

from the Local Transportation CFF Fund ( 2250).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize the following budget amendment to the
following accounts:

Transfer Out

2250- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 71, 327

Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 15- 02 71, 327

Increase Expense

3310- 8000- 420- 84,00 PS 15- 02 71, 327

i

i

51



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of August
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarr. ete, City Attorney

52



i
Attachment B

CITY OF LATHROP AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

CONSULTING SERVICES WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING

FOR THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PS 15- 02

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 12th day of August 2019, is by and
between Dokken Engineering  (" CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a California
municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Engineering Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services in
accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference.  CONSULTANT agrees to

diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession
and to CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed 22 024,  for the

Professional Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit" A". CONSULTANT shall

be paid any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings
containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below. Compensation for any task must
be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT
be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A", unless a written change

order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by
CITY' s authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work. Payment is made
based on a time and materials basis.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is August 12, 2019, and it shall terminate no later
than June 30, 2020.

Page 1 of 10

53



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

4)       independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while engaged in
carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, is an
independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.  As an independent contractor,

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete the scope
of work described in Exhibit" A" to City' s satisfaction. CONSULTANT expressly warrants not
to represent, at any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the amounts

previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.  Exc;ept as specifically authorized
by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate serv,ices performed by more than
one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in excess of
the rates or the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or

for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all significant
developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and shall furnish to
CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the performance of this
Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this
Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the work called for

under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately, without requiring the
City to process a reason or explanation for its request.

The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision, of CONSULTANT' s
Authorized Representative: Jamie Formico, CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized

Representative without the prior written approval by the CITY.

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq  ,

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for entering into
this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence of CONSULTANT.

Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may be assigned by CONSULTANT without
the prior written approval of CITY' S authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not

subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and' provided for herein, other than
the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S

authorized representative.

Page 2 of 10

54



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEIV ENGINEERIIVG PS 15- 02

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement,
CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the
Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the CITY the insurance specified

in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers and under forms of insurance satisfactory
in all respects to the CITY. CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence
work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor. Verificafion of this insurance shall be submitted and made

part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S sole

cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and
Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or
indirectly by CONSULTANT.    Said Statutory Workers'  Compensation,

Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of
not less than one million dollars. In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely
on a self- insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California
Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, orthe CONSULTANT, if a

program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive all rights of subrogation

against the CITY for loss arising from work performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. CONSULTANT, at
CONSULTAIVT' S own cost and expense, shall maintain commercial general

and automobile liability insurance for the period covered by this Agreement in
an amount not less than one million dollars per occurrence, combined single

limit coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this
Agreement. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile
Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be performed
under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at least twice

the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall include but shall not be

limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and personal injury,
including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned
and non- owned automobiles. 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88) and

Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed. 12/ 90)

Code 1 ( any auto).

Page 3 of 10

55



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or added
as an endorsement to the policy:   i

i)       CITY,  its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT,
including the insider' s general supervision of CONSULTANT;
products and completed operations of CONSULTANT; premises

owned, occupied or used by CONSULTANT.  The coverage shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to

CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)       The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis,

and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and
that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called upon to
contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)      Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting provisions of
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)       Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with a

Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by CITY at
least thirty days prior to such change.

c)       Professional Liabilitv.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and

expense,  shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing work
pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less than One Million Dollars

1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate covering the licensed
professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed $ 150, 000

per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must be

received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such change shall be
included in the coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest
clause.

Page 4 of 10

56



i
CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

iv)      The following provisions shall apply, if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be
before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance

must be provided for at least five years after completion of the

Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.   

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced

with another claims made policy form with a retroactive date
that precedes the date of this Agreement, CONSULTANT

must provide extended reporting coverage for a minimum of
five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.

The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

CONSULTANT'S cost, any extended reporting provisions of
the policy should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted
to the CITY prior to the commencement of any work under
this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions. CONSULTANT shall disclose the

self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the services
or work called for by any term of this Agreement. During the period covered
by this Agreement,  upon express written authorization of the CITY' s

authorized representative, CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or
self- insured retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents,

and volunteers.   The CITY' s authorized representative may condition
approval of an increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels upon a

requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigations,  claim administration,  and defense

expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of them.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coverape.  In the event; that any coverage required
under subsections( a), ( b), or( c) of this section of the Agreement is reduced,

limited, or materially affected in any other manner, CONSULTANT shall
provide written notice to CITY at CONSU 'L'TANT' S earliest possible

opportunity and in no case later than five days after CONSULTANT is
notified of the change in coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT fails to
provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the
extent and within the time herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the

premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

Page 5 of 10

57



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

ii)       Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or withhold
any payment which becomes due to C,ONSULTANT hereunder, or
both stop work and withhold any payment, until CONSULTANT
demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other
remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)     Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder,  it is understood and agreed that  ( a)

C'ONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY relies

upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful and

professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate as a
release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the work performed.

It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of the work

to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and

shall be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance with the standard of care
applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, actions, damages,
and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or damage
to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent
caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its
employees, subcontractors, or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this

work, except for any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the
CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve CONSULTANT from liability
under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.   This indemnification and hold

harmless clause shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been   ,
determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for damages.

11)     Licenses

If a license of any kind, whieh ferm is intended to include evidence of registration, is required

of CONSULTANT,  its employees,  agents, or subcontractors by federal or state law,
CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and in good standing,
and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and
that any applicable bond has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations.

Page 6 of 10

58



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

12)     Business Licenses i

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until all
Agreement services aee rendered and accepted by the CITY.

i
13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written notification
to the other party. In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to
compensation for services performed to the effective date of te'rmination; provided, however,

that the CITY may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery
to the CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes, and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT
or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

14)     Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in subsequent years

is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the appropriations limits of
Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the Council may determine not to fund
this agreement in subsequent years.

15)     Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders,

consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to
the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other
party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail, postage prepaid, ( 3)

sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if
sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business hours of the
receiving party and followed with two ( 2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material
sent by facsimile transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service
by delivery and service by facsimile transmission.

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre   '

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:   ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant: Dokken Engineering ,
110 Blue Ravine Road, Suite 200

Folsom, CA 95630   '

Phone: ( 916) 858- 0642

Page 7 of 10

59



i,  
CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

I
16)     Miscellaneous

a)      Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is
required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed
by a person having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed
and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

c)       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

d)      Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of
any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which
directly results from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental
authority.

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and

shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this
Agreement.

f)       Incorporation of Documents.   All documents constituting the Agreement
documents described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from
time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by
such reference incorporated in the Agreement and shall be deemed to be

part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.   This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the
parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties concerning the
Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or written agreements

between the parties that are not incorporated in this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or be

binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and
signed by the parties.

i)       Provision.    Any agreement,  covenant,  condition,  clause,  qualification,

restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define

or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance required or permitted
or to be required of or permitted by either party.  All provisions, whether

covenants or conditions,  shall_ be deemed to be both covenants and
conditions.

j)       Severability.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this

Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)       Status of CONSULTANT.  In the exercise of righ;ts and obligations under this
Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent contractor and not as an

agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any rights
and benefits accorded or accruing to the City Council members, officers or
employees of CITY, and CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims
to such right and benefits.      

Page 8 of 10

60



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKEN ENGINEERING PS 15- 02

I)       Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the

benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the
parties.     

m)     Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of

its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act

is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including
the last.  If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal ho,liday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties
agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of
California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of California.      

o)      Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the
terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its
reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees, incurred or expended
in connection with such action against the non- prevailing party.

17)     Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a written
Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary

bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT
for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

18)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right,
power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of
the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the CITY. This agreement shall inure

to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns. 

i

Page 9 of 10

61



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

DOKKERI ENGINEERING PS 15- 02
i

I
Approved as to Form:

City of Lathrop
City Attorney

r s--
Salvador Navarrete j Date

Recommended for Approval:    City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Accepted By: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

i
Consultant:   Dokken Engineering

110 Blue Ravine Road, Suite 200

Folsom, CA 95630

Fed ID#  68- 0099664

Business License# 20485

q -
G 7 rt

Signature Date

Richard A. Dokken, CEO

Print Name and Title)

i

Page 10 of 10

62



Exhibit A

APPRA SSAL AND ACQU{ StTfON SERVICES FOR
CITY OF LATHROP- lOiI1SE AVENUE ACKINLEY AVENUE IPITERSECTfOPII

PR JEf.T li fDERSTA IDIMG

The Clty of Lathrop is proposing the appraisal and acquisition af right of way from parcels 198- 100- 09&
98- 100- 10 for the intersection irnprovement project located at Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue. The

project involves the full acquisition of parcel 198- 1Q0- 09. Parcel 198- 100- 10 requires a partial acquisition.

SCOPE E SERi/ 10E5

Provided below is summary of the scope of services and deliverables Dokken Engineering will provide, as
required to the Ciry of Lath op:

RIGHT OF WAY PROJECf MANAGEMENT APlD COOROIiVA710N SERVICES- To eliminate any unforeseen
issues, Dokken Engineering' s team works closely with Caltrans or applicable funding sources to ensure al!

changes regarding certification, documentation, and procedures are impfemented. By coordinating our
efforts with Caltrans, bokken Engineering ensures that ali the current documentation and procedures are

used for all right of way efforts for local public agency projects.

Dokken Engineering wilf do Ehe following once a task is assigned:

Review title reports and implement solutions for items that may affect title or cause a delay in
escrow;

Provide all gathered information to the appraiser and attain a detailed timeline to complete the

assigned task;

Monitar progress and provide any additional infarmation to the des9gnated appraiser;
Review all reporis supplied by the appraiser for quality assurance;
Provide draft reports to the review appraiser Eor final revie v and recommendations;

Prepare draft acquisition documentation for Client revietiv and approval;

Provide final appraisal report, appraisal review, and acquisit+an documentation to the Ciient for
finaf review;

Prepare staff reports for approval oE just compensation;

Make offers in person to each property owner;

Attain executed acquisition documentation frQm each affected property owner;
Provide possession documentation in lieu of purchase contracts;

Supply condemnation support, if required;
De{iver Fully executed documentation to escrow/ title officers to close escrow and provide title
insurance;

Coordinate the close of escrow and provide originaE copies of acquisition Eiles to the Client;

Provide the Client with original acquisition files.

Dokken Engineering will be available to attend meetings as the Client determines is necessary. Project
meetings to discuss the project schedule and to address challenges as they arise will be recommended.

Dakken Engineering will provide a project tracking table with milestone dates to the Client on a regular
schedule.

Dokken Engineering is available to atten Project Delivery Meetings( PDT) with the City. Additionally, when
needed, Dokken Engineering can meet with the Board of Supervisors to provide clarification or information

on right of way acquisition matters. Dokken is also available, at the request of the City, to attend any Public
Community Meetings regarding the project.

0. v
6NCiNF. BttING

63



APPRAISAl. AQ ID ACQUIStTION SEiiVlCES FOR

CITY OF LATHROP— LOUISE AVENUE f CKINLEY AYENUE INTERSECTION

Dokken' s right of way agents will meet in person with property owners or the owner' s representative at

the location of their choosing, whether it be the subject property, the owner' s home, or a neuEral location.
Dokken' s right of way agents wi!! work with properry awners' schedules and are availabfe to meet outside
oF normal business hours and on weekends, when required. Dokken will continue to meet with owners

throughout the negotiations process until the acquisition process has been finalized. tast{y, during the
escrow coordination process, Qokken wi{ I be available to the properry owners to provide any necessary
notary services required for the escrow docurnentation.

Qokken Engineering' s project managernent philosophy is to treat every client as if they are our oniy client.
We are immediately available in person, by phone, and by e- maif, For us, pr,oject management means

contract compliance, accurate file systems, budgets, sthedules, and assembli: ng the appropriate team to
do the job right. It means monitoring sub- consultant work, progress reporting, and assisting our clients
with the hundreds of details involved with project delivery. Dokken Engineering uses a consistent project
management approach on all projects:

IVo Surprises" Communication with our Clients— Dokken Engineering maintains constant

communication with our clients. Emerging issues are brought to our client' s attention, along with
proposed solutions. Additionally, Dokken maintains communication with our subconsultants in

order to keep everyone up to date and on schedule.
Clear, Concise, and Complete Reporting— Dokken Engineering can provide both weekly and monthiy

progress reports that include accomplished tasks, upcoming tasks, pending issues, and scheduled
cornpletion target dates. We coordinate and facilitate regular progress and team meetings and
prepare all exhibits and handouts.

Projett Schedule Monitoring— Each of Dokken Engineering' s projects is guided by a project baseline
schedule, clear milestones, major activities, and deliverables at a level of detail appropriate to the

project. The schedule drives the project, not the reverse.

Budget Control— The key to preserving budgets is to start on time, get it right, and meet submittal

deadiines. Dokken Engineering utilizes the same staff from beginning to end. This eliminates
inefficient orientation tirne and repeated site visits for new team members.

PR IECTTRACKING TABLE— Jamie Formico will maintain the project tracking table and ensure that it is
sent Eo the Client on the regulariy requested schedule. As a amponent of effective praject management
and in an effort to keep the project on schedule and the Client current with acquisition data, a project

tracking table will be created. This table will outline milestones and supply completion dates, comments
and any additional information the Client may request.

b Deliverables: Project Tracking Table

ORDER TITLE REPORTS/ TITLE RESEARCW— dokken will order preliminary title reports for parteis 198- 100- 09
198- 100- 10, Upon receipt of preliminary title reports, Dokken Engineering right oF way tearn will

perform aN necessary research fQr each parcel being acquired. Agents may resolve or vversee resolution of
problems relating to unusual circumstances with regard to title or ownership and untover any flaws,
noting any exceptions pertaining to praperry such as mortgage liens, restrictions, easements and rights of
way.

Qeliverables: Reso utiora of tatle tssues

W     _.,_..... . ._._...___. M,__.._..
v .,.  

x N
F. NGINEEIi1NC.

64



i

APPRAISA I. ANDACW1SiTI0NSERVICESFOR

CITY OF LATHRaP- LOl11SE AVENUE 8 MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION
w._.._.......

APPftAISAt PROCESS- Appraisais will be completed for parcels 148- 1OQ- 09 & 198- 100- 10. 19$- I00-09 will

be appraised as a fuil acquisition. For parcel 198- 100- 10, the appraiser will value the project requirements

and complete a separate valuation within the same report for the ultimate right of way needed per the City' s
specific plan for McKinley Avenue. The appraisals will be completed by iicensed Genera! Real Estate
Appraisers. Notice of intent to appraise letters along with acquisition policy brochures will be provided to all
impacted property wners. Appraisals will be arranged so that the property owner may àccompany the
appraiser during the inspection of the property. This allows the property owner the opportunity to provide
additional information to the appraiser.     

A11 appraisals wilf be prepared by an appraiser licensed with the State of CalilFornia and will comply with all
laws appficable to the specific a,ppraisal and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisa) Practice 49 CFR
24. 2( a)( 3). Appraisais will include a summary and a complete ana! ysis for all valuation conciusions.

Documentation obtained during the inspection, such as pictures, wisl be included in each report. Title

information pertaining to ownership, drawings, and information relative to the. parcel will be reviewed by
the appraiser.     

b Detiverables: Appraisals Reports

OBTAIN APPRAISAL REVIEW REPORTS - Appraisal Reviews will be completed by a Certified General Real

Estate Appraiser. Upon acceptance and approval of the property appraisals, an independent appraisal
review will be completed by DokEcen Engineering' s subconsultant. The review i cludes inspecting sales to
determine comparability, reviewing appraisal for conformance to Uniform Standards of Rrofessional

Appraisal Practice, reviewing " highest and best use" conclusions, examining valuation methods, ana yzing
exhibits, checking mathematical calculations, and prepa ing a narrative report that describes the review

process and sets forth the reasoning behind the review. An appraisal review is recommended to ensure that
the appraisal is based on sound appraisal theory, contains appropriate docume tation to support the
appraisers' conclusions and complies with regulatory codes. A recommendation of just compensation is then

made based on the reviewed, callected, assembled, correlated, and analyzed data.
Deliverables: Appraisal Review Reports

SUMMARY STATEMEN7- Dakken Engineering will complete a Summary 5tatement Relating to the
Purchase of Real Property or an Interest Therein ( Caltrans Exhibit 8- EX- 16) for each property. This
document will be delivered to properiy owners with the offer package during the initial meeting.

Oeliverables: Summary Statement Relating to the Purchase of Real Property or an Interest The eir   
Caltrans Exhibit 8- EX- 16)

NEGOTIATE FOR RIGHT OF WAY- Acquisitions will be required from two parcels. Parce1198- 100-09 wil4

require a ful! acquisition. Parcel 198- 100-010 will involve afFering to purchase the right of way needed for
the current project and include an offer to purchase the ultimate right of way needed per the City' s
specific plan For the area in the future.   

All " Good Faith Negotiations" will be completed by Dokken Engineering' s Rigfit of Way Team. After
completion of the appraisal process and just compensation determination, Dokken Engineering will
prepare the offer package and meet with all owner5 in person to present and, explain the offer package

details. The offer package will include the offer letter, written summary of just tompensation with
supporting appraisal information, property owner exhibit showing property map with right of way take

H.__.._...._.,      
r_.,._._____ _

r._  _. _..._..__._,._.._, . ... .     ... .  . . .       ...       _  _

DOKKEN
ENGINF. F. H[ NG

65



i

I

I

APPRAISAL AMD ACQUIS( TION SERVICES FOR
CITY OF LATHROP- LOUISE AVENUE MCKINLEY AVENUE tNTERSECTiON

locations, Title VI information," Your Property Your Transportation Project" Ibooklet. Dokken Engineering
will negotiate with the property owner to arrive at a mutually agreeable settlement and prepare necessary
purchase agreements such as Grant Deeds, Easement Deeds, and Temporary Construction Easement
Deeds. Dokken Engineering will obtain receipt oE delivery of offer and/ or pre5ent and secure tenant
information statements, as applicable, during the+nitial meeting.

Dokken Engmeering w 11 work rlosely with the C{ ient to a d in the retommendation of the appropriate

course of action with regard to the various acquisitions with property owners requesting additional
compensatian and/ or services beyond the initial offer package. Recommended settlement packages with

justifications and impasse fetters wiil be provided to tFte Client for re iew. Working with the property
owners[ o agreeable terms wil! be Dokken Engineering' s facus. There rnay be situations where
condemnation is unavoidable, such as clouds in the title. In the event the Client wi{I need to attain

property through the condemnation protess, Dokken Eng neering will assist in the preparation o# all
necessary condemnation eparts, letters, and packages.

Additionalfy, Dokken Engineering wiil atte d, at the request of the Client, any Publit Community Meetings
regarding the project.

Dokken Engineering' s Right of Way Agents hold Caiifornia Real Estate Salesperson' s Licenses and are
working under the direct supervision of a California Real Estate Licensed Broker.

b Deliverables: Right o#Way Agreemenks, Grant and Easements Deeds, Administrative Settlements,

Diaries, Written Summary of Acquisitions, Irnpasse letters

ESCROW COORDINAi' ION— Upon reaching an agreement on the terms and conditions of the acquisition

with the property o,wner, Dokken will be availabye to assist the Client in opening escrow. Dokken will
supply fully executed agreements along with other supporting information to escrow in order to close
each transaction. Dokken will work clasely with the Client to assist in the tirnely closing of all transactions.
For the convenience oF the property awner, our right of way team has a California Notary who will be
available to notarize any cfocumentation that is cequired. Fully executed deeds and easements will be
delivered to the Client for acceptance prior to recording. In the event escrow services are not required,
Dokken is available to perform these services and record the required documentation.

b Deliverables: Escrow Documents and Closing Statements

CALTRANS R GHT OF WAY CERTIF{ CATION— Dokken wil! coordinate with the Client and supply all required
documentation Far Ehe right of way certification. Dokken Engineering will review all acquisition documents
for proper and complete execution, including formal acceptance.

b Deliverables: Right of Way Certification Documentation

PROJECT CLOSE- OUT—The original acquisition file for each affe ted parcel will be provided to the Client

upon cornpletion of the project. Each acquisition file will contain property information, diary report,
written torrespondence, just compensation docurnentation, appraisal( s), offer package, negotiations, title

documentation, copies of recorded documents, construction contract work documentation and all
applicable documentation.

b Deliverables: Original Acquisition Files, Construction Contract Work Documentation

Da KEN
V__.___._ .._.____ .._..._..._ __ _ 

4_

E N O S N ffi E R i N O

66



i

I

APPRAISAL AND ACQUfSRfON SERYICES FOR

CFfY OF LATHROP- lOUISE AVENUE& MCKINLEY AVENUE IMERSECTION

RELATED EXPERIEN E

Dokken Enginee ing understands that successful and timefy delivery of a project from inception ta ribbon
cutting requires attention to many detai{s. Our experience working on both large and small projects results
in superior and efficient project delivery for our clients. On the followin pages is a sampli g of some of
our project delivery experience.

GAS POINT ROAD WIDENING PROJECT SHASTACOUNTY, Cafifornia

PROJECT OVERVIEW { Shasta County Department of Publicp

Works is preparing to widen Gas Point Road. The widening wiN
be between Charles Street and Stonegate Drive and will consist
of constructing a center turn lane witf 4- foot paved shoulders
with 4- foot gravel shoulders.

RIGH7 OF WAY SCQPE  Dokke

in
was responsible for right of

way appraisal and appraisal eview, preparation of just
DURATION

compensation documentation, property rights negotfat9on and
2017- 2Q18

right of way certification coordination. The project involved the

CliElVTCONTACT' acquisition of right of way from 10 parcels.
Brandon Magby, SR/ WA

s,=;;;,

County Right of Way Agent
9

Shasta County DPW
A': ' •

1855 Placer Street
r : e-

Redding, CA 96001
S30} 225-5472

y

KEY STAFF INVOLVEMEfVT

lamie Formico, SR/ WA

loson Andrews, SR/ WA

Vanessa Corhron, SR/ WA

17andal! 8laesi, Review

Approiser GAS POiNT ROAD AT NO NAME DITCH CULVERT

REPLACEMENT PftOJECT

SERVICES PERFORMED PROlECT OVERVIEW ( Shasta County Department af Public

Praject Management orks is preparing to replace an existing box culvert at no name
Appraisals creek at Gas Point Road and Charles Street.

Dacument Preparation RIGHT OF WAY SCOPE f Dokken was responsible for right of way
Acquisition appraisal, appraisal review, waiver valuation, preparation of just

compensation documentation, property rights negotiation and
right of way certification cvordination. The project involved the

acquisition of right of way f om three propertie5.   

D K;._
v.__.......

u....__._.. .. _..,,,..
r...._ .

Wr__,   

E K O 1 N E R 1 N 6

67



1

i

I

APPRAISALAND ACQUISITF6N$ ERVICES FOR
CITY OF LATHROP- LOUISE AVENUE& MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION

GREEN TREE EXTENSION PR lECT CITY OF VICl' RVILLE, Califomia
PROJECTOVERVIEW The Green Tree 8oulevard Extensian is a roadway
gap closure project that would connect Yucca Loma Road in the Town of

Apple Valley at the east end of the project with Hesperia Road and Green

Tree Blvd in the City af Victorville at the west end of the project. It

provides approximately 1. 5 miles of new roadway and a 60Q feet long
bridge over the BNSF Railroad, where no crossing currently exists. This
segment is the last link in a new east- west transportation corridor [ Yucca

Loma Road Bridge/ Yates Road/ Green 7ree Boulevard Transportation

lmprovement Project] providing a new route across the MQjave River
DURA' f10N

developed by the Town of Apple Valley, City of Victorville and County of2017- Current
San Bernardino over the last several years. Projects under construction

CLIENT CONTACT currently include the widening of Yucca Loma Road, a new bridge over the
City af ctarville iVlojave River to connect Yucca Loma Road to Yates Road, and widening of
Brian Gengler, City Engineer

a portian of Yates Road. This segment of the project is located mostly
Ciry of Victorville

within the City of Victorville with portions in unincorporated County af
14343 Civic Drive San Bernardino.
Victorville, CA 92393

760} 955- 5Q00
RIGHT OF WAY SCOPE  DokEcen was responsible for right of way

KEY STAFF INVOLVEMENT enginee ing, ordering and reviewing preliminary title reports, surveying
Jomie Formico, SR/ WA and mapping, determining right of way requirements, producing plat
loson Andrews, SR/ WA maps and legal descriptions, preparing property owner exhibits, appraisal
Vonessa Cothran, SR/ WA and appraisal review, preparation of just compensation documentation,

SERVICES PERFORMED property rights negotiation, and escrow coordination. The project

Project Management involved the acquisition of right of way from 19 parcels.

Right of UJay Engineering
c     '°

V       `"   -

Preliminary Title Reports
iMM    . T

Surveying & Mapping

Determining Right of Way r

Requirements
w     : -%

y

Plat Maps & Legal

Descrip[ ions y' '^   ".      
m^;.,,°

Property Owner Exhibits W_ _._   ......---..:-.

Appraisals

Oocument Preparation

Acquisition

Escrow Coordination

Coordination with gNSF

q,.- .,,    „. t -----       

D KI EN
ENOINF. FIZI NA

68



APPRAiSAL AHD ACQUISlT10N SERVICES FOR
C( TY OF LATNROP— LOUISE A1/ EidUE MCP( INLEY AVENUE IMTERSECTION

w__ 

BEAR VALL 1( ROAD OVER BNSF CI' i'Y OF VlCTORVILLE, Califomia

x a; .
w PR lECT OVERVIEW  Dokken Engineering provided preliminary

r,     • .   engineering, alternatives analysis, and funding support services for
this NBP project over the BNSF Railroad. The existing overcrossing
structure is functionally obsolete and lacks shoulders and a median.
Dokken Engineering studied six alternatives to improve the
structure. Each alternat+ve evaluated the key issues and constraints
including, roadway geometrics, General Plan, HBP and BNSF

T

requirements, construction staging, and right of way impacts to
ad}'acent properties. Of the six alternatives studied, Dokken

DUEtAl'ION   «      
Engineering determined two to be feasible.

20D9 Eo? 017

Due to the flat terrain and railroad clearance requirements, the
CLIENT C0 lTACT

bridge requires long, filled roadway approaches beyond the 20
City of Victorville

feet typically funded through HBP. Dokken Engineering assisted the
6rian Gengler, City Engineer

City in securing additional HBP funds for these long approach
City of Victorville

roadway improvements, showing Caltrans that the improvements
14343 Gvic Drive

are necessary to meet current design standards.
Victorville, CA 92393

760) 955- 5000 Do6cken Engineering is currently completing final design and an

KEY STAFF INVO VEMENT
application under Genera! Order 88- B for a Modified Existing Rail
Crossing. As part of that application, close design coordination is

Jamie Formico, SR/ WA
occurring with BNSF Railroad to gain st ucture and construct+on

Vonessa Cothron, 5R/ WA
sta in bu - in earl  n the desi n racess resultin in a ra ect

lason Andrews, SR/ WA g g y y
o

g p       '  g p  
concurrence letter at 95/ design. BNSF concurrence is a critical part

SERVICFS PERFORMED of the CPUC modified crossing application.
ProjecE Management

RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES  Dokken Engineering' s Rightof Way
Preliminary Title Reports Team wilt provide acquisition services for eight parcels, including
RighC of V+1ay Engineering BNSF railroad. Dokken has an established relationship with BNSF
Su rvay & M a pp i ng and holds monthly meeCings to discuss on- going projects and crucial

determining Right of Way dead4ine5.

Requirements

Plats Maps & Legal d      ,.     _ ,    ,,     ,      .

Qescriptions

a Property Owner Exhibits
i

AcqziSition

a Appraisals

Document Preparation

Railroad Coordination

Escrow Coordinatian

Document Recording
y Ca{ trans Right of Way

Certificat+ on Coordination

w ..

w______,...,.._._.„  , ... ._.      _.       .._..  .__ . ...  .       .      _.

DOKKEl\ t
E N O 1 N F h R 1 N tl

69



APPRAI iL AND ACQUGSRION SERVICES FOR

CITY OF LATHROP- LOUISE AVENUE MCKINLEY AVENUE IN' i'ERSECTION
a__. w._    

TRINITY COUNTY HBP BRIDGE PROJECTS CENTRAL FEDERAL lANDS WIGHWAY DIVISION

Trinity ounty, Califomia
1,-

ti_       PROJECT OVERVIEW  Dokken Engineering teamed with RNR
Construction to design and construct five bridge replacements in
Trinity County, Califarnia. In addition to the bridge replacement, the

project also included; appraach roadway improvements, saFety
improvements and erosion control measures.

T , ,

The project was awarded through an innovative design- build contract
DURATION  format that included atl ight of way acquisition, environmental
2016- 2017 compliance, design, construction, and quality management to be

completed in a 10- month project scFiedule. The project is beingCUENT CONTACT
Andre Catellier, PE-- President administered by Central Federal Lands Hi hway division, a division of

RNR Construction the Federal Highway Administration.

8589 Thys Court RIGHT OF WAY SCOPE  Dokken was responsible for right of way
Sacramento, CA 958z8 engineering, ordering and reviewing prelirninary title reports, surveying
916) 379- 0957 and mapping, determining right of way requirements, producing plat

KEY STAFF iNV LVEMENT m aps and legal descriptions, preparing property owner exhibits,
appraisa) and appraisal review, preparation of just compensation

lamie Formico, SR/ WA
documentation, property rights negotiation, escrow coordination andlason Andrews, SR/ WA

FHWA right of way certification coordination. Right af Way acquisitionVanessa Cothran, SR/ WA
was closed in 6 weeks to meet the aggressive schedute, and a11Randa!! Blaesi, Review

Appraiser acquisitions we e completed in April of 2017. ConStruction was

completed in Ottober D17.

SERVICES PERFORMED

Pro} ect Management

Right of Way Engineering e Y#    

n

Preliminary Title Reports
Surveying & Mapping
Determining Right of Way
Req irements

4   ••

Plat Maps & LeBal Descriptions
i  -

a       

Property Owner Exf ibits
R Appraisafs

Docurnent Preparation

Acquisition

Escrow Coordination u  

L     

w

w,_._.- .      .;:....___._ W_.,,...___.._,...    ,

DOKKE N
w_ w     _    __.  _ .   .    .   .   .  ..

B N O 1 N E R R I N tl

70



i

I
I

APPRAlSAL ANp ACQUISlTION SERVICES FOR
CiTY OF LATHROP— LOUlSE AVENUE& MCKINI. EY AVENUE INTERSECTION

w....      -- - — -—

i_. __..__ ..__.___.....
w_.  -----.   ._._

GOLD HILL ROAD AT AUBURN RAVINE PLACER COUNTY, California

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROIECT

PROJECT OVERVIEW  Placer County is proposing the replace the
existing bridge on Good Nilt Road over Auburn Ravine. The existing
bridge is 86 years old and classified as structurally deficient.

The existing Auburn Ravine Bridge is a fi5 feet long and 23 feet wide
single span- reinforced- concrete arch bridge{ built in 1930) located

approximately 0.65 miles north of SR- 193. The proposed

improvements include the replacement of the existing bridge with a
DURATf01V

y

cast- In- plate post- tensioned concrete box girder brid e. The
2017- 2018

proposed bridge wi{ I be approximate 92 feet long and will be
CLIENTCON7ACT supported on seat type abutments, supported by cast- in- drilied- hole
John P. Weber, SR/ WA piles, if necessary. The abutments will be located behind the existing
Placer County Dept. of Public Works abutments and will be placed outside the limits of the Ordinary High
3091 Cou_nty CenEer Drive, Suite 220 Water fVlark. Excavation depth at the abutments will be,up to 20
Auburn, CA 95603- 2614 feet, measured from the existing roadway surface. The Gold Hill
530) 745- 7564 Road bridge profile will be ra6sed to provide hydraulic clearance

KEY STAFF INVOLVEMENT required for the design hydrologic event. The top af the new bridge
lomie Formico, SR/ WA will be between one and three feet higher than the top of the
1Qson Andrews, SR/ WA existing bridge.

Vanessa Cothran, SR/ WA The roadway alignment will remain at relatively the same location as
bwrght Pattison, Appraiser

the existing roadway alignment. The roadway approaches would be
Mike Pattrson, Appraiser

widened from 20 feet to 32 feet wide and raised by a maximum of
SERVICES PEFt ORMED approximately eight feet to confarm to the replacement structure,

Project Management The new approaches woufd con5ist o two twelve- foot lanes with

Apprai5als four-foot shoulders and will extend approximately 460 feet south of
Document Preparation the bridge and 860 feet north of the bridge, providing a smooth
Acquisition transition from the new bride to the existing roadway
EScra v Coardinati0n

The project is being completed under the Federal Highway Bridge
Program( HBP).

RIGHT OF WAYSCOPE Dokken was responsible for right of way
appraisal and appraisal review, preparation of just compensation

documentation, property rights negotiation and right of way
certification coordination. The project involved the acquisition of

right of way from nine parcels.

x

r;,

h'"

f

i

r.      m^^^     `...,..      .
d,

DOKKEN
EN61N F.ERI NC

71



i

i
i

APPRAiSAL AND ACQUISITtON SERVICES FOR

CIlY OF LATHROP- LOUISE AVENUE 8 MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION
5--.--

US- 50/ WESTERN PLACfRVILLE 1NTERCHANGES C1Tlf OF PLACERVILLE, California
PROJECTOVERVIEW The project improved local and regional

traffic operations and to accommodate the projected 20-year
F inc eases in traffic volumes within the project area. The design of

the project will be developed in four phases. Dokken completed
PS& E of Phase 1 ( built in 2013) and has recently finalized PS& E on
the subsequent phases and preformed the following for all phases
ight of way engineering, ordering and reviewing preliminary titl

4...

reports, sunreying and mapping, determining right of way
DURATION requirements, producing plat maps and legal descriptions,
Phase 1= 2008 preparing property owner exhibits, appraisal and appraisal review,

PF ase 2= 2017 waiver valuations in lieu of appraisals, preparation of just

CLIENTCONTACT compensation documentation, properry rights negotiation, escrow

iiebecca fVeves— City Engineer coordination and Caltrans right of way certification Coordination.

City of Pfacerville RIGHT OF WAY SCOPE  Dokken was responsible for right of way
3101 Center Street Placerville, CA engineering, orderin and reviewing preliminary titie reports,
95667 surveying and mapping, determining ight of way requi ements,
530) 542- 5250 producing plat maps and legal descriptions, preparing property

KEY STAFF INVOLVEMENT owner exhibits, appraisal and appraisal review, preparation of just

Jamie Fo mico, SR/ WA compensation documentation, property rights ne otiation, and
Jason Andrews, SR/ WA esc ow coordination. The project involved the acquisition of right

Vanessa Cothran, SR/ WA of way from four parcels. The interchange is located on Highway 50
Dwight Pottison, Approiser a Caltrans owned roadway. Caltrans reviewed and commented on
Mike Pattison, Appraiser the appraisals, appraisal reviews, acquisition documentation and

SERVICES PERFORMED t e coordination of property owned by the County of EI Dorado

Project tvianagement
transferredtotheCityofPlaterville.

Ri ht af Wa En  neering y g g 1:.,     «
M-

Preiiminary Title Reports
5urveying & Mapping d'.
Determining Rigf t o€ Way
Requirements

Plat ivlaps & Legal

Descriptions

Property Owner Exhi its
Appraisa{ s

Qocument Preparation

ACqUI5iti0n

Escraw Caordination
r

Caltrans Right af Way
ie

Certification
J,. t-/.

y

y      

1'"      C

y.,w_.._   .. 
w. m._..,.,.,,..,..,.._.....--..,......,_""-•-,   

w'a...
w;..":;:.w.'.'...........................       ...., ..—., ...    , .   -  •-_-.._....._.......-..._._._-.

M..-...._.....,...._._„

D I KEN'
p N O 1 N R 6 R t N C

72



APPRAISAL ANO ACCUt5R10N SERIACES FOR
CRY OF LATHROP- LOUISE AVENUE 8 MCKINLEY AVENUE 11dTERSECTI0P1

m...._..,,   

Y-__

RESPOEVSI LE PERSOIVIVEL

Dokken' s right of way team will be led by lamie Formico. She will be supported by developed staff and
independent appraisers who have worked together on many right of way projects. Her resume, as weil as
those of our key staff and appraisers, can be reviewed in the Appendix.

1AMIE FORMICO, SR/ WA, R/ W- NAC, R/ W- R,4C ( Project Manager

Jarnie Formico has 17 years of right of way project management, real property acquisition and relocation
experience. She is an active member of the International Right of Way Association and past president for
Chapter 27, as we11 as past Vice Chair of the Internationa! Transportation Committee. Most recently, she
was awarded Project Manager of the Year by the Sacramento chapter of the American Public Works

Association: She specializes in right of way project management, utility relocation, and railroad
coordination. Her specific right of way experience will provide this project with the necessary leadership
expertise, and she will also have the support of the designated subconsultant s and Dokken Engineering' s
skilfful staff. Ms. Formico has successfully managed several right o# way projects, including:

Gas Point Road Widening, Shasta Couney, CA

Trinity County HBP Bridges, Trinity Counry, CA
US- SO Western Placerville Interchange, Placerville, CA

Eastside Road at Olney Creek Bridge Replacement, Redding, CA
Las Pfumas Ave/ lincoln Blvd Safe Routes to School, Butte County, CA
Indian Canyon Bridge Widening and Bridge Replacement at UPRR, Palm Springs, CA

East Palm Canyon Over Paim Canyon Wash Bridge Rehabilitation, Palrn Springs, CA

South Palm Canyon Drive Low Water Crossing, Palm Springs, CA
e Bogert Trail Bridge Rehabilitation Project, Palm Springs, CA

Randall Avenue Widening Project, Rialto, CA

Alder Avenue Widening Project, Rialto; CA

Bear Valley Widening over BNSF, Victorvifle, CA
Green Tree Boulevard Extension, Victorville, CA

Yucca Loma Road and Bridge Widening, Apple Valley, CA

High Speed Rail, Fresno to 6akersfiefd, Bakersfield to Palmdale, HSR Authority, G4
West Capitol Avenue Streetscape& Infrastructu e Improvements, West Sacramento, CA

Utility and Railroad Coordination, UPRR and BNSF, Various locdtions, CA

VANESSA COTHRAiV, 5R/ WA ( Senior Right of Way Agent
Since 2004, Ms. Cathran has worked in the right of way industry on a variety of public projects. 5he has
proven skills in defivering tasks warking independently and as part of a team. Vanessa has demonstrated
expertise in providing acquisition, relocation assistance services, waiver valuations, right of way cast
estimates, and escrow coordination services in a timely and cost•effective manner and is knowledgeable
regarding the requirements of the Uniform Act and Caltrans policies and procedures.

Project experience includes:

Eastside Road at Olney Cr2ek Bridge Replacement, Redding, CA
Las Plumas Ave/ Lincoln 61vd Safe Routes to School, 8utte County, CA
Gold Hill Over Auburn Ravine, Placer County, CA
Gas Point Road at No Name Ditch Culvert Replacement, Shasta Counry, CA

a._..,.,_____.._    _._W   --

V._._
a __._.._. w....__    ,

o N
F. NOINF. ERIN6

73



i

I

APPRAISAL ANO ACQUIStiION SER4ICES FOR

CITY OF LATNROP— lOUISE AVENUE S MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTIOM

Trinity County HBP 6ridges, Trinity County, CA

Indian Canyon Bridge Widening and Bridge Repiacement at UPRR, Pa1m Springs, CA
East Palm Canyon Over Palm Canyon WaSh Bridge Rehabilitation, Pal m Springs, G4
Bear Valley Widening over BNSF, Victorvilie, CA i

i
Randall Avenue Widening, Rialto, CA

Linden Avenue Widening, Rialto, CA
Alder Avenue Widening Project, Rialto, CA iGreen Tree E ctension, Victorville, CA

Yucca Loma Road and Bridge Widening, Apple Valley, CA

Avenue 416/ EI Monte Way, Dinuba, CA

JASON ANDREWS, SR/ WA ( Senior Right of Way Agent
Qver the past 10 years, Mr. Andrews has provided acquisition, relocation assistance, right oF way,
estimates, and waiver valuations for multiple City, Counry, and State projects. Mr. Andrews has provided
these services for projects that include rural, agricultural, commercial, industrial, multi- family and single
family residential properties. He is past P esident of Chapter 27 of the fnternational Right of Way
Assaciation and received the Chapter' s Professional of the Year Award.       ,

Project experience includes:

Eastside Road at 0lney Creek 9ridge Replacement, Redding, CA
Gas Point Road Widening, Shasta County, CA
Gas Point Road at No Name Ditch Culvert Replacement, Shasta County, CA
Trinity County HBP Bridges, Trinity County, CA
U5- 50 Western Placerville Interchar ge, Placerville, CA

Gold Hill Over Auburn Ravine, Plater County, CA
Green Tree Extension Project, Victorville, CA

Sear Valley Widening over BNSF, Victorville, CA

Yucca Loma Road and Bridge Widening, Apple Valley, CA
Randall Ave Widening, Rialto, CA

R ad 80 Widening, County of Tulare, Tulare, G4

Avenue 41fi/ EI Monte Way, Dinuba, CA

APPRAISER QUALIFICATIONS

MICHAEL PATrISON ( Pattison& Associates)  Appraisat

Michael Pattison is a graduate of the Unive sity of California, 5anta Barbara with a degree in Busi ess
Economics. He started his appraisal experience working as an assistant in 2984. Since then he has
experience working in appraisa s of single- family residences, cammercial and other types of properties

plus both easements and fee acquisition appraisa{s for rights of way and other public projects. He is a
senior member of the Sacramento Chapter of the International Right of Way Association and is a Past
President. He received his SR/ WA designation in November 1997 and was voted" Mem6er of the Year" in
1998 and" Professional of the Year" in 2002 and 2003. He also received the Frank C. Balfour" Professional

of the Year' Award from the IR/ WA in 2004. He is also an Associate Member of the Sacramento Sierra

m.._......._.,   _..._..__.._    
e.v _ _  _ ....__,.._.....    . a._,,.._ ..   .      __.. .. _ ....  

DOKKEN
eNairr aiKa

l
74



I

I

I

APPRAISAL ANP ACQUISRION SERVICES FOR

CITY OP LATNROP- LOUISE AVENUE& MCKINI. EY AVENUE INTERSEG710N
w.......__.._...,,-_._..  .  ...

Chapter of the Appraisal Institute. Michael received his appraisal certificatian, from the State of California,
Office of Real Estate Appraisers, as a Certified General Appraiser.

DWIGHT PATTISON{ Pattison& Associates}  Appraisal

Dwight Pattison began his appraisal career in 1966 with the California Division of Highways, now Caltrans
District 3 office) and worked for the Real Estate division of the State Oepartment of General Services.

Qwight is a 1966 graduate of Chico State Universiry with a bachelor' s degree in Business Acfministration.
He obtained a certificate in real estate from UCLA in 1971. He left the State in 1984 to open his own
appraisal firm, then joined Duncan, Duncan& Associates, lnc., as a partner in 1987 and remained througE

1991. Dwight is a senior member of the lnternational Right of Way Association and past president of the
Sacramento Chapter. He has been a member of the Internatianal Executive Committee, serving as
International President from 1999 to 2000. He has been chosen " Professional af the Year" four times, in

1980, 1990, 1991 and 2000. Dwight has been published in Right of Way Magazine on" The Valuation of
Easements". He is also a designated senior member of the tVational Association of Independent Fee
Appraisers( NAIFA). Dwight received his appraisal certification from the State of California, Office of Real
Estate Appraisers, as a Certified General Appraiser. He is a qualified expert witness in San Joaquin,
Sacramento, Yolo, Mendocino, Santa Cruz, EI Dorado, Place and Contra Costa Counties.

RANDALL BLAESI, ASA, MRICS( Curtis Rosenthal)  Appraisa) Review

Mr. Blaesi is a qualified appraisal reviewer with Curtis Rosenthal, Inc. He was formerly Commercial pivision
Manager for the los Angeles OFfice of The Properry Sciences Group, Inc. Prior ta that position, he was a
Vice President and Senior Appraiser as5dciated with Grubb& Ellis Landauer, LC. Mr. Blaesi was previously
a Senior Appraiser with Integra Realty Resources, Los Angeles and a Senior Appraiser in the Pasadena

office of First Arnerican Commercial Real Estate Services. As an independent fee appraiser with offices in

Sacramento and San Diego, California from 1991- 2006, he specialized in appraisal and valuation consu{ ting
services regarding various types of real property including commercial, industrial, residential, agricultural,
ecreational, special purpose, easements, eminent domain, partial and full acquisition, environmental

mitigation land, const uction defect, fire, flood and earthquake damaged properties. Mis experience with
expert witness testimony includes: civil litigation, bankruptcy and tax court proceedings. He has previously
worked with Dokken on the Shasta County Gas Point Road Widening and Trinity County NBP Bridges
Proje t in Trinity County, California.

1

I
w.___.._...    

M...__._...... W,_..,_ M_._._..... ..  ......... .......---.. n.   .    _. ..    ._._...... _ .     ,

DOKKEN
fl N G 1 N E E R 1 N Q

75



l

i

I

i

R' I I

Appraisal and Acquisition Services

Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection
improvement Project

FEE PROPOSAL

DOKKEN
G N C I N E E R I N G

76



P COST PROPOSAL FOR e4PPRAlSAL AND ACQUIS[TION SERVICES
1     LOUISE AVE& MCKINLEY AVE I{ d7ERSEGTION IMPROVEIIAEN' f

E N G I N E E R I N G CIT O L14Tf{ ROP

1 .     .
x   . ,       ,     . }..•.'     .   .  

DOKKEN ENGiNEERING

O
3.       

ro ,      : o o

Task Descnption ,_  -  o.,'.    
v;, a  , 

Y Q, m  = OTNER' 
co,._ o,      rn  ;     TOTAL TOTAL

m:..'      .¢       c:•¢  `      "       DIRECT

F`    N''      
HOURS.   '      COST

o o COSTS
1 :. .    

j;,  -  ;       . 
c

tA  .   n
E     .. .        

a    =       
17 5  ' .$ 12

vd.
03  ' ,.$ 134: 8 _ _ .  .   8 99._; ,     ;.

t. a_ .  . ._._ e_   .  . . ,.__.  .      _..     _ .

RIGHT OF WAY SERViCES

P..,roect`Mana" ement/ Coordination/ Proect: Trackin  ; l'ab(e- __: _. .  .;._ _5 .: .`._.  5
a .  -

85 : k

OrderTitle Re..: rtsfTitie Resea ch: .. ..--. . . :-- _..    _... _-:     .._    .:-      ....   _:. 4 ,. LLt.  _ ". _
f_ . ;  ._,  _:  .  . ... 4 ..   ! 1; OOU100 ;., '  $ 1 539: 40

A. ., raisals;- 2 Re_  tts;.  _   ._     2 _._     e 2 _..  .!$ 5 000: 00 _. u:`::$ 5 340:05

A raisaliReliievi s;: 2 Review<Re orts __:. _ .,.     .._       :_ ` ._  ___ .: 2 : ., _    _ ___ ....._.__.     _::._:._ .= 2 ' ...$' 1; 900' 00 '__-,_. . 2;2.40:05

Ri" Fit`-of..Wa " Ne ' otiations=, 2` Pa cels-- v_ .:: .. :. : d 9; 6
1

75
v, _ ;_._.__ .

75 ? 73: 95

Escmw;Caardination .. F       ::,. '    _' ....  . . .     _;      _..._ _ ._::    1 r..    `  _ 
1 1; 3 9: 4r'.. , f  .__..,  .,.   0 v  ... ...._....  <.'...:.  .  ._:,..",      , . 9.,

Calt ans ROW,=_CertificatioNPro ect: Clase= out ..  ..':  _  : :  ;__.'__  ":_-.     .::_  _  F , ;_   ... _" 8  .__    ---  -. _: 8 w.. :_.     _  1; 031: 89

a_,. . 
u___  _.__..  :

Tt l"AL` HDURS, T     d 9 _  .::.  ; i4   :        3 ,    106 
a

a,

TOTAL". COST::;   1,' 530:24 _$1=`8$ 7:$ 9 :'  10 745: 84 . . __:':     .._ r:' ':.=_.:$ 7 900: 00 _;.:. $ 22' U23: 97.

77



I Attachment C

AMENDMENT NO. 1

CITY OF LATHROP AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

CONSULTING SERVICES WITH ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP

FOR THE LOUISE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PS 15- 02

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 12t''

day of August 2019, is by and
between Associated Engineering Group (" CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a

California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:   

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced and competent to
assist the City to provide engineering consulting services required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS,  on March 11th,  2019,  City Council approved AGREEMENT for
CONSULTANT for the Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection Capital
Improvement Project PS 15- 02 for a sum not to exceed $ 95, 070 to CONSULTANT; and

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTAfVT agrees to perform services in conformance with the scope of work

submitted by the  -CONSULTANT,  hereafter referred to as Exhibit  " A"  and

incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the standards of its profession, as stated in Article 11,

and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT on a time and materials basis in
accordance with Exhibit" A" up to a sum not to exceed 40 000 Consulting Services
as set forth in Exhibit" A" and incorporated herein by reference, notwithstanding any
contrary indications. which may be contained in CONSULTANT' S proposal.
CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

Compensation for any task must be equal or less than the percentage complete. In
no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in
Exhibit  "A",  Scope of Work,  unless a written change order or authorization

describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work.      ,
Payment is made based on a time and material basis.

78



I

i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is August 12, 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2020.

4)       I_ndependent Contractor Status.
1

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,  is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete
the scope of work described in Exhibit " A" to City' s satisfaction.   CONSULTANT

expressly warrants not to represent,  at any time or in any. manner,  that

CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs.

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks,  a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person.  In no event shall CONSULTANT

submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a
properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
sfiall furnish to CITY such information as is necessaryto enable CITYto monitorthe

performance of this Agreement.    

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement.  If CITY asks COiVSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the

work called for underthis Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately,
regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to the CITY' S request.

The services shall be performed by,   or under the direct supervision,

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative: Jim Freitas, CONSULTANT shall not

replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior written approval by the
CITY.

Page 2 of 12

79



i

i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neitherthis Agreement nor any interest therein may
be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S Public
Works , Director.     CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S Public Works

Director.       

9)      Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers and

under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.  CONSULTANT

shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until all
insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been obtained for the

subcontractor, unless otherwise authorized by City.  Verification of this insurance

shall be submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.     Workers

Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by law, and
Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less
than one million dollars.

In the alternative,  CONSULTANT may , rely on a self- insurance
program to meet these requirements provided that the program of

self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California
Labor Code.     The insurer,   if insurance is provided,   or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided, shall waive

all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from work
performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the
period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks

associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

I

Page 3 of 12

80



I
CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1
ASSOGIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02 i

If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall
be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from act,ivities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.   

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed.
12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

additional insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT,      including general supervision of

CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of protection afforde.d to CITY,  its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and not on a claim made basis.    

i'

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance
and that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called
upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply . with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with

a Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.     

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

i

Page 4 of 12

81



i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

c)      Professional Liabilitv:  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost

and expense, shall maintain for the period covered by this Agreement
professional liability insurance for licensed professionals performing
work pursuant to this Agreemerit in an amount not less than One

Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate
covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.       

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available 'at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with a'nother claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage,   so long as commercially available at

reasonable rates.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreeme t.
i

Page 5 of 12

82



i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions. , CONSULTANT' s policies

shall have self- insured retentions not exceeding$ 100, 000 except with

concurrence of the CITY.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  ( a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage. 

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:      
I

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement, so long as commercially available at reasonable
rates.

ii)       Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;      

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

i

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv.

As to the CONSULTAfVT' S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that ( b)      
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform

in accordance with the Standard of Care in Article 11.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agr,eement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.  i

Page 6 of 12

83



i

I

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of

the work to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that

said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance
with the standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession in accordance

with Article 11.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CIT,Y,  it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits,
actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily
injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or
municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by' the willful misconduct or
negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors, or

agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for any
such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY,  its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.   

11)    Standard of Care.

CONSULTANT agrees that, in connection with its services to be performed under

this Agreement, such services are performed with the care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession practicing under similar conditions at the
same time and in the same or a similar locality.  CITY recognizes that the state of

practice, particularly with respect to hazardous waste conditions, is changing and
evolving.

While CONSULTANT will perform in reasonable accordance with standards in effect

at the time its services are performed, it is recognized that such standards may
subsequently change because of improvements in the state of practice. When the
findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information supplied

by CITY and others, CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of such information. No warranty or guarantee, express or implied, is
made or intended by providing of consulting services or by furnishing oral or written
reports of the findings made.

i

I

Page 7 of 12

84



CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

i

12)    Licenses.  

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is
required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or
state law, by signing this agreement CONSULTANT states that such license has
been obtained,, is valid and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond
has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

13)    Business Licenses.      

I

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination.      

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement at any time for
convenience upon thirty (30) days written notification to other party.  In the event of
termination, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services

performed to the effective date of termination; provided, however, that the CITY

may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the
CITY of any or all documents, photographs, computer software, video and audio
tapes,  and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for
CONSULTANT or the CITY in connection with this Agreement.

15)    Fundinq.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Gouncil consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.
CONSULTANT shall not be required to provide services beyond available funding.

16)    Notices.      

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by
either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served
upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,  
postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a
facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during
regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two ( 2) Days by
delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission. Personal
service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by facsimile
transmission.

Page S of 12

85



i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

r

To City:      City of Lathrop     
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX: ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:     Associated Engineering Group
4206 Technology Dr., Ste. 4

Modesto, CA 95356

Phone:     ( 209) 545- 3390

ATTN:      Jim Freitas

17)    Miscellaneous.

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be.
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.   

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any
part of this Agreement.       

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

Page 9 of 12

86



i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, there lare no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in.
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall. define or otherwise control, establisti or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any
provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of

this Agreement not so aff.ected shall remain in full force and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to
the City Council members,  officers or employees of CITY,  and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions, of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in

which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding the
first Day and including the last.

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District, of California.

Page 10 of 12

87



I'

li
CITY OF LATHROP— CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT N0. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or ari'sing aut of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs,  including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non- prevailing party.

18)    General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT,  nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT' S sub- consultants shall relieve the any General
Contractor retained by the CITY of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY,  CONSULTANT and its ; sub- consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under
the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of
Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor' s Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractorto
provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.   

19)    Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until

all necessary insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay
CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

20)    Siqnatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

r

1

Page 11 of 12

88



i

CITY OF LATHROP- CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING GROUP PS 15- 02 I

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

J

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved By:       City of Lathrop
City Manager

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

CONSULTANT:   Associated Engineering Group
4206 Technology Dr., Ste. 4

Modesto, CA 95356

Fed I D #

Lathrop Business License #
i

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 12 of 12

89



i Exhibit A
I

Scope of Work

After reviewing the Request for Proposal, dated January 17, 2019, it is our understanding that the project

will include but not be limited to the outlined scope identified in the RFP. See below for a summary of the
scope of work to be performed:

TASK 1- RECONNAISSANCE AND FIELD SURVEYS

Topoqraphic Survey

Associated Engineering Group, Inc. will perform the required services for the preparation and coordination
of a topographic survey as required for design purposes. We will perform the field data collection to
include horizontal locations of planimetric features along with surface and subsurface utilities. The
preparation of the base mapping and topographic plans will be prepared in AutoCAD format and provided
to design team as needed to perform task items 3 & 4.

Obtain and review project related documents.

PerForm field survey.

Prepare topographic plan and base mapping.

Coordinate with property owners, utility agencies and city staff as needed during field survey.

Maintain coordination with utility agencies throughout the project.

Potholing requirements will be determined during preliminary engineering and will be addresses
on the construction document specification and contractors' requirements.

Site Visit and As- Built Plan Review

Fehr& Peers will perform a site visit to observe traffic patterns including pedestrian, bicycle, and truck
activity. We will field check existing traffic signal equipment to evaluate its condition and verify as- built

traffic signal plans provided by the City. Visible utilities and drainage facilities will be noted for use in the
design to reduce potential of conflict with proposed traffic signal equipment.

Traffic Counts

We will perform weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic counts at the intersection to determine the existing
volumes and turning movements for cars, trucks, pedestrians, and bicyclists.

TASK 2- ENVIRONIVIENTAL  -     Tota1 for Add Alternatives 4;5, 6, and 7:  $ 40,000

The proposed project is subject to both the National Envirbnmental Policy Act( NEPA) and the California
Environmental Quality Act( CEQA). This proposal is based on the assumption that that the project will

qualify for a Categorical Exclusion under NEPA and a Categorical Exemption under CEQA.

BaseCamp Environmental will perform the necessary work for the environmental task to include the
following:   

NEPA Compliance Tasks

The project is eligible for a Categorical Exclusion under NEPA. BaseCamp will prepare a Caltrans Preliminary
Environmental Study form on the assumption that the NEPA CE clearance can be accomplished without
technical studies. If technical studies are required by Caltrans, the necessary studies will be prepared on an
extra services basis. The potentially- required technical studies are listed below.

Subtask A: Prepare PES Form and Facilitate NEPA Determination I

BaseCamp will prepare a preliminary version of the Caltrans PES form in consultation with Associated and
submit an Administrative Draft to the City for review and comment. The PES form will be revised in
response to City comments, and, on City approval, submit the PES form to Caltrans. If required, BaseCamp
will attend a field meeting with Caltrans to discuss the PES, anticipated NEPA determination, required

9  Page

90



i

i

TASK 2— ENVIRONMENTAL( continued)

technical studies and Area of Potential Effect. It is anticipated Caltrans will complete and sign the PES form
as submitted, subject to Caltrans staff modifications; if requested by Caltrans; BaseCamp will revise the PES
as requested.      

On behalf of the City, BaseCamp will coordinate with Caltrans staff and provide assistance, information and
documentation as required to support completion of Categorical Exclusion documentation without
technical studies, or minimizing technical study requirements, as feasible.    !

CEQq Compliance Tasks

Improvements to the existing facilities are relatively minor and will not add capacity to the subject
intersection. As a result, the project is assumed to qualify for a Categorical Exemption under CEQA, which
will require minimal services.

Subtask 8: Evaluate Applicability of Potential CEQA Exemptions, Prepare and File Notice of Exemption

BaseCamp Environmental, Inc. ( BaseCamp) would visit the project site and evaluate the project' s potential
exemption qualifications. Provided that' the project qualifies for a CEQA exemption, BaseCamp would
prepare a written exemption analysis for the project file and prepare and file a Notice of Exemption with

the County Clerk upon approval of the project. Upon filing of the NOE, the CEQA process for the
intersection project would be complete.    

Environmental Technical Studies( Add Alternative items if required)

Add Alternative 1: Air Quolity Conformity

The project appears to be exempt from regional conformity per 40 CFR 93. 127 and should not be
considered a Project of Air Quality Concern ( POAQC) or require quantitative modeling. BaseCamp will
prepare the necessary confirmation documents for City submittal to the Interagency Consultation process.

Add Alternative 2: Area of Potential Effect( APEJ Map

BaseCamp Environmental will work with Associated to prepare a draft APE map for review and approval by
the City. The APE will be plotted on a project base map clearly depicting existing and proposed right- of-way
and intersection geometrics, proposed improvement geometrics and the proposed archaeological, and if

necessary historical, APE boundaries. Signature lines will be provided for the City Project Engineer, the
Caltrans PQS and the Local Assistance Engineer. On City approval, the APE map will be submitted for
Caltrans review and comment and revised as required until approved by Caltrans.

Add Alternative 3: Archaeological Survey Report( ASR) and Historic Properties Survey Report( HPSR)

If required, an ASR and accompanying HPSR will be prepared under the direction of BaseCamp
Environmental by subcontractor Solano Archaeology in accordance with Caltrans SER, Section 106 of the
NHPA and CEQA requirements as well as any applicable programmatic agreements. The technical basis for
the document will include a search of the CSU Stanislaus database, contextual research, consultation with

Native American representatives, a field survey of the project site, analysis of potential cultural resource
effects and identification of avoidance, minimization and mitigation measures needed to assure compliance
with applicable federal statutes and executive order's. The ASR/ HPSR will be submitted to the City for
review and approval, revised as required and submitted to Caltrans for review and comment; the ASR/ HPSR
will be revised as required until approved by Caltrans.

Add Alternative 4: Initial Site Assessment( ISAJ COST$ 6, 000

If required, BaseCamp will prepare an Initial Site Assessment( ISA) of potential hazardous waste and
hazardous material concerns on and near the project site in accordance with the requirements of the

Caltrans SER and ASTM 1527 guidance for the preparation of Phase I Environmental Site Assessments. The

technical basis for the document will include a search of the applicable government databases, review of
aerial photographs and maps, a field survey of the project site, analysis of potential hazardous waste and
material issues. 

10  Page

91



TASK 2— ENVIRONMENTAL( continued)     

i
Add A/ ternative 5: Natural Environment Study— Minimal lmpact( NES- MI)     COST$ 7,500

Significant biological concerns are not anticipated, and no documentation may be required of the City. If
required, an NES- MI will be the appropriate biological resource document. The NES- MI will be prepared
under the direction of BaseCamp Environmental by subcontractor Moore Biological Consultants in
accordance with Caltrans SER requirements. The technical basis for the document will include a search of
the CNDDB, US Fish and Wildlife and other applicable databases, a field survey of the project site, analysis
of potential biological effects and identification of avoidance, minimization a nd mitigation measures

needed to assure compliance with applicable federal statutes and executive orders.

Add Alternative 6: Noise Technical Memorandum COST$ 1, 500

The project is not a Type 1 project requiring a Noise Study Report and does not appear to involve sensitive
receptors or residences in the project vicinity. Nonetheless, Caltrans may require preparation of a Noise
technical memorandum addressing potential construction noise impacts. BaseCamp will prepare and
submit a draft Noise technical memorandum for City review and approval. The memo will be revised as
required and submitted to Caltrans for review and comment, and then revised as required to obtain
Caltrans approval.       

Add Alternative 7: CEQA Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration COST$ 25,000

If the project does not qualify for a Categorical Exemption, CEQA will likely require preparation of an Initial
Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration. In that case, the following tasks define the work required for CEQA
document preparation and processing.

Subtask A: Prepare Administrative Draft Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration.

BaseCamp Environmental will prepare an Administrative Draft Initial Study based on Appendix G of the
most recent CEQA Guidelines that describes the environmental setting of th'e project and the project' s
potential environmental effects in each of the areas of concern listed in the lnitial Study Checklist. The

Initial Study will include:

A Project Description will describe the major elements of the project using text and graphics.

The Initial Study will include a narrative presenting background information and impact analysis in
each of the areas of concern identified in the CEQA checklist. The analysis will include a significance

determination; where potentially significant environmental effects are identified, the Initial Study
will present feasible mitigation measures that could avoid, minimize or mitigate the significant

effects.

The analyses will rely on technical information included in NEPA technical studies where
appropriate and otherwise on available technical publications including the Lathrop City General
Plan, previous BaseCamp CEQA studies for projects in the project vicinity, California Air Resources
Board air monitoring data, NRCS soils surveys, State Important Farmland Maps, State geologic, fault
and seismicity maps, Geotracker and Envirostor databases, FEMA FIRMs and State demographic
data, among others.

The administrative Draft IS/ MND will be submitted to the City for review and comment. BaseCamp will
incorporate City comments into the IS/ MND.

Subtask B: Public Review Draft IS/ MND

The revised IS/ MND will be resubmitted to the City for final ( screencheck) review together with a draft
Notice of Intent, Notice of Completion and IS/ MND Summary. Upon City comment and approval,
BaseCamp will transmit the NOC and 15 IS/ MND summaries to the State Clearinghpuse, the Notice of Intent
and 5 copies of the IS/ MND to the City, and the electronic version of the entire document for uploading to
the City web site, reproduction and distribution to local agencies as required.

11 ' P' age

92



I

I

TASK 2— ENVIRONMENTAL( continued)      
i

BaseCamp will provide technical support City staff in publishing the Notice of Intent, in making the required
Notice of Infent and IS/ MND filing with the San Joaquin County Clerk/ Recorder, and in identifying local
parties that should receive a Notice of lntent.       

Subtask C: Prepare City Council Adoption Materials

I

BaseCamp and Associated will review comments received during the public review period and prepare
responses to comments, where warranted, in memo format rather than a standalone Final IS/ MND. It is
assumed that comments do not raise major new issues or objections to the project that require lengthy
responses, or that might trigger recirculation of the IS/ MND. BaseCamp will also prepare a Mitigation

Monitoring/ Reporting Plan ( MMRP) for review and comment by the City. Both the response to comment
memo and the MMRP will be revised to reflect City comments and then resubmitted for incorporation in
the City Council approval materials.

Subtask D: Notice of Determination

BaseCamp will prepare a Notice of Determination ( NOD) for the project immediately following approval and
submit it to City staff for review. BaseCamp will file the IVOD with the San Joaquin County Clerk. Filing fees
will be the responsibility of the City.

TASK: 3=, PRELIMINARY ENGI. IVEERING&. FINAL. DE$ IGN

Roadway Desiqn and Civil Improvements

Associated Engineering Group, Inc. will prepare documents, studies, drawings and technical specifications
for the intersection improvement project. We will evaluate existing wheel chair ramps, intersection,

corridor signage, striping, road widening, and pavement rehabilitation. Truck turning movement
simulations will be prepared per STAA truck route compliance for geometric design. Prepare preliminary

design recommendations for City review and comments. We will address comments and prepare final
design for City approval.

ForecastinA and Traffic Study

Fehr& Peers will complete a traffic analysis for the intersection of Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue to
determine the required intersection configurations to provide acceptable level of service conditions for

build-out ofthe City' s General Plan.

Using a combination of Existing AM and PM peak hour traffic counts and the San Joaquin Council of
Governments ( SJCOG)/ City of Lathrop Travel Demand Forecasting ( TDF) Model, Fehr& Peers will develop
Cumulative AM and PM peak hour volumes for the intersection. Fehr& Peers will analyze the intersection

using Synchro and SimTraffic to determine intersection geometrics, pocket lengths, phasing plan, and
resulting delays, levels of service and queue lengths.

Documentation and Meetinqs

The results of the traffic analysis and recommendations including traffic index, lane geometry, turn pocket

lengths, and traffic signal phasing will be documented in a draft Technical IVlemorandum for one round of
review and comment by the City of Lathrop. Our team will meet with the City to discuss any questions or
comments and incorporate feedback into a Final Traffic Operations Technical Memorandum.

Schedule

Associated Engineering Group, Inc. will prepare and maintain a detail schedule for the project and submit
regular updates to the City and design team.

12   a  

93



i

TASK 4— CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS   : :..: 

Associated Engineering Group, Inc. with the support services of Fehr& Peers. i ill prepare plans,

speci fications, an d estimates ( P S& E) for the in tersec tion improvemen t projec t a t Louise Ave n u e a n d

McKinley Avenue. 

The traffic signal modification design will accommodate the widening of Louise Avenue and include
modification of vehicle, bicycle; and pedestrian detection, vehicle and pedestrian signals, and intersection

safety lighting. Our design will include upgrading the existing pedestrian detestion to Accessible Pedestrian
Signals with equipment located per the latest ADA and CA MUTCD guidance. We expect that the existing

controller and service cabinets will be able to remain in place. Plans will include updated conductor and

equipment schedules.

Our team will prepare PS& E at 60%, 90%, and 100% levels for City review. We will address comments at
each submittal level and prepare written responses to the comments. We will be available to meet with the

City following each review to discuss any comments. We have budgeted for one in person meeting and two
teleconferences during this task. Final plans will be submitted electronically in both . pdf and . dwg format as
well as hard copy mylar. Final specifications will be submitted electronically in Microsoft Word format. The
cost estimate will be provided as a lump sum item. 

PS& E will comply with the latest City of Lathrop Design Standards, Standard Plans, Standard Specifications,
Caltrans Standard Plans( 2018), Caltrans Standard Specifications ( 2018) and the California Manual on

Uniform Traffic Control Devices ( CA MUTCD) ( 2014). PS& E will be prepared under the responsible charge of

Ryan Carrel P. E., C61619 and Kristin Calia, P. E., C62461.

Traffic Sipnal Timinq Sheet

Fehr& Peers will generate updated traffic signal timing parameters based upon the Task 3 Traffic Study

recommendations. We will provide the City with an updated traffic signal timing sheet in Microsoft Excel
format.

TASK 5= BID PERIOD SERVICES

Our team will be available for support during the pre- bid and pre- construction periods. We will attend up to
two in- person meetings ( pre- bid and pre- construction). We will be available to respond to contractor

questions and provide clarification on the Intersection Project PS& E. If necessary, we will provide revised

PS& E incorporating addenda resulting from the bidding process.

f I

j

13  Par e

94



2019

TASK ITEM p
dren Apr+l May Junc sul}° Auau t Septcmbcr Octubcr Novcmbcr y

rF

t a k i Ftcconn is anc t and Fi id Sur va> y

I opo raphk Survcry fl

I raffic Count  
A

lask 2 Lnvironmental

NEPA Compfionce Q

PLS Form

CFQA tomplionce Task

Lvaluatc Applic ibilityuf Pot nti i! lx mption

Noticc of Lxcrmptiun

i ask 3 Nr. Umin ry Lngini. enng

Hoddway Dc ign dnc Civil Improvemenh

Foretasti g and 1 raffic Study

D S gn Kc virw ar.d approval

i a k 4 Construction Uowmrnt

Cun truCtion Uo umitnt

Pian Ch rck h t i w and App uval

i aok S Bid Period Servke

l ddinr dnci Suu u; t S r. c,

N t: a, k itirm 1 Emnrunmunta!; may ri qu:• c additwnal trc hr cd titud, w ir h , vii' cquinr add tional tm tu prrioi: i.

A

J

tS]

tD

95



96



ITEM 4. 8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:      REINSTATE MASTER AGREEMENT AND APPROVE TASK

ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING

DIVISION

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Reinstating the Master Professional
Consulting Services Agreement and Approve Task
Order No.  7 with Interwest Consulting Group to
Provide Continued Professional Services in the

Building Division

SUMMARY:     

On July 18,  2016 City Council approved a Master Agreement with Interwest

Consulting Group  ( Interwest)  to provide professional services.    A series of Task

Orders have been approved to provide various professional services within the

Building Division.

The Master Agreement and the most recent Task Order had a termination date of

June 30,  2019.    In order to keep up with current Land Development projects,
residential, commercial and industrial; staff is requesting that Council reinstate the
Master Agreement and approve Task Order No.  7 to provide professional services

within the Building Division.    

Task Order No. 7 is for services on a time and material basis with a not to exceed

amount of $ 400, 000,   Task Order No.  7 will be fully funded by plan check fees
collected from development and will only be paid when revenue has been received.
Sufficient funds have been included in fiscal year 2019- 20 approved budget and will

be paid from funds allocated in the Building Division professional services.

BACKGROUND:

While Interwest provides a variety of services, to date they have primarily performed
plan check services.  Under the Master Agreement, Interwest would be paid 65% of

the plan check fees collected by the City for projects they review.    Previously
Interwest has handled plan check review for River Islands development, complex

structural plan check for major commercial and industrial developments as well as

residential projects city- wide.    Developers have been, satisfied with the services

rendered. Below is a summary table of previously approved task orders to date:  ,

Task' Order No:° .   Date A"` 'roved;`    .  VUork xSco e'' Descri ' tion.: `<< '      ° -  `

1 07/ 18/ 16 Code Enforcement

2 07/ 18/ 16 Plan Check Services

3 04/ 17/ 17 Plan Check Services

4 01/ 18/ 19 Plan Check Services

5 02/ 12/ 19 Plan Check Services
6 04/ 08/ 19 Plan Check Services

97



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REINSTATE A MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT AND APPROVE TASK

ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  

Professional services are needed in the Building Division to keep up with current Land
Development projects, residential, commercial and industrial.  The ability to use the
services of outside consultants makes it possible to keep minimal permanent staff
without having to resort to layoffs if construction slows down.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Proposed Task Order No. 7 is for additional plan check services by Interwest for an
amount not to exceed $ 400, 000, will be fully funded by plan check fees collected
from development and will only be paid when revenue has been received. Sufficient
funds have been included in fiscal year 2019- 20 approved budget and will be paid

from funds allocated in the Building Division professional services.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Adopt Resolution to Reinstate Master Agreement and Approve Task Order No.

7 with Interwest Consulting Group to Provide Professional Services in . the
Building' Division

B.  Reinstate Master Agreement between the City of Lathrop and Interwest
Consulting Gr,oup to provide Plan Review,  Building Inspection and Permit
Technician Services.

C.  Task Order No. 7 with Interwest Consulting Group to Provide to provide Plan
Review, Building Inspection and Permit Technician Services

98



i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REINSTATE A MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT AND APPROVE TASK

ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP FOR PROFESSIONAL

SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

APPROVALS:      

g •  • I l

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

Cari Jam Date

Finance Administrative

Services irector

Q ` 9'     
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S• y
St J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

99



i

RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

REINSTATE MASTER AGREEMENT AND APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN

THE BUILDING DIVISION

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2016, Interwest Consulting Group ( Interwest) entered
into a Master Agreement and Task Order No. 1 and No. 2 with the City; and

WHEREAS, on April 17,  2017,  City Council approved Task Order No.  3 to

provide additional Building Division Professional Plan Check Services; and

WHEREAS, on January 18, 2018, the City issued Task Order No. 4 for Plan
Check Services to the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2018, the City issued Task Order No. 5 for Plan
Check Services to the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2019, the City issued Task Order No. 6 for Plan Check
Services in the Building Division; and

WHEREAS, additional professional services are needed in the Building Division
to keep up with current Land Development projects,  residential,  commercial and

industrial; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that Council reinstate the Master Agreement
and approve Task Order No.  7 to provide professional services within the Building
Division; and

WHEREAS, Task Order No: 7 will be fully funded by plan check fees collected
from development and will only be paid when revenue has been received; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds have been included in fiscal year 2019- 20

approved budget and will be paid from funds allocated in the Building Division
professional services.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve to reinstate a Master Agreement and approve Task
Order No. 7 with Interwest Consulting Group, to provide Professional Services in the
Building Division.

100



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of August,
2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSEfVT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TA FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

101



Attachment B

REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

CITY OF LATHROP AND INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP

TO PROVIDE PLAN REVIEW, BUILDING INSPECTION AND PERMIT

TECHNICIAN SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 12th

day of August 2019, is by
and between Interwest Consulting Group.  (" CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF

LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  Council approved a Master Agreement with Interwest Consulting
Group on July 18, 2018 that expired on June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CITY and CONSULTANT agree to reinstate the Master Consulting
Agreement and extend termination date to June 30, 2022 (" Agreement"); and

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Plan Review, Building Inspection and Permit
Technician Services in conformance with an approved Scope of Work submitted

by the CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services
in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT the amount indicated in each approved
Task Order,  for the Plan Review,  Building Inspection and Permit Technician
Services. City agrees to pay CONSULTANT within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of
billings containing all information required per Paragraph 5 below.  Compensation

for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.

In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included

in an approved Task Order Scope of Work unless CITY' s authorized representative

executes a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and
payment terms prior to the commencement of the work.

Page 1 of 11

102



i

CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTINGiAGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is August 12, 2019, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30, 2022.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the ferms and conditions of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.   As

an independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means
and methods to complete the scope of work describe in 'each approved Task Order

to the City's satisfaction.  CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at
any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks,  a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or for the entire Agreement,

unless modified by a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reporting

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor
the performance of this Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement.   If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, without requiring the City to process a reason or explanation
for its request.

The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,   of

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative:    Ron'   Beehler,    SE,    CBO,

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representative without the prior

written approval by the CITY. 

Page 2 of 11

103



i

CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein
may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY' S
authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S authorized

representative.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers

and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been

obtained for the subcontractor.  Verification of fhis insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers'   Compensation Insurance and Employer' s Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million

dollars.    In the alternative,  CONSULTANT may rely on a self-
insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT,  if a program of self- insurance is provided,  shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 11

104



i

CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING' AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one
million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement. If
Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate Iimit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence; limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including' death resulting therefrom,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non- owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANT.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary

insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4 of 11

105



i

CITY OF LATHROP - REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers

with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c)      Professional Liabilitv.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost
and expense,   shall maintain for the period covered by this
Agreement professional liability insurance for licensed professionals
performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per claim made and per policy
aggregate covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions,
as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the couerage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3.       If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claims made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT' S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage.

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

Page 5 of 11

106



CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY' s authorized r.epresentative,

CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers.   The. CITY' s authorized representative may condition
approval of an increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels

upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration,  and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all
respects to each of them.

e)      Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  ( a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

f)       In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates    ' compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder; it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful

and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Page 6 of 11

107



i

CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERIfVG PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

Acceptance by CITY of the work perforrmed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.    It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed . in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to

CONSULTANT' S profession.       I

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against a,ny and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising, out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct
or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,

or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for

any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its

officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable, bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.    

12)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Latfirop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.       
13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall

be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination; provided,  however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs,  computer software,  video and audio tapes,  and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

Page 7 of 11

108



CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH
INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

14)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change

Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or ( 4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service
by facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330
MAIN: ( 209) 941= 7430

CONSULTANT:    Interwest Consulting Group
Ron Beehler, SE, Regional Manager

1613 Santa Clara Drive, Suite 100

Roseville, CA 95661

Fed ID #

Bus License #

16)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

Page 8 of 11

109



CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that, this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.   

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority._

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the const'ruction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the
Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction,  reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable,  the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

Page 9 of 11

110



i

CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK

CONSULTING SERVICES

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent

contractor and not as an agent or employee of ClTY.

CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits
accorded or accruing to the City Council members,  officers or

employees of CITY, and CONSULTANT expressly waives any and
all claims to such right and benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last.  If the time in which an act is to

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a
legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.   In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s
fees, incurred or expended in connectioh with such action against

the non- prevailing party. 

17)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to
pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

18)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding. upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10 of 11

111



CITY OF LATHROP — REINSTATE MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING PLAN CHECK
CONSULTING SERVICES

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

7 --/ 

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Work Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:       City of Lathrop
Resolution No.     390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

COfVSULTANT:   Interwest Consulting Group
Ron Beehler, SE, Regional Manager

1613 Santa Clara Drive, Suite 100
Roseville, CA 95661

Fed I D #

Bus License #

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 11 of 11

112



Attachment C
I

1

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 7

PURSUANT TO REINSTATED MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT

DATED AUGUST 12, 2019 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP

TO PROVIDE PLAN REVIEW, BUILDING INSPECTION AND PERMIT
TECHNICIAN SERVICES

THIS TASK ORDER N0. 7, dated for convenience this 12th

day of August 2019 is
by and made and entered into by and between INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP

CONSULTANT")  and the CITY OF LATHROP,  a Galifornia municipal corporation
CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2016, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement
and Task Order No.  1 and No.  2  (" AGREEMENT")  with the CITY,  by which the
CONSULTANT has agreed to provide plan review,  building inspection and permit
technician services; and

WHEREAS, on April 17, 2017, City Council approved Task Order No. 3 to provide
additional Building Division Professional Plan Check Services; and

WHEREAS, on January 18, 2018, the City issued Task Order No. 4 for Plan Check
Services to the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2018, the City issued Task Order No. 5 for Plan
Check Services to the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2019, the City issued Task Order No. 6 for Plan Check
Services in the Building Division; and

WHEREAS, on August 12, 2019,  City Council approved to reinstate a Master
Agreement and extend termination date to June 30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT submitted a scope of work as shown in Exhibit "A";
and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Building Division Professional Plan Check Services, which are required by this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such plan review,  building
inspection and permit technician services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms
and conditions;

Page 1 of 3

113



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST; CONSULTING GROUP

PROFESSIONAL PLAN CHECK SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DIVISION

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation of Master Aqreement

This Task Order No. 7 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and
conditions set forth in the Reinstated Master Consulting Agreement for plan
review,   building inspection and permit technician services,   unless

specifically modified by this Task Order.

2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform plan review,  building inspection and
permit technician services in accordance with the scope of work and fee

proposal attached hereto as Exhibit "A" to this Task Order.

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance
with the upmost standards of its profession and to the CITY'S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

1
The effective date of this Task Order No. 7 is August 12, 2019, and it shall

terminate no later than June 30, 2022.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
not to exceed  $ 400, 000 for the Plan Review,  Building Inspection and
Permit Technician Services, at the detailed rates detailed in Exhibit A.

CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum due and payable within     
thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to
Paragraph 5 below.  Compensation for any task must be equal to or less
than the percentage of task complete.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be
entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A";  unless a

written change order or authorization describing the extra work and
payment terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized representative
prior to the commencement of the work.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page2of3

114



CITY OF LATHROP— TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP

PROFESSIONAL PLAN CHECK SERVICES IN THE BUILDING,' DIVISION

6)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represe nt and warrant that they
have the right, power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the
CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
C•    

7  9
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Accepted by:
Resolution No:     City of Lathrop`

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Interwest Consulting Group
Ron Beehler, SE, Regional Manager

1613 Santa Clara Drive, Suite 100

Roseville, CA 95661

Fed I D #

Bus License #

Signature Date

Print Name and title)

Page 3 of 3

115



i

Exhibit A
I

INTERWEST      { o iJ 5 V t 7 I N r G H G V P

July 26, 2019

Mr. Michael King
Assistant Public Works Director

Lathrop City Hall
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

RE:     Proposal to Provide Plan Review, Building Inspection and Permit Technician Services

Dear Mr. King,

Interwest Consulting Group Company, is pleased to submit our proposal to provide Building Inspection, Permit
Technician and Plan Review Services to the City of Lathrop, as needetl, to comply with State laws. We understand
with the improving economy and recent changes in State Law, the City of Lathrop is seeking the services of building
and safety consulting firms to address accessibility, peak work load demands and to maintain timely services. We
understand the City is seeking consulting firms to provide professional services for the plan review of commercial and
residential structures to verify compliance with the most current adopted versions of the California Builtling Standards
Code, Lathrop City Ordinances, and relevant State and Federal Laws. We further understantl that services may
include coordination between City agencies, designers, and builders in the community

All proposed services will be directed from our local Roseville office. The team members will be carefully screened
and selected specifically for their unique experience, licenses, certifications and proposed significant contribution to
the City. Of special note is the high degree of work experience and familiarity with building department policies and
procedures gained thru experience providing services similar to those being requestetl.

We view the key elements to serving the City of Lathrop as follows:

Providing qualified and experienced staff to perform professional building permit processing,
inspection and plan check services.

Providing qualified and experienced staff to provide plan reviews particularly Certified Accessibility
Specialists and Licensed Structural Engineers.

Providing a high level of customer service for internal and external customers.
Balancing the needs of the community by providing as needed services to address peak workloatl
demands, in order to maintain reasonable response times for department services.

Interwest Consulting Group provides building plan review, building permit processing and inspection services to
many communities throughout California and presently provides these services to the City of Clovis, City of Modesto,
City of Manteca, City of Tracy, City of Turlock, City of Sonora, Fresno County and many more central and northern
California communities.

I

116



I will serve as the main point of contact for all services. Please call me at 916. 204. 3178 if you have any
questions related to this proposal or would like to tliscuss any of the services provided by Interwest
Consulting Group.

Sincerely,

1    /./ `'"'i   =

Ron eehler, SE, CBO

Director of Building Safety Services
Interwest Consulting Group
rbeehler a(,interwest4rp. com

916. 204. 3178

Interwest Consulting Group 1613 Santa Clara Drive Suite 100 Roseville, CA 95661

117



i

INTRODUCTION

I

Interwest Consulting Group has been in business just over 14 years and currentiy; employs over 400 employees
spanning a multitude of disciplines, roles and job placements to municipalities within code enforcement, building
safety and public works departments throughout California. We work hard to provide professional building safety
services with a customer service focus in the manner expected by our clients.  

We specialize in tailoring staffing and services to fit client needs. When work levels a e high, we increase staffing to
meet the demand. When work slows down, we can fade into the background without compromising service. Our
services can quickly grow to provide an entire team of experts on a project or satisfy a client need with a single
individual. We can also draw upon our many other professionals located within offices throughout California if
requiretl.

We offer top personnel with extensive experience. All are seasoned jurisdiction' al staffs who understand the
procedures, policies and deadlines necessary to keep governments running smoothly. We work strictly for city and
county municipalities thus avoiding any conflict of interest. Since we work so closely with our clients, we know
successful customer service is best delivered by people who shine in their professions. All of our staff offers
exceptional experience and long- standing relationships within the industry.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

We understand the City is looking for a consultant who can provitle an experienced team to provide as needed plan
review, permit technician and building inspection services. Our personnel will seamlessly integrate and coordinate
with the City departments and provide uninterrupted, efficient, antl cost-effective building department services to the
public.

Interwest Consulting Group has a proven track record providing these same services to jurisdictions and has the
resources to remain flexible with experienced staff that is available to provide the services immediately to the City of

Lathrop.

The proposed team is comprised of highly experienced, customer-service oriented professionals who have
successfully served many client jurisdictions. We view our role and mission is to provide the following:

A feam of professionals with high- level experience and skills in successful

managemenf of building departmenf services, staff with a customer service focus and      ,
thorough knowledge of building deparfinent policies and procedures, and promoting
cooperafion and partnership with other Cify departments and outside agencies.

Licensed Plan Review Engineers and/ or ICC certified Plans Examiners for thorough

and timely plan reviews fo ensure compliance to all Building Codes and City and Stafe
laws and requirements..

Licensed Sfructural Engineers who have extensive experience with large and complex

projects.

CASp Certified Staff who are intimafely familiar with fhe regulatory requiremenfs related
fo ensuring buildings comply wifh the latest accessibility guidelines and requirements.

Certified Inspector( s) with broad experience in jurisdicfional procedures and fhe highest

commifinent to cusfomer service.  

Services in a cost- effective manner that remains within budget constraints.

I

Interwest Consulting Group 1613 Santa Clara Drive Suite 100 Roseville, CA 95661

118



Provide pick up and delivery of all plans fo and from the Cify af no cost fo the Cify.

COMP@NI  eA'" ION

For complete plan review services for projects reviewetl in our offices, we propose a fee equal to 65% of the plan

review fees based on your adopted fee schedule. Plan review services will include an initial first review and two back

check reviews of the plans. Any additional plan review services required beyond the thirtl review will be billetl at our
hourly rates listed within the Schetlule of Hourly Billing Rates shown below.

For in- house services, we propose utilizing the hourly rates listed within the Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates for the
specific classification utilizetl for services. We are willing to negotiate a mutually acceptable fee for large projects and
special projects on a case- by- case basis.

For structural only and other partial reviews such as foundation only, preliminary reviews or others, we propose to
negotiate a mutually agreeable fixetl fee basetl on the specific services requested or provide services on an hourly
basis using the rates listed in our Schetlule of Hourly Billing Rates shown below.

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLI IG RATES

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY BILLING RATE

Licensed Engineer Plans Examiner.......................................................................................$ 125

ICC Certifedd Plans Examiner.............................................................................................$  95

CASp.............................................................................................................................$  90

BuildingInspector.............................................................................................................$  88

PermitTechnician.............................................................................................................$  62

Code Enforcement Officer...................................................................................................$  90

Expedited Plan Review....................................... 140% of the the Plan Review Fee for the specific project. Expedite

services utilize turn- around times of one half the agreed upon fimes for non- expedife projects.

InspectionlPermit Technician Overtime............................................................ 140% of Above Listed Hourly Rates

Miscellaneous charges will include:

Mileage within the City for Inspections........................................................................ Current IRS Vehicle Mileage

Rate

Interwest Consulting Group 1613 Santa Clara Drive Suite 100 Roseville, CA 95661

119



120



ITEM 4. 9

CITY Ma4NAGER' S I EPORT

AIJGUST 12, 20 L9, CIT`l COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIiVG

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC RIGFiT- OF- WA Y AND

PUBLIC UTILITI(       E/ SEMEIVT DEDICATIOIVS

ASSOCIATED WITH BUILDINC   PEIaMIT 19- 0218

LOC TED 4T 14226 A\/ OIV AVENUE

RECOMMEND TION:     a dopt Resolution Accepting Dedication of Public

Right- of-Way anel Public Utility Easement for Avon
Avenue Associated with  uilding Permit 19- 021
Located at 14226 Avon 4venue

SUMI 7ARY:

German Sainez,  legal landowner of 14226 Avon Avenue, has submitted a building
permit application to demolish an existing structure and construct a new

manufactured home on the 1- acre lot.   Pursuant to City of Lathrop Municipal Code
Section 12. 12. 070 and Map Act Article 3, Section 66475, developers are required to
grant to the City all required easements and rights- of- way necessary for the
installation of streets, utilities and public service facilities.

Mr. Sainez has offered a Dedication of Grant Deed for right- of-way and public utility
easement for 14226 Avon Avenue.  Staff is requesting that City Council formally
accept the dedication of public right- of- way and public utility easement for Avon
Avenue associated with Building Permit 19- 0218 located at 14226 Avon Avenue.

BACKGROUND:

German Sainez,  legal landowner of 14226 Avon Avenue, has submitted a building
permit application to demolish an existing structure and construct a new

manufactured home on the 1- acre lot.   Pursuant to City of Lathrop Municipal Code
Section 12. 12. 070 and Map Act Article 3, Section 66475, developers are required to
grant to the City all required easements and rights- of-way necessary for the
installation of streets, utilities and public service facilities.

Pursuant to City of Lathrop Municipal Code Section 12. 12. 040, Mr. Sainez will enter

into Deferred Frontage Improvement Agreement 19- 04 ( DFIA 19- 04) with the City of
Lathrop to ensure his contribution to the ultimate design and construction of Avon
Avenue.  The ultimate construction of Avon Avenue including but not limited to curb,
gutter,  sidewalk,  pavement,  and utility improvements will be deferred until it is
determined that drainage facilities are adequate to support the area and the

improvements can be made as an area project rather than on an individual basis. Mr.

Sainez has offered dedication of 5 feet of public right- of-way and 10 feet of public
utility easement to the City which provides adequate street width for the ultimate
improvements.

121



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGU T 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- WAY AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

DEDICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH BUILDING PERMIT 19- 0218 LOCATED AT

14226 AVON AVENUE

Staff is requesting that City Council formally accept the dedication of public right- of-
way and public utility easement for Avon Avenue associated with Building Permit 19-
0218 located at 14226 Avon Avenue.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The dedications of public right- of- way and public utility easement are required for
development pursuant to the City of Lathrop Municipal Code and must be accepted
prior to the issuance of final occupancy.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTACHMENTS:   

A.       Resolution Accepting Dedication of Public Right- of-Way and Public Utility
Easement for Avon Avenue Associated with Building Permit 19- 0218 Located
at 14226 Avon Avenue

B.       Offer of Dedication of Grant Deed for 14226 Avon Avenue between the City of
Lathrop and Germain Sainez

1•

122



CITI' MAIVAGEI2' S REPOItT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL lZECl1LAR MEETIMG

ACCEPTe4NCE OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- 1111AY AND PUBLIC IJTILITY EASEINENT

DEDICATIONS ASSOCI 4TED WITH BUILDIIIlG PERMIT 19- 0218 LOC/ATED AT

14226 AVON / A9/ EIVUE

4PPR0\/ ALS:

7 1 j
Brad T or Date

Associate Engineer

12, /,  
Mi ael ing Date

Assis ant Director of Public Works

l

Cari e Date

Finance dministrative

Services irector

Z. ? " l'/

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

t

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

123



RESOLUTION NO. 19-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

DEDICATION OF PUBLIC RIGHT- OF- WAY AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT FOR

AVON AVENUE ASSOCIATED WITH BUILDING PERMIT 19- 0218 LOCATED AT

14226 AVON AVENUE

WHEREAS,  German Sainez,  legal landowner of 14226 Avon Avenue,  has

submitted a building permit application to demolish an existing structure and
construct a new manufactured home on the 1- acre lot; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to City of Lathrop Municipal Code Section 12. 12. 070 and
Map Act Article 3, Section 66475, developers are required to grant to the City all
required easements and rights- of- way necessary for the installation of streets,
utilities and public service facilities; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to City of Lathrop Municipal Code Section 12. 12. 040, Mr.
Sainez will enter into Deferred Frontage Improvement Agreement 19- 04 ( DFIA 19-

04)  with the City of Lathrop to ensure contribution to the ultimate design and
construction of Avon Avenue; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Sainez has offered dedication of 5 feet of public right- of- way
and 10 feet of public utility easement to the City which provides adequate street
width for the ultimate improvements; and

WHEREAS, Staff is requesting that City Council formally accept the dedication
of public right- of- way and public utility easement for Avon Avenue associated with
Building Permit 19- 0218 located at 14226 Avon Avenue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby accept the dedication of public right-of-way and public utility easement
for Avon Avenue associated with Building Permit 19- 0218 located at 14226 Avon
Avenue.

124



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th

day of August 2019,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

125



i

Attachment B

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:  

City of Lathrop, CA

WHEN RECORDED, PLEASE MAIL TO: 

City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 9533C

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE IS FOR RECORDER' S USE

Offer of Dedication of Grant Deed

14226 Avon Avenue)

THIS INTRUMENT BENEFITS THE CITY ONLY. NO FEE REQUIRED.

THE UNDERSIGNED GRANTOR( S) DECLARE( S):    DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX IS$ 0. 00 R& TC Transfer to Government Acaencv

computed on full value of property conveyed, or

computed on fuli value less liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale.
Unincorporated area      ( X) City of Lathrop

For a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
German Sainez, legal landowner,

hereby grants to

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation,

that property in City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County, State of California, described as:

See attached Exhibit" A" and Exhibit" B" attached hereto and made a part hereof*'*

f

Z 3  --,/

126



CALIFORN9A ACKIV0INLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identiry of the individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

CountyoP l l .TOCr9Ltil

On 7 Z3 )  1 before me,    '    t  i

Date Here lnsert Name and Tit of t e O cer

personally appeared Li Vy1G1'/ 1       Gi/ rl P

Name( s) of Signer( s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name( s) is/ are subscribed

to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ she/ they executed the same in his/ her/ their

authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/ her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person( s), or the entity
upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the

laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

o.,    RAVI HARIT

4 ;

s'' `     

Notary Public- California WITNESS my hand and official seal.
San Joaquin County      >

Commission R 2287850

My Comm. Expires May 9, 2023

Signature G

Place Notary Seal and/ or Stamp Above S/gnptu e of Notary PubliC

OPTIONAL

Completing. this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date:      Number of Pages:

Signer( s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Claimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:      Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer— Title( s):    Corporate Officer— Title( s):

Partner—  Limited  General Partner—  Limited  General

Individual Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator     Trustee Guardian or Conservator

Other:      Other:

Signer is Representing:    Signer is Representing:

02018 National Notary Association

127



i

Olong Engineer, Inc.
4578 Feather River Drive. Suit A Zachary C. Wong P. E., P.. s.

Stockton, Califo nia 95219

Phone( 209j 476- 0011

JUNE 20, 2019

EXHIBIT " A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR RIGHT- OF- lNAY DEDICATION

8 10- FOOT-10lIiDE PUBLIC UTiLiTY EASEIUIENT

RIGHT- OF-WAY DEDICATlON:

TFIE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BEPLOW IS DEDICO TED i4S AN EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC PUI POSES:

BEING A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP

1 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, iVIOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF

LATHROP, COUlVTY OF SAN JOAQUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, MORE

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THE WEST 5 FEET OF LOT 68 OF TRACT NO. 142, LATHROP ACRES,

ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL MAP OR PLAT THEREOF FILED FOR RECORD

APRIL 11, 1947 IN VOLUME 11 AT PAGE 136, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

CONTAINING 750 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

10- FOO- WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT:

BEING A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP

1 SOIJTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF
LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN, STATE F CALIFORNIA, MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THE EAST 10 FEET OF THE WEST 15 FEET OF LOT 68 OF TRACT NO. 142,

LATHROP ACRES, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL MAP OR PLAT THEREOF

FILED FOR RECORD APRIL 11, 1947 IN VOLUME 11 AT PAGE 136, SAN JOAQUIN
COUNTY RECORDS.

CONTAINING 1, 500 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

128



ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT ENTITLED EXHIBIT " B" WHICH BY THIS

REFERENCE IS MADE A PART HEREOF.

PREPARED BY:

p uNn S
RY C 

A`
F

9

C   - w
7

W ir    1' lr3hZ0  

ZA HA C. WONG, L. S. 7600 qj.      
DA E: JUNE 20, 2019 Ofi L f

129



N

N

WARREN AVE.    cri       o

w

o
a

S 

O

LLi

z v

Q Q v ay
IAMD 3

9G
v YC,   

O

1 z.- S1-

U W 9.      1

CAL'

SHILLING AVE.  

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

WONG ENGINEERS,   INC.    
EXHI IT  " B"

PLANNING ENGINEERING SURVEYING

4578 FEATNER RIVER DRIVE,  SU1TE A RIGHT—OF- WAY DEDICATION   &
STOCKTON,  CALIFORNIA  ( 209)  476- 0011 10'- VVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
JUNE 20,  2019 1 OF 2

130



yLOT 6'

50'     o

S89' 32 00" W 293. 40' y

278. 40'

I

I
PROPOSED 10'- WIDE P. U. E.    f

o

1, 500 SQUARE FEET y
y I

w I
LOT6B

o    
o LATfIROP ACl' S' o

I f P»- 136 p 40'       yQ N    1 

cn I
1"  =  40'     

PROPOSED 5'- WIDE DEDICATION

I 750 SQUARE FEET

a

I
284. 30'  y

N89' 32' 00" E 299. 30'

y 50'  
LOT 69

y

WONG ENGINEERS,   INCo EXHI IT  "„
PLANNING ENGINEERING SURVEYING

4578 FEATHER RIVER DRIVE,  SUITE A RIGI' T—OF—VVAY DEDICATION dc

STOCKTON,  CALIFORNIA  ( 209)  476- 0011 Q'— l9DE Pl1 LOC UT LB1"Y EASEN1EfVT
JUNE 20,  2019 2 OF 2

131



132



ITEI I 4. 10

CITY MAN GER' S REPORT

UGUST 12, 019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR N9EETING

ITEN1: APPRO iE TASK ORDE6Z NO. 3 TO THE MASTER
CONSULTANT 14GREENlENT WITH VALI COOPER

ASSOCIATES,      IIVC.,      TO PIZOVIDE

CONSTRUCTYOIV INSPECTION SERVICE9 FOR

FtIVEIS ISL.ANDS DE\/ ELOPMENT STAGE 2Q AND

PHASE iB IMPROVEMEIVTS

ttECOI IMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 3
to the Master Consultant Agreement dated,

7uly 9,  2018, with Vali Cooper & Associates,

Inc., to Provide Construction f lanagement and

Inspection Services for River Islands

Development Stage 2A and Phase 1B

Improvement§

SUMMA9tY:

Construction inspection services are needed to oversee construction of public

improvements within the River Islands Development Stage 2A and Phase 1B areas.

Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution approving Task Order No. 3 with Vali
Cooper & Associates, Inc. ( VCA). The scope of services for Task Order No. 3 is within

the authorized Master Agreement for Construction Management and Inspection

Services dated July 9, 2018. Task Order No. 3 includes inspections for Golden Valley
Parkway utility improvements, J- 7 Street improvements, and the installation of a

pedestrian bridge in the River Islands Development Stage 2B area. The cost of Task

Order No.  3 is  $ 69, 993 and is fully funded by inspection fees collected from the
developer. Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution approving Task Orders
No.  3 with VCA to provide construction inspection services for the River Islands

Development Stage 2A and Phase 16 Improvements.  The cost of the inspection

services required are as follows:

Construction Ins ection Services for Task Order 3 Costs

1B — Golden Valle Parkwa Utilit Im rovements 43, 218

1B — J- 7 Street Im rovements 17, 535

2A — Pedestrian Brid e 9, 240

Total 69, 393

1CKGR0l1ND:

On July 9, 2018, City Council approved a Master Agreement with VCA for Construction
Management and Inspection Services and Task Order No.  1 for the River Islands

Development Project. Task Order No. 1 included oversight for 1, 182 homes that were

built within Stage 2B area. Task Order No. 2 included the construction management

and inspection of improvements to Street A,  backbone infrastructure,  and River

Islands Parkway.

133



CITY MAN GEf' S I EPOI T PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COU( VCYL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE ' TASK OIZDER NO. 3 al! lITFI \/ 4LI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC., TO

PRO\/ IDE CONSTRUCTIOfd INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RIVER ISLAf fDS
STAGE 2/ A AND PHASE 1B IMPRO/ EMEMTS

Currently,   construction inspection services are needed to oversee utility

improvements in Golden Valley Parkway,  improvements to J- 7 Street,  and the

installation of a pedestrian bridge in Stage 2B of River Islands. Staff is requesting

City Council adopt a resolution approving Task Order IVo. 3 with VCA for $ 69, 993 to

provide construction inspection services for the River Islands Development Stage 2A
and Phase 1B Improvements.

Below is a summary table of previously approved task orders to date:

Task Order Date A roved Amount Task Descri tion

1 7/ 9/ 18 1, 141, 402
Construction Inspection

Services

2 4/ 8/ 19 330, 200
Construction Inspection

Services

1B — Golden Valley
Parkway Utility

3
Pending Approval

6 Q3
Im rovements

with Item 1B — J- 7 Street

Im rovements

2A — Pedestrian Brid e

Total for Task Orders 1- 3 = $ 1, 541, 595

REASON FOR IZEGOMMENDATION:

In order to keep up with the fast pace of construction in the River Islands
Development, the City needs additional support for construction inspection services.

FISCAL YMP14CT:

Construction inspection services for River Islands Development Stage 2A

Improvements and Phase 1B Improvements will be funded from inspection fees paid

by River Islands Development. The cost of VCA' s Task Order No. 3 in the amount of
69, 993 will be paid from funds allocated in fiscal year 2019- 20 Construction

Management Division professional services account. Below is a summary of the costs
for inspection services required:

Im rovements Costs

1B — Golden Valle Parkwa Utilit Im rovements 43, 218

1B — J- 7 Street Im rovements 17, 535

2A — Pedestrian Brid e 9, 240

Total for Task Order 3 69, 993

134



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  '

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 3 WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC., TO

PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RIVER ISLANDS

STAGE 2A AND PHASE 1B IMPROVEMENTS

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Task Order No.  3 to the Master Consultant Agreement

dated, July 9, 2018, with Vali Cooper & Associates, Inc., to Provide Construction

Management and Inspection Services for River Islands Development Stage 2A

and Phase 1B Improvements

B.  Task Order No. 3 to the Master Agreement dated, July 9, 2018, between the City
of Lathrop and Vali Cooper & Associates, Inc.    

135



r_ _    __ _

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT IPAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 3 WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC., TO

PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RIVER ISLANDS

STAGE 2A AND PHASE 1B IMPROVEMENTS

APPROV.'

n Medin Date

Assistant Engineer

g-  - t

Michael King bate
Assistant Public Works Director

1
Cari James Date

Finance & Ad   '  is ative

Services Director

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8•? 1q
teph      .   alvatore Date

City Manager

c

136



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 3 TO THE MASTER CONSULTANT AGREEMENT

DATED, 7ULY 9, 2018, WITH VALI COOPER& ASSOCIATES, INC., TO PROVIDE

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT STAGE 2A AND PHASE iB IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, the River Islands Development h,as been moving forward and
plans for River Islands Development Stage 2A and Phase, 1B improvements are

approved; and

WHEREAS, in order to keep up with the fast pace of construction in the River
Islands Development, the City needs additional support for construction inspection
services; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved a Master Consultant Agreement with Vali
Cooper and Associates, Inc., to provide construction and inspection services for the

River Islands Development on July 9, 2018; and

WHEREAS, staff requests that the City Council approve Task Order No. 3 for
construction inspection services for the River Islands Development Stage 2A and

Phase 1B which includes utility improvements for Golden Valley Parkway,
improvements to ]- 7 Street, and the installation of a pedestrian bridge for a total not

to exceed amount of $ 69, 993; and

WHEREAS, the cost for Task Order No. 3 is fully funded by the developer of
the River Islands Development Stage 2A and Phase 1B improvements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves Task Order No. 3 with Vali Cooper and Associates, Inc., to

provide Construction Inspection Services for the River Islands Development stage 2A

and Phase 1B improvements in the amount of $ 69, 993.

137



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th

day of August, 2019, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

IVOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO  ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

138



CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 3

PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED

JULY 9, 2018 WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC., TO

PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS SERVICES AT RIVER
ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 3, dated for convenience this
12th

day of August, 2019,
is by and made and entered into by and between Vali Cooper & Associates,  Inc.

CONSULTANT"),  formally Vali Cooper and Associates,  Inc.,  and the CITY OF

LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2018, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement and
Task Order No.  1  (" AGREEMENT") with the CITY,  by which the CONSULTANT has
agreed to provide Construction Inspection Services at the River Islands

Development area; and

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2019, City Council approved Task Order No. 2 to provide
Construction Inspection Services at the River Islands Development area; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Construction Inspection Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,   CONSULTANT is willing to render such CONSTRUCTION

INSPECTION SERVICES, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation of Master Aqreement

This Task Order No. 3 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and
conditions set forth in the Master Agreement for Construction Inspection

Services for the River Islands Development project,  unless specifically

modified by this Task Order.

Page 1 of 3

139



CITY OF LATHROP— TASK ORDER NO. 3 WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

FOR CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS SERVICES AT RIVER ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT AREA

2)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Construction Inspection Services in accordance

with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit" A" and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees
to diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its

profession and to CITY' S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term.   .       

The effective date of this Task Order No. 3 is August 12, 2019, and it

shall terminate no later than June 30, 2020.

4)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
not to exceed $ 69, 993 for the CONSTRUCTION I NSPECTION SERVICES

as described in Exhibit " A" of Task Order No. 3 pursuant to the Master

Agreement dated,  July 9,  2018.  CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of

billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage
of task complete.     In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation beyond what is expressed in this agreement and Exhibit " A",

unless City has authorized representative has executed a written change
order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms prior
to the commencement of the work.

5)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement,  CONSULTANT shall
receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall
not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurance have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT; for any services prior to
issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right,  power,  legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 2 of 3

140



i

CITY OF LATHROP— TASK ORDER fVO. 3 WITH VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
FOR CONSTRUCTIOIV INSPECTIONS SERVICES AT RIVER   .: ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT AREA

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Accepted By:
Reso. No.     City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:   Vali Cooper & Associates, Inc.

Lincoln Leaman

1760 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 290

Sacramento, CA 95833

Fed ID #

Bus License #

Signature Date

Print Name and title)

Page 3 of 3

141



EXHIBITA

VALI COC PER & ASSCaCIATES, li.   

CONSTRUCTlON & PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

City of Lathrop

River Islands,  Stage 1 B   2A

Inspection Scope and Fee

Task Order # 3

Date: Julv 24'. 2019

Scope of Services: Perform inspection for installation of utility improvements for Golden

Valley Parkway, improvements for J- 7 Street and installation of the Pedestrian Bridge, as
directed by City of Lathrop and in accordance with Task Order# 3 to Master Agreement
dated 07/ 09/ 18.

There is no overtime included for this project.

No Haz- mat training or equipment included in this proposal.

Hourly rates include all standard inspection and safety equipment, cell phones, computers, and
other small incidentals.    

This is a Prevailing Wage project and all field inspectors will be paid in accordance with the
prevailing wage rate established for the contract this work is performed under. Prevailing
Wage Rates are based on DIR Prevailing Wage Determination per existing contract RFP
date.

Overtime Rates: Overtime is paid per State requirements, which generally requires payment

ofovertime( 1. 5 times hourly rate) to non-exempt employees for any hours in excess of eight
8) hours per day or forty( 40) hours per week, and double time for any hours in excess of

twelve( 12) hours per day or work on Sunday or holidays.

All costs for field office space, field office equipment, and technical field equipment will be

billed and reimbursed at the actual lease/ rental rates, with no mark- up. Cost for materials
such as prints, film, developing, extensive copying, ( ie. items that will become property of the
client at the end of the project) and will be billed and reimbursed at the actual cost, with 5%

mark- up.

m This proposal is an extension of our existing contract and proposal. All terms/ conditions
therein are included herein by reference.   

Breakdown of fee on following page, as provided by City of Lathrop.

1760 CREEKSIDE OAKS ORIVE, SUITE 290•'• SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 :• ( 916) 925- 0952 •:• FAX: ( 916) 925- 0954

142



VALI COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION & PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

City of Lathrop

River Islands,  Stage 1 B  & 2A

Inspection Scope and Fee

Task Order #3

Im rovements Costs

1B - Golden Valle Parkwa Utilit Im rovements 43 218

16 - J- 7 Street Im rovements 17 535

2A - Pedestrian Brid e 9 240

Total for Task Order 3 69 993

Lincoln Leaman, PE
DigitallysignedbyLincolnLeaman

DN: cn= Lincoln Leaman, o= TRC, ou= CS

West, email= lleaman@trescolutions. com,

c= US

Date: 2019. 08.01103432-07'00'

Vice President

Vali Cooper& Associates, a TRC Company

1760 CREEKSIDE OAKS DRIVE, SUITE 290•:• SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 •:• ( 916} 9 5- Q952 •:• fAX: ( 916) 925-0954

143



144



ITEM 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

l4UGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO TITLE 2,  CHAPTER

2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM AND TITLE 3, CHAPTER

3. 30 INFORMAL BIDDING OF THE LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE CHAPTERS IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA UNIFORM

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT

RECOMMENDATION:  _   Council to Consider the Following:

1.      Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.      Introduction and First Reading of an

Ordinance Amendment to Title 2,   Chapter

2. 36 Purchasing System and Title 3,  Chapter

3. 30 Informal Bidding of the Lathrop
Municipal Code to Update the Chapters in

Accordance with the California Uniform Public

Construction Cost Accounting Act

SUMMARY:      

Staff proposes amendments to Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)  3. 30 to reference

recent changes to the State of California' s Uniform Public Construction Cost

Accounting Procedures set forth in the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting
Act.  StafF also proposes amendments to Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System to
reference LMC 3. 30 procedures.

Staff recommends Council hold a public hearing and introduce an ordinance to
amend LMC 2. 36 Purchasing System and LMC 3. 30 Informal Bidding in accordance
with the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

BACKG ROU N D:

On November 28, 2006, the City Council elected to become subject to the State of
California' s Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures set forth in tfie
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

On December 5, 2006, the City Council adopted Ordinance 06- 264 adding Chapter
3. 30 Informal Bidding to the LMC. Chapter 3. 30 allows City employees to perform
public project work under $ 30, 000 without a formal bidding requirement.  It also

established informal bidding procedures for contracting work between $ 30, 000 and

125, 000 in accordance with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

145



1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
ORDINANCE AMENDING LMC 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM AND LMC 3. 30
INFORMAL BIDDING

The state has since in c̀reased the limits allowing City employees to perform public
project work under $ 60, 000 without a formal bidding requirement and allowing for
informal bidding procedures for public project work between   $ 60, 000 and

200, 000.  Therefore,  stafF requests City Council consider amending LMC Chapter
3. 30 Informal Bidding to update these thresholds in accordance with the current
State of California' s Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures of

60, 000 and $ 200, 000 to take advantage of the higher informal bidding thresholds.

Additionally,  Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System of the LMC does not reference the
alternative Informal Bidding process of Chapter 3. 30   ,and therefore staff

recommends amending Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System to reference Chapter 3. 30.

REASOIV FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Amendments to LMC 3. 30 Informal Bidding are necessary to update the limit to
which City employees can perform public project work and the thresholds for
informal bidding.  By increasing these limits,  more projects will be eligible for

informal bidding.  Informal bidding helps expedite project delivery by reducing the
time,  effort,  and expense associated with bidding projects under  $ 200, 000 and

simplifies administration for those projects.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with the adoption of the proposed

ordinan'ce amending LMC 2. 36 Purchasing System and LMC 3. 30 Informal Bidding.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Ordinance Amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System and Title 3,
Chapter 3. 30 Informal Bidding of the Lathrop Municipal Code to Update the
Chapters in Accordance with the California Uniform Public Construction Cost

Accounting Act

146



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ORDINANCE AMENDING LMC 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM AND LMC 3. 30

INFORMAL BIDDING

APPROVALS:

g /

avi son
n Date

Princ Engineer

g- -

Michael King Date

Assistant Dir cto Public Works

f
Cari Jame Date

Finance Administrative

Services irector

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

7'
tep Salvatore Date

City Manager

147



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING

TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM AND TITLE 3, CHAPTER 3. 30

INFORMAL BIDDING OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE

CHAPTERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA UNIFORM PUBLIC

CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2006, the City Council elected to become subject
to the State of California' s Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures
set forth in the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act; and

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2006, the City Council adopted Ordinance 06- 264
adding Chapter 3. 30 Informal Bidding to the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC); and

WHEREAS, Chapter 3. 30 allows City employees to perform public project work
under $ 30, 000 without a formal bidding requirement and established informal bidding
procedures for public project work between $ 30, 000 and  $ 125, 000 in accordance

with the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act; and

WHEREAS, the state has since increased the limits allowing City employees
to perform public project work under $ 60, 000 without formal bidding requirement
and allowing for informal bidding procedures for contracting public project work
between $ 60, 000 and $ 200, 000; and

WHEREAS, staff requests City Council consider amending LMC Chapter 3. 30
Informal Bidding to update these limits in accordance with the current State of
California' s Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures of $60, 000 and

200, 000 to take advantage of the higher informal bidding thresholds; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System of the LMC does not reference
the alternative Informal Bidding process of Chapter 3. 30 and therefore staff

recommends amending Chapter 2. 36 Purchasing System to reference Chapter 3. 30.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Note:  additions are shown below in underline font,  deletions are shown in

strikeout font.     

Chapter 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM

2. 36. 050 Purchase procedure limits.

A.    General. Except as otherwise provided for Public Project" contracts defined

in Chapter 3. 30, the following purchase procedure limits shall apply for the purchase
of any supplies, equipment and/ or services,  as the case may be,  pursuant to the

procedure described in this chapter.

148



4B.     No Purchase Order Required Procedure. For the purchase of any covered
supplies,  equipment,  and/ or services with a purchase price of two thousand four

hundred ninety- nine dollars and ninety- nine cents ($ 2, 499. 99) or less, exclusive of

sales tax, use tax, shipping,  handling or delivery charges, department heads may
exercise discretion . in selecting and purchasing such supplies,  equipment and/ or

services.  Purchases falling within this subsection shall not be required to obtain a
purchase order, as described in section 2. 36. 070.

C.      Verbal Quotation Procedure. For the purchase of any covered supplies,
equipment, and/ or services with a purchase price, exclusive of sales tax,  use tax,

shipping, handling or delivery charges between two thousand five hundred dollars
2, 500. 00) to four thousand nine hundred ninety- nine dollars and ninety- nine cents
4, 999. 99), department heads shall obtain verbal ( or written) quotations from three

vendors. The department head shall then review the quotations, make a selection,

and attach copies of any written quotations to the purchase order form, as described
in Section 2. 36. 070.

D.     Written Quotation Procedure. For the purchase of any covered supplies,
equipment, and/ or services with a purchase price, exclusive of sales tax, use tax,

shipping, handling or delivery charges from five thousand ($ 5, 000. 00) to seventy-
five thousand dollars  ($ 75, 000. 00).   Department heads shall then review the

quotations,  make a selection,  and attach copies of the written quotations to the

purchase order form, as described in Section 2. 36. 070.

2. 36. 060 Formal bidding procedures.  .

A.       General.  Except as otherwise provided by this chapter or in  ec- iet

QChapter 3. 30,  purchases and contracts for supplies, services, equipment,

and sale of personal property of estimated value of seventy- five thousand

75, 000. 00) dollars or more shall be by written contract with the lowest or highest
responsible bidder, as the case may be, pursuant to the procedure described in this
chapter.

Chapter 3. 30 INFORMAL BIDDING

3. 30. 010 Application.

Contracts for work of e re two hundred thousand dollars

200, 000. 00 or less shall be governed by the Uniform Public

Construction Cost Accounting Act, Division 2, Part 3, Chapter 2, of the Public Contract
Code, Section 22000 et seq. and this chapter of the Lathrop Municipal Code.     

149



3. 30. 030 Work of $60, 000. 00 or less.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Sections 220033 and 22032,  any work as
defined in this chapter, of e sixty thousand dollars($ 60, 000. 00      ,      .    )

or less may be performed by the employees of the city by force account,  by
negotiated contract, or by purchase order.

3. 30. 040 Informal bidding procedures.

Any work, as defined in this chapter, of e e two hundred thousand

dollars  ($ 200, 000. 00 or less may be contracted for by the informal
bidding procedures set forth in this chapter.

3. 30. 060 Notice inviting informal bids.

Where work subject to the provisions of this chapter is to be performed and the

work does not meet the criteria set forth in Section 3. 30. 030 of this chapter,  or

informal bidding is desired, a notice inviting informal bids shall be mailed, faxed, or
emailed to all contractors for the category of work to be bid,  shown on the

contractor' s list, or to all appropriate construction trade journals as specified by
the commission or both. Additional contractors and/ or construction trade journals

may be notified at the city' s discretion. If there is no contractor' s list for the particular
category of work to be performed, the notice inviting bids shall be sent only to the
construction trade journals specified by the commission.  If the product or service

required to be performed is, in the discretion of the city' s director of public works,
determined to be proprietary in nature such that it can be obtained only from a certain .
contractor or contractors, the notice inviting informal bids may be sent exclusively to
such contractor or contractors.

3. 30. 070 Mailing, Faxing, or Emailing of notices inviting informal bids and
project description.

The mailing, faxing, or emailinc of notices to contractors and/ or construction

trade journals pursuant to Section 3. 30. 060 of this chapter shall be completed not

less than ten ( 10) calendar days before bids are due. The notice inviting bids shall:
1) describe the work in general terms;  ( 2) explain how more detailed information

about the proposed work may be obtained; and ( 3) state the time, date, and location
for the submission of bids.   -    

3. 30. 090 Bids received in excess of $ 200. 000. 00

If all bids received are in excess ofe etwo hundred thousand dollars

200, 000. 00 r nnn_nn 

the city council may, by passage of resolution by a four-
fifths vote, award the contract for e e v+te hundred }.".*, • twelve thousand five

hundred dollars ($ 212, 500. 00 or less, to the lowest responsible bidder,

if the city council determines that the cost estimate was reasonable.   

150



The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause the same to
be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once in a newspaper

of general circulation published and circulated in the City.

151



The foregoing Ordinance was introduced the 12th

day of August and adopted
this _ th day of 2019 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

S,onny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

5
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

152



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 5. 2
AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO TITLE 3,  CHAPTER

3. 32 COUNTY CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,   SECTION

3. 32. 150 SUNSET CLAUSE

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance
Amendment to Title 3,   Chapter 3. 32 County
Capital Facility Fee,     Section 3. 32. 150 Sunset

Clause of the Lathrop Municipal Code to Remove
the Sunset Clause of the County Facilities Fee
Program

SUMMARY:     

On February 2005, the County Facilities Fee Program was adopted by the City Council
to ensure new, development demands are met by the County as growth occurs.  The

City incorporated Chapter 3. 32 to Title 3 of the Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)

establishing the County Facilities Fee Program.  The County Facilities Fee Program is
an ongoing program dependent on new development, meaning, the fee will exist as
long as new development continues. Therefore, the County Facilities Fee Program is
considered a continuing program without an expiration term.

Staff discovered that the City' s Municipal Code includes an end date ( Sunset Clause

LMC  §  3. 32. 150)  for the County Facilities Fee Program.    However,  San Joaquin

County' s Chapter 9- 1245 adopted the County Facilities Fee Program without a sunset
clause.   Therefore,  in order to establish consistency with the County' s Ordinance,
Staff requests Council adopt an ordinance to remove LMC § 3. 32. 150 Sunset Clause.

BACKGROUND:       

On February 2005, the County Facilities Fee Program was adopted by the City Council
to ensure new development demands are met by the County as growth occurs.  The

City incorporated Chapter 3. 32 to Title 3 of the Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)

establishing the County Facilities Fee Program.  Chapter 3. 32 incorporated a Sunset

Clause ( LMC § 3. 32. 150) for the County Facilities Fee Program set to take effect on
July 1, 2013.

On November 2012,  the City' s LMC  §  3. 32. 150 was extended to July 1,  2019.

However, the County Facilities Fee Program is an ongoing program dependent on new
development,  meaning, the fee will exist as long as new development continues.       
Therefore,  the County Facilities Fee Program is considered a continuing program
without an expiration term.

Currently, the LMC Chapter 3. 32 includes a Sunset Clause ( LMC § 3. 32. 150) for the

County Facilities Fee Program deemed inconsistent with the County' s fee adoption.
San Joaquin County' s Chapter 9- 1245 adopts the County Facilities Fee Program

153



CITY MAN/ GER' S REPOitT P 1GE 2

AUCaUST 12, 2019 CYTY COUNCIL REGUL IR MEETING

PUBLIC IiE RINC; ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO AMEND ORDINANCE 3. 32. 150

SUNSET CLAUSE

without a sunset clause.    Therefore,  in order to establish consistency with the

County' s Ordinance, the LMC § 3. 32. 150 Sunset Clause should be removed.

REASON FOR RECOMiV1ENDATION:

Maintain consistency with County' s bylaws for the County Facilities Fee Program.

FISCA L IMP14CT:

There is no fiscal impact associated with the update of the LMC  3. 32. 150.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       An Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 3. 32 County Capital Facility Fee,
Section 3. 32. 150 Sunset Clause of the Lathrop Municipal Code to Remove
the Sunset Clause of the County Facilities Fee Program

154



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR NIEETING i
PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO AMEND ORDINANCE 3. 32: 150       -

SUNSET CLAUSE

APPROVALS: 

aau: c it  -.  Fy.•  ..    i• Z2• 1° t

Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director

Cari Ja Date     

Finance Administrative Services

D i recto

g - r     
Salvador Navarrete Date     '

City Attorney

G j   
Ste en Salvatore Date

City Manager .    

155



ORDINANCE NO. 19-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 3. 32 COUNTY CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,

SECTION 3. 32. 150 SUNSET CLAUSE OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO

REMOVE THE SUNSET CLAUSE OF THE COUNTY FACILITIES FEE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2012, City Council extended the sunset of the
County Facilities Fee Program through July 1, 2019; and       

WHEREAS, the County Facilities Fee Program was adopted by resolution of
the County ( Ord. 4252 § 1, 2005) without a sunset clause; and

WHEREAS,  staff recommends removal of LMC  §  3'. 32. 150 Sunset Clause

provision to allow consistency with the County' s adopted ordinance for the County
Facilities Fee Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF LATHROP HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Revise CMC 3. 32. 150 as follows:    

jL EC'IL7TIJ:JZ     

Section 2. Duty of Care.  This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be

construed or given effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or
employee thereof a mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or
without the city so as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as
otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3. Severabilitv.  If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to

any person or circumstances are held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect w,ithout the

invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are
severable.  The city council hereby declares that it would have; adopted this ordinance
irrespective of the validity of any particular portions thereof.

Section 4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty ( 30)
days from and after the date of its passage.

Section 5. Publication. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance
and shall publish a summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full ordinance in
the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the proposed
ordinance;  and within fifteen days after adoption,  the City Clerk shall publish a
summary of the ordinance with the names of the members of the City of Lathrop City
Council voting for and against the same.

Ordinance No. 19 -   Page 1 of 2

156



THIS ORDINANCE was regula.rly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on August 12, 2019, and was passed and adopted at
the regular meeting on, the day of 2019,  by the following
vote:      

AYES:

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City. Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

i

Ordinance No. 19 -   Page 2 of 2

157



158



i

ITEM 5. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE LATHROP-

MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT FIRE FACILITIES FEE

STUDY AND THE FEES RECOMMENDED

THEREIN    

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt A Resolution Adopting the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District Fire Facilities Fee

Study and the Fees Recommended Therein .

SUMMARY:

Fire facilities fees are necessary to provi e a source of revenue by which new
development within the City will contribute a fair and proportionate share of the cost
of providing facilities; apparatus, vehicles and equipment ( Facilities) needed by the
Lathrop- Manteca Fire District to provide fire protection and other emergency services
within the City of Lathrop.  The District retained NBS Government Finance Group
NBS). to prepare a fire facilities fee study for the portion of the District within the

City of Lathrop.  NBS prepared the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District Fire Facilities Fee
Study ( NBS Study) included as Attachment B, that identifies establishing updated fire
facilities fees for the p'ortion of the District within the City of Lathrop.

Staff requests that City Council hold a public hearing, consider all information and

public testimony arid, if determined to be appropriate, adopt a resolution approving
the NBS Study and the fees recommended therein.

BACKGROUND•

The Lathrop- Manteca Fire District contracted with NBS to prepare a study to calculate
updated fire facilities fees for the portion of the District within the City of Lathrop.
The State of California Mitigation Fee Act ( also known as AB 1600," Government

Code sections 66000, et seq.), identifies. the required findings which must be made  

by the City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing a fee charged as a
condition of approval of a development project. The NBS Study calculates updated
fire facilities fees based on future development' s proportionate share of the cost of

Facilities needed by the District to. provide fire protection and other emergency
services to the City of Lathrop.       

The Lathrop- Manteca Fire District currently operates three fire stations within the City
of Lathrop and two fire stations in the uncorporated portion of the District. The latter
two fire stations and their associated apparatus and equipment were not considered
in the calculation of updated fire facilities fees for the City of Lathrop in the NBS.

159



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ESTABLISH UPDATED FIRE FACILITIES FEES FOR THE PORTION OF THE
LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT WITHIN THE CITY OF LATHROP

study. Tlie District' s 2018 Master Plan call.s for three additional fire stations to be
constructed in the future within the City of Lathrop. The master plan also anticpates
construction of a new training facility at an undetermined location.

The total cost of additional Facilities needed to serve the City of Lathrop to builtlout .
was estimated in the NBS Study to be $ 37, 340, 000 at current price levels. The cost
attributed in the NBS Study to future development in the City was  $ 32, 484, 803,

which means that approximately $ 4, 855, 200 of the total estimated cost must . be

funded from sources other than the fire facilities fee.

The NBS Study projects that the square feet of building area in the City will increase
from. around 39 million square feet in 2019 to`approximately 104 million square feet
at buildout, an increase of 166%. The NBS Study calculated the fire facilities fees by .   
allocating the depreciated value of existing District facilities in the City plus the
estimated cost of future District facilities in the City to all existing and future
development in the City based on the estimated square feet of building area for both
existing and future development,

The calculations described above result in a per- square- foot fee of  $ 0. 52.  An

administrative charge of 2% ($ 0. 01) was added to that amount to bring the total
proposed fire facilities fee to $ 0. 53 per square foot for all typ'es of development.

The District currently charges a fire facilities fee of $0. 31 for residential development

and $ 0. 43 for commercial and_ industrial development. The District fees were adopted.

in 2001 by resolution 01- 1165 and have not been increased since.

FEE AD7USTMENTS

The fire facilities fees may . be adjusted in future years to reflect revised facility
standards, revised costs, or clianges ir land uses, or development plans. In addition

to such adjustments, each year the fire facilities fees will be adjusted by the change
in the ENR 20- City Building Cost Index over the prior calendar year. The facilities
costs inflated in this Fee Study are based on the ENR 20- City BCI value for June 27,
2019, which is 6131. 42. 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION.:     

The purpose of the fire facilities fees is to provide a source of revenue by which new
development within the City will contribute a fair and proportionate share of the cost.
of Facilities needed by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District to provide fire protection and
other emergency services within the City.

The Fire ' Protection District Law of 1987  ( Health and Safety Code Section 13916)
prohibits the Board of a Fire Protection District from ch;arging  " a fee on new

construction or development for the construction of public improvements or facilities

or the acquisition of equipment." Consequently, many cities and counties in California
impose such fees for fire protection districts that are responsible for fire protection

within their. boundaries.       

160



CITI( MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

AUGU T 12, 2019, CITY COUNCIL I EGULAR MEETING

ESTABLISH UPDATED FIRE FACILITIES FEES FOR THE PORTION OF l'HE 
LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT WITfiIN THE CITY OF LATHROP

FISC 4L IMP 4CT:

None. The Fire Facilities Fee Study is being funded by the District. The. fire facilities
fees are collected by the District and the District is responsible for implementation
and administration of those fees. City Staff ensures that fire facilities fees are paid
before building permits are issued,  but updating these fees does not change that
process.

ATTAC H M E IVTS:     

A.  Resolution Adopting the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District Fire Facilities Fee Study
and the Fees Recommended Therein

B.  Lathrop- Manteca Fire District Fire Facilities Fee Study by NBS, dated July 18,
2019

161



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019,, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ESTABLISH UPDATED FIRE FACILITIES FEES FOR THE PORTION OF THE
LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT WITHIN THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVALS•

Cari James Date

Administrati     & Finance Services Director

a-=-7     .      
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney  .    

Z• R
St n J. Salvatore Date

City. Manager

162



RESOLU ION NO. 19-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AF   ' PHE CIYI(   OF LATHROP

ADOP7' ING L THItOP MAIVTECA FIFtE DISTIZICT FIRE FACILITIES FEES FOR

TI-IE CITY OF L THFtOP

WHEREAS,  the fire facilities fees, are necessary to provide a source of
revenue by which new development within the City will contribute a fair and
proportionate share of the cost of providing facilities,  apparatus,  vehicles and

equipment  ( Facilities)  needed by the Lathrop=Manteca Fire District  ( District)  to

provide fire protection and other emergency services within the City of Lathrop; and

1H/ IiEREAS, as new development occurs throughout the City it is critical that
the fire facilities fees be regularly updated to ensure that they keep up with the
rising costs of Facilities; and

VO/ HEREAS,   District . retained IVBS Government Finance Group  ( NBS)  to

prepare a study to calculate updated fire facilities fees for the portion of the District
within the City of Lathrop; and

WFIEItEAS, NBS prepared the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District Fire Facilities Fee
Study ( NBS Study) dated July 18, 2019, that calculates updated fire facilities fees

for the portion of the District within the City of Lathrop; and

WHERE 4S, the NBS Study calculates updated fire facilities fees based on
future development' s proportionate share of the cost of Facilities needed by the
District to provide fire protection and other emergency services within the City of
Lathrop; and

WHEREAS,  the NBS Study is based upon the 2018 Lathrop- Manteca Fire
District Master Plan, and the analysis, input and active participation of District staff,

City staff and NBS• and

WHERE S, on July 18, 2019, the NBS Study was unanimously approved and
adopted by the Board of the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District; and

11VHEREAS,  the State of California Mitigation Fee Act  ( also known as AB

1600," Government Code sections 66000, et seq.), identifies the required findings

which must be made by the City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing
a fee as a condition of approval of a development project; and

VUFiEREAS,  notice of public hearing of this Resolution was published as
required b.y the Mitigation Fee Act, California Government Code sections 66000 et

seq.

163



NOW, THERE ORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby adopt the NBS Study,  dated July 18,  2019 attached as

Attachment B" to the City Manager' s, Report of August 12, 2019 and incorporated

herein by this reference and Council hereby adopts. the fees recommended in the
NBS Study based on findings required by the State of California Mitigation Fee Act
also known as " AB 1600," Government Code. sections 66000,. et seq.). Specifically.

Council hereby makes all of the following findings:
i

1.  The purpose of the fire facilities fees is to protect tlie lives and property of
residents and businesses in Lathrop by contriliuting . to the cost of

Facilities  . needed by District ` to provide fire  .'protection and other

emergency services to the City of Lathrop.   i

2.  The use of the fire facilities fees is to provide;  funding for Facilities
identified in the. NBS Study dated July 18, 2019. P,ursuant to the Lathrop
Municipal Code Section 3. 20. 040 collected fees me y be used for no other
purpose.

3.  The geographic area in which the fees will be imposed is the entire City of
Lattirop.      

4.  Fire Facilities Fees calculated in the NBS study are based on new

development' s estimated fair and proportionate share of the cost. of
District Facilities needed to provide fire protection' and other emergency

services within the City.

5:  There is a reasonable relationship between the use of the fees and the
type of development pr.ojects on. which  the fees are  , imposed.  7he

Facilities funded by the fees are essential to meeti;ng the increasing need
for' fire protection and other emergency services, in the City of Lathrop as
the City grows.  

6.  There is a reasonable relationship between the need for the Facilities to
be funded by the fees and the type of development on which the fees are
imposed. All new development in the City creates'. additional demand for
fire . protection and other emer.gency services provided by the District.
Future Facilities to be funded by the fees are identified in the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District 2018 Master . Plan.   

7.  There is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the
cost of facilities attributable to the development project on which the. fee
is imposed. The amount of the fiee charged to an,y development project
represents that project' s proportionate share of the cost of facilities
serving all development in the City, based on the project' s square feet of
building area as a share of the estimated total square. feet of building area
in the City at buildout.

j
I

164



i

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop cioes hereby authorize the adoption of the Lathrop Manteca Fire District,
Fire Facilities Fees.    j

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
12th day of August

2019, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES: j .
NOES:    j

i
ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:       i
i

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

i

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

I

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney    

i

i

I

i

i

i

C

I165



r:—      `   

a

t

R,

er     --r,  
s d . r.-.

y      ____
r^--  --

M c.. tVY c`"'". , ri".'*'i.i""     ,  ,.
u^,.._ .,,..+ ...    ";'` a.  . "  '

T
t"."" t`

wa.. r. j...I  "'
i'rt... ..r+iim f!'.

k..+:e:'. l..  -^,.'     ' ti.:,a è)..      + s-.      _„. e.    

e-,,.             ,       '     .    

g    _us

1.r ,•• tii.-«..  ...
w.. • m i r.. 

r.... : C t'F"".'"' t• . a... x'     .' r"    , 

Yr    
o,    -  

1!+i    
nI'!.

Y
w-,  -,  .      s. Zfi    '  '     e...       

y ,
f..       . a9fiV            iC"    d    .       ,    ..

M

r        

r. wu 1       .       .
4>{.     -  ..  . 

tl%  

1'i I
a.,

a

1

a

7R."  
t

O`..
m,... ,...  

a 4;.   l..._  "   -
ta`..•

r...,      :;

ar,.   ...    .

5' ."'     ,.

Y' M'•.     .  -       3;;       ,•  

a.+ Jti

tu".       }.       

J FI+'     -  ~ 4_

n......._..,

w.....  
4f 4.'".- f <.

6       M
I j l,

T ti ay.    
yA

xfi t:=.. a r.- . s•  --.  ^ r
r,.' s....-'    .._.,

r, ak:
r-:.  . .

y' A   
11<    

f rt,

l

a

LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT

Final Report     "`".  p,.,. 

71.: 4

r 

Fire Facilities Fee Study
July 18, 2019

ya... r'"            

l.
y

p

t ,r..:.,::

r

w   -:`    ..'..._._` t   .....

y

r      {;      > a..

r. -      w+nr''._    _

wr   . 

s
ie i'..

1 4.      

rr+Y. s. 

y

4 ' 
1

r +"'""-"''

w.   "'. y  - i. '    1.' M   ..
r..

e,...--_    =       

s.-  ` r    '            7

4 -.. .    .-

I,  

i 4

i

y

t• _

166



Table of Contents

1.   Introduction ................................................................................................................ 1- 1

Purpose........................................:............................................:............................................................ 1- 1

Background...........................................................................................................:................................ 1- 1

Legal Framework for Impact Fees.......................................................................................................... 1- 1  .

Impact Fee Calculation Methodology.................:.................................................................................. 1- 6

2.   Development Data..........................................................:............................................ 2- 1

StudyArea.............................................................................................................................................. 2- 1

TimeFrame............................................................................................................................'................ 2- 1

RecentGrowth..............:..............................................................:....................................:.................... 2- 1

DevelopmentTypes.................................:............................................................................................. 2- 2

DemandVariable .......................................................:........................................................................... 2- 2

Existing and Forecasted Development .................................................................................................. 2- 3

3.   Fire Protection Impact Fees ......................................................... o............................... 3- 1

Methodology................:.......................................:................................................................................. 3- 1

Levelof Service ...................................................................................................................................... 3- 1

Existingand Future Facilities...............................................:.................................................................. 3- 1

AverageCost per Square Foot............................................................................................................... 3- 5

ProjectedRevenue................................................................................................................................. 3- 5

Updatingthe Fees.................................................................................................................................. 3- 6

IVexusSummary...........:......................................................................................................................... 3- 6

4.   Implementation........................................................................................................... 4- 1

Adoption ................................................................................................................................................ 4- 1

Administration................................:...................................................................................................... 4- 2

Training and Public Information ........:................................................................................................... 4- 6

N S Lafhrop-Manfeca Fi e Disf ict
Fire/ mpact Fee Study
u/y 8, 2019

167



1. Introduction

Purpose

The purpose of this study is to analyze the impacts of development on the, rieed for fire
protection facilities and other capital assets provided by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District

LMFD) within the City of Lathrop, and to update the fire facilities fees currently imposed by the
City for LMFD. The " fire facilities fees" addressed in this report can also be called " development
impact fees," or just" impact fees," and in pfaces this report uses those terms.

The methods used to calculate fire facilities fees in this report are intended to satisfy all legal

requirements governing such fees; including provisions of the U. S. Constitution, the California
Constitution and the California Mitigation Fee Act ( Government Code Sections 66000- 66025).

Background         

The Lathrop- Manteca Fire District serves all of the City of Lathrop, as well as a portion of
unincorporated San Joaquin County. The District surrounds the City' of Manteca but does not
include it. The fire fecilities fees calculated in this study are intended to apply . only to

development within the City of Lathrop.  

New development in the unincorporated portion of the District is limited by a lack of water and

sewer service. While some future development may occur in that area, the extent and location
of such development, and the fire protection facilities that would be needed to serve such

development,  are unknown at this time.  Any major development. in what is now the
unincorporated portion of the District might be annexed to the Gity of Manteca. Or, if it

remains in the County might be subject to a development agreement which would allow the
District to request mitigation of significant impacts. Failing that, the fire facilities fees already in

place in the County portion of the District would apply.

Legal Framework for Impact. Fees
P

This brief summary of the legal framework for development fees is intended as a general
overview. It was not prepared by an attorney, and should not be treated as legal advice.      

Fire Protection District Law of 1987. California Health and Safety Code Section 13916, which is
part of the Fire Protection District Law of 1987, states: :` A ( fire. protection) district board shall

not charge a fee on new construction or development for the construction of public

improvements or facilities or the acquisition of equipment." However, although the District

itself may not charge such fees, it is quite common in California for cities and counties to
impose impact fees for fire protection districts that provide services• withirr their jurisdiction.

The fees calculated in this report update fire facilities fees currently imposed for the District by

the City of Lathrop.   

i

N BS Lafhrop-Manfeca Fire Dist ict i Page >->

Fire/ m,oactFee Study
u/y 8, 20> 9

168



i
I

U. S. Constitution.  Li.ke all land use regula,tions, development exactions, including impact fees,

are subject to the 5th Amendment prohibition on taking of private property for public use
without just compensation.  Both state and federal courts have recognized the imposition of

impact fees on development as a legitimate form of land use regulation, provided the fees
meet standards intended to protect against " regulatory takings."  A regulatory taking occurs

when regulations unreasonably deprive landowners of property ' rights. protected by the
Constitution.    j

i

In two landmark cases dealing with exactions, the U. S. Supreme Gourt has held that when a
government agency requires the dedication of land or an interest in land as a condition of
development approval, or imposes ad hoc exactions as a condition of. approval on a single

development project that do not apply to development generally, a higher standard of judicial
scrutiny applies. To meet that standard, the agency must demonstrate an " essential nexus"

between such exactions and the interest being protected ( See Nollan v. Californio Coastal
Commission, 1987) and make an" individualized determination" that the exaction imposed is

roughly proportional" to the burden created by development ( See Dolan v. City of Tigard,
1994). .    I

Until recently, it was widely accepted that legislatively- enacted impact fees that apply to all
development in a jurisdiction are not subject to the higher standard of judicial scrutiny flowing
from the Nollan and Dolan decisions. But after the U. S. Supreme Court decision in Koontz v. St.

lohns IlI/ ater Management District ( 2013J, state courts have reached 'conflicting conclusions on
that issue. 

In light of that uncertainty, any agency enacting or imposing impact fees would be wise to
demonstrate a nexus and ensure proportionality in the calculation of those fees.

Defining the " Nexus:' While courts have not been entirely consistent in defining the nexus        
required to justify exactions. and impact fees, that term can be thought of as having the three
elements discusse, d below. We tliink proportionality is logically. included as one element of that
nexus, even though it was discussed separately in Do/ an v.. Tigard. The lements of the nexus

discussed below mirror the three " reasonable relationship" findings required by the Mitigation
Fee Act for establishment and imposition of impact fees.       

Need.  Development must create a need for the facilities to be funded by impact fees. All new

development in a community creates additional demands on some or all public facilities
provided by local government.  If the capacity of facilities is not increased to satisfy the
additional demand, the quality or availability of public. services for the entire community will
deteriorate. Impact fees may be used to recover the cost of development- related facilities, but
only to the extent that the need for facilities is related, to the development project subject to
the fees. 

The Nollan decision reinforced the principle that development exactions may be used only to
mitigate impacts created by the. development projects upon which they are imposed.  In this

study, the impact of development on facility needs is analyzed in terms of quantifiable
4

NBS Lathrop-Manteca Fire Dist icl Paqe > 2

Fire/ mpactFee.. Study
u/y 8, 20>9

169



i

relationships between various types of development ancl the demand for public facilities based
on applicable level- of-service standards.  This report contains all of the information needed to _

demonstrate compliance with this element of the nexus.  

Benefit. Development must, benefit from facilities funded by impact fees. With respect to the

benefit relationship, the most basic requirement is that facilities funded by impact fees be
available to serve the development paying the fees. A sufficient benefit relationship also
requires that_impact fee revenues be segregated from other funds and expended in a timely
manner on the facilities for which the fees were charged.  Nothing in the U. S. Constitution or
California law requires that facilities paid for with impact fee reveriues be available exclusively.

to development projects paying the fiees. 

Procedures for earmarking and expenditure of fee revenues are mandated by the Mitigation
Fee Act, as. are procedures to ensure that the fees are either expended expeditiously or,
refunded. Those requirements are intended to ensure that developments benefit from the

impact fees they are required to pay.  Thus, over time, procedural issues as well as substantive
issues can come into play with respect to the benefit element of the nexus. .

Proportionalitv.:   Impact fees must . be proportional to the impact created by a particular
development project.  Proportionality in impact fees depends on properly identifying

development- related facility costs and calculating the fees in such a way that. those costs are
allocated in proportion to the facility needs created by different types and amounts of     
development.  The section on impact fee methodology, below, describes methods used to

allocate facility costs and calculate impact fees that meet the proportionality standard.

California Constitution.    The California . Constitution grants broad police power to local       

governments, including the authority to regula e land use and development. That police power
is the source of authority for local governments in California to impose impact fees on
development:  Some impact fees have been challenged on grounds that they are specia.l taxes
imposed without voter approval in violation of Article XIIIA.  However,. that objection is valid

only if the fees charged to a. project exceed the cost.of providing facilities needed to serve the
project. In that case, tlie fees would also run afoul of the U. S. Constitution and. the Mitigation
Fee Act.   

Articles XIIIG and XIIID, added to the California Constitution by Proposition 218. in 1996, require
voter approval for some " property- related fees," but exempt " the imposition of fees or charges

as a condition of property development;"      

The Mitigation Fee Act.  California' s impact fee statute originated in Assembly Bill 1600 during
the 1987 session of the Legislature, and took effect in January, 1989.  AB 1600 added several

sections• to the Government Code, beginning with. Section 66000.   Since that time, the statute

has been amended from time to time, and in 1997 was officially titled' the " Mitigation Fee Acf."
Unless. otherwise noted, code sections referenced in this report are from the Government

Code.

N BS Lafhrop-Manteca Fi e District Paqe - 3

Fire/ mpactFee Study
u/y 8, 20> 9

170



I

i
i

The Mitigation Fee Act does not limit the types of capital improvements for which impact fees

may be charged. It defines public facilities ve .ry broadly to include " public improvements, public
services and community amenities."_  Although the issue is not specifically addressed in the

Mitigation Fee Act, it is clear both in case law and statute ( see Government Code Section

65913. 8) that impact fees may not be used to pay for maintenance or operating costs. .
Consequently, the fees calculated in this report are based on the cost of capital assets only.

The Mitigation Fee Act does not use the term " mitigation fee" except in its official title.  Nor

does it use the more common term " impact fee:" The Act simply uses the word " fee,'' which is

defined as " a monetary exaction, other than a tax or special assessment... that is charged by a
local agency to the 'applicant in connection with approval of a development project for the
purpose of defraying all or a portion of the. cost of public facilities related to the development
project ... "       

To avoid confusion with. other types of fees, this report uses the widely- accepted terms " impact  .
fee" and " development impact fee" when discussing these fees gene' rically, and the term " fire
facilities fee" for the specific fees calculated in this study. All of those terms should be
understood to mean " fee" as defined in the Mitigation Fee Act.

The Mitigation Fee Act contains requirements for establishing, increasing and imposing such.

They are summarized below.   It also contains provisions that govern the collection and

expenditure of fees and requires annual reports and periodic re- evaluation of impact fee

programs.  Those administrative requirements are discussed in the implementation chapter of

this report.    

Required Findin s.  Section 66001 requires that an agency establishing, increasing or imposing   ,
impact fees must make findings to:       

1.   Identify the purpose of the fee;

2.   Identify the use of the fee; and,

3.   Determine that the,re is a reasonable relationship between:   

a.  The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imp'osed;

b.  The need for the facility and the type of development on which' the fee is imposed;
and

c.  The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development projeet.
Applies when fees are imposed on a specific project.)    

Each of those requirements is discussed in more detail below.    

Identifvin the Purpose of the Fees.  The broad purpose of impact! fees is to protect public

health, safety and general welfare by providing for adequate public facilities. The specific
purpose of the fees calculated in this study is to fund certain capital facilities, apparatus,
vehicles and equipment that will be needed to . mitigate the impacts of planned new

i

N BS Lathrop-Manteca Fire Disfrict Page >- 4

Fire/ mpactFee Study
u/y>8, 20>9

171



i     

i

II

development on City facilities, and to maintain an acceptable level of fire protection and other
emergency services as the City grows.   

This report recommends that findings regarding the purpose of impact fees should define the
purpose broadly, as providing for the funding of adequate public. facilities to serve adclitional
development:

Identifvin the Use of the Fees.  According to Section 66001, if a fee is used to finance public
facilities, those facilities must be identified.  A capital improvement plan may be used for that
purpose but is not mandatory if the facilities are identified in a General Plan, a Specific Plan, or
in other public documents.  In this case, we recommend that the City Council adopt this report

as the public document that identifies the facilities to be funded by the fees.

Reasonable Relationship Requirement.  As discussed above, Section; 66001 requires that, for

fees subject to its provisions, a " reasonable relationship" must be demonstrated between:

1.  the use of the fee and the type of development on which it is imposed;

2.  the need for a public facility and the type of development on which a fee is
imposed; and,

3.  the amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the development on
which the fee is imposed.

These three reasonable relationship requirements, as defined in the 'statute,_mirror the nexus
and proportionality requirements often cited in court decisions as the standard for defensible
impact fees. The term " dual rational nexus" is often used to characterize the standard used by

courts in evaluating the legitimacy of f impact fees.  The " duality" of the nexus refers to ( 1) an
impact or need created by a development project subject to impact; fees, and ( 2) a benefit to
the project from the expenditure of the fees.

Although proportionality is reasonably implied in the dual rational nexus formulation, it was
explicitly required by the Supreme Court in the Dolan case, and we prefer to list it as_the third
element of a complete nexus.      

Development A reements and.  Reimbursement A reements.  The requirements of the

Mitigation Fee Act do not apply to fees collected under development agreements ( see Govt.
Code Section 66000) or reimbursement agreements ( see Govt. Code Section 66003). The same

is true of fees in lieu of park land dedication imposed under the Qui'mby Act ( see Govt. Code
Section 66477).

Existin Deficiencies. . In 2006, Section 66001( g) was added to the Mitigation Fee Act ( by AB
2751) to clarify that impact fees " shall not include costs attributable to existing deficiencies in  .
public facilities,..."  The legislature' s intent in adopting this amendm'ent, as stated in the bill,
was to eodify the holdings of Bixel v. City of Los Angeles ( 1989), Rohn. v. City of Visalia ( 1989),
and Shapell Industries Inc. v. Governing Board ( 1991).      

i

I .      

NBS  .  Lathrop- Manteca Fire Dist icf i Page 1- 5

Fire/ mpactFee Sfudy
u/y 18, 20>9

I

172



i

That amendment does. not appear to be a substantive change.  It is widely understood that

other provisions of law make it improper for impact fees to include costs for correcting existing
deficiencies.      i
However, Section 66001( g) also states that impact fees " may include the costs attributable to
the increased demand for public facilities reasonably relatec! to the developm.ent project in
order to ( 1) refurbish existing facilities to maintain the existing level of service or( 2) achieve an
adopted level of service that is consistent with the general plan." ( Emphasis added.)

Impact fees for Existing Facilities.   Impact fees may be used to r'ecover costs for existing
facilities to the extent that those facilities are needed to serve additional development and
have the capacity to do so.  In other words, it must be possible to sfi ow that fees used to pay

for existing facilities meet the need and benefit elements of the nexus:

Impact Fee Calculation Methodology

Any one of several legitimate methods may be used to calculate imp'act fees.  The choice of a

particular method depends primarily on the service characteristics; of,  and . planning

requirements for,  the facility type being addressed.    Each method has advantages and

disadvantages in a particular situation. To some extent they are interchangeable, because they

all allocate facility costs in proportion to the needs created by development.    

Allocating facility costs to various types and amounts of development is central to all methods
of impact fee calculation.   Costs are allocated by means of formulas that quantify the

relationship between development and the need for facilities.  In a cost allocation formula, the

impact of development is. measured by some attribute of development such as added
population or added vehicle trips that represent the impacts created by different types and
amounts of development.

Plan- Based or Improvements- Driven Method. Plan- based impact fee' calculations are based on

the relationship between a specified set of improvements and a specified increment of
development.  The: improvements are typically identified . in a  • facility plan,  while the

development is identified in a land use plan that forecasts potential development by type and

quantity.       
i

Using this method,  facility costs are allocated to various categories of development in
proportion to the service demand created by each tqpe of development. To calculate plan-
based impa.ct fees, it is necessary to determine what facilities wil,l be needed to serve a
particular increment of new development.     

With this method, the total cost of eligible facilities is divided by the total units of additional
demand to calculate a cost per unit of demand ( e. g. a cost per capita for parks). Then, the cost

per unit of demand' is multiplied by factors representing demand per unit of development ( e. g.
population per unit) to arrive at a cost per unit of development. 

i

NBS Lathrop-Manfeca Fire District Paqe >- 6

Fire/ mpact Fee Sfudy    •
u/y 18, 2019

173



i

I     .
I   ..      
I

i
This method is somewhat inflexibfe in that it is based on the

relatioi ship between a specific

facility plan and a specific land use plan. If either plan changes significantly the fees will have to
be recalculated.

Note: The plan- based method described above is used to calculate fire facilities fees in this

report. Other methods discussed below are included for reference.           
j   

Capacity- Based or. Consumption- Driven Method.  This method calculates a cost per unit of

capacity based on the relationship between total cost and total capacity of a system.  It can be

applied to any type of de'velopment,, provided the capacity required to serve each increment of
development can be estimated and the facility has adequate capacity ayailable to, serve the  
development.  Since the cost per unit of. demand does not depend on the particular type or   .

quantity of development to be served, this method is flexible with respect to changing
development plans.

In this method, the cost of unused capacity is not allocated to development.  Capacity- based      :

fees. are most commonly used for water and wastewater systems, where the. cost of a system
component is divided by the capacity of that component to derive a unit cost.  However, a

similar analysis can be applied to other types of facilities. To produce a schedule of impact fees

based on standardized units of development ( e. g.  dwelling units ; or square feet of non-
residential building area), the cost per unit of capacity is multiplied by the, amount of capacity
required to serve a typical unit of development in each of several land use categories.

Standard- Based or Incr.emental Expansion. Method. Standard- based fees are calculated using a

specified relationship or standard that determines the number of service units to be provided
for each unit of development. The standard can be established as a matter of policy or it can be

based on the level of service being provided to existing development in: the study area.

Using the standard- based method, costs are defined on a generic unit- cost basis and then
applied to development according to a standard that sets the numb,er of service units to be
provided for each unit of development.

Park in- lieu and impact fees are commonly calculated this way. The level of service standard for
parks is typically stated in terms of-acres of parks per thousand residents. A cost- per- acre for
park land or park improvements can usually be estimated without knowing the exact size or
location of a particular park. The ratio of park acreage to population and the cost per acre for
parks is used to calculate a cost per capita.  The cost per capita can then be converted into a

cost. per unit of development based on the average population per 'dwelling unit for various
types of residential development, i

Buy- In or Recoupment Fees. Buy- in fees can be calculated using either. the plan=based method
or the -capacity- based method described above. The difference is that this type of fee is
intended o recover a portion of the cost of existing facilities rather tlian facilities to be built in.
the future. In some cases, an impact fee is. based on costs for both existing and future assets, so
that a only a portion of the fee involves a buy- in.     

N S Gafhrop-Manteca Fire Dist icl .   Page - 7

Fire/ mpacfFee Study i
u/y 8, 20>9

r

i174



Chapter 2, which follows, contains data on existing and future development used in the fire
facilities fee analysis. Chapter 3 presents the fire facilities fee analysis and fee calculations.

Chapter 4 outlines recommendations for implementing the fire facilities fees calculated in this
report.

Bc     Lathrop-Manteca Fire Disf ict Page > 8 .
w

Fire/ mpacl Fee Study
u/y>8, 20 9

175



i

2. Development Data

This chapter presents data on existing and future development in the City of Lathrop that will
be used to calculate fire facilities fees for the City in .this report. The information in this chapter
is used to allocate the cost of capital facilities between existing and future development and

among various types of new development in the calculation of fire facilities fees.     

Study Area

As discussed in Chapter 1, the fire facilities fees calculated. in this report are intended to apply

only to the portion of the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District service area within the City of Lathrop.
Therefore, the study area addressed in this chapter is the City of Latlirop.

Time Frame

No time frame is assumed for the buildout of future development projected in this study. The
methods used to calculate fire facilities fees in this study do not require assumptions regarding

the rate or timing of development.

Recent Growth

The figure at right shows  . the City of Lathrop Population
California Department of , Finance

2010- 2019
official January 1 population

so, 000.

estimates for the City of.Lathrop for 2a, 000

the years 2010 th r̀ough 2019.       o
s, 000       _

Over that period, Lathrop has been      
one of the fastest- growing cities in a

12, 000       -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -

California.    Its population has s, 000       -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -

increased an average of 3. 25% per o

year, COI' Y1pOUhCI@d. 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

The City' s estimated January 1, Year' 

2019 population of 24, 936 is an

increase of 6, 241. or 35% from a population of 18, 695 at the time of the 2010 Census.

In recent years, the City of Lathrop has also attracted substantial commercial and industrial
development, including a major new facility for the auto- manufacturer.,Tesla.

j

i

N BS Lathrop-Manteca Fire Dist icf Page 2->

Fire/ mpactFee Study
u/y>8, 2019

I

176



i

i
i

Development Types  .    

The development types defined in this study are intended to reflect actual land uses rather
than zoning. or general plan land use designations. The following breakdown of development
types is used throughout this study:       

Residential— Low Density Commercial      !

Residential— Medium Density Office

Residential— High Density Industrial

Residential - Mobile Home Schools/ Institutional

Demand Variable

To calculate fire facilities fees, the relationship between facility need s and development must
be quantified in cost allocation formulas.  Some measurable attributeiof development must be
used as a " demand variable" in those formulas. The demand variable used to calculate fire

facilities fees in this study is building area in square feet. Building square footage reasonably
represents the impact of development on the demand for services provided by the Lathrop-
Manfeca Fire District and the facilities, apparatus and equipment needed to support those
services.   

Estimates of existing residential development and forecasts of future', residential deyelopment
presented later in this chapter are shown in dwelling units for each of the f.our types of
residential development listed in the previous section, In. order to convert dwelling units into

square feet of building area, this report uses estimates of average dwelling unit size in square
feet for each type of.residential development. Those estimates are shown in Table 2. 1. ,

Table 2. 1 Demand Factors

Land Use Unit Sq Ft

Category Type
1 per Unit Z

Residential- Low Density DU'    2, 750

Residential.- Medium Density DU 1, 700

Residential- High Density ,     DU 1, 200

Residential- Mobile Home DU 1, 080

Commercial KSF I1, 000

Office KSF 1, 000

Industrial  .      KSF 1, 000

Institutional KSF 1, 000

I
1

DU= dwelling units; KSF= 1, 000 square feet of gross building area

z. Average square feet per unit of residential development estimated

by NBS based on data from the City Lathrop Community De+ elop-
ment Department and other sources

B'     Lafhrop-Manteca Fire District j.   Page 2-2

Fire/ mpact Fee Study
u/y>8, 20 9

i
I177



i

i .   
I
I

Estimates of existing ` non- residential1 development and. forecasts of future non- residential
development are shown in. thousands of square feet, abbreviatedi. as " KSF." Some of the

calculations shown in Chapter 3 require the conversion of KSF to square feet and vice versa.

Existing a.nd Forecasted Development

Summaries of existing and; forecasted development in the City of Lathrop are presented in
Tables 2. 2 through 2. 4 below. Lathrop has a great deal of development potential. The number .

of dwelling units in the City could more than triple, and the square footage of non- residenti'al
building area could more than double by buildout of the current general plan.

Table 2. 2 shows estimated existing development in the City as of January 1, 2019, in terms of
dwelfing units ( for residential development categories) and total squa e feet of building area in
thousand. s of square feet( KSF).  i

I
Table 2. 2,City of Lathrop. Existing Development as of 1/ 1/ 2019

Land Use Unit Dwelling Bldg Area

Category Type
1

Units
z      ; ( KSF) 3

Residential- Low Density DU 6, 296.  ,   ]. 7, 314. 0

Residential- Medium Density DU 150
i

255. 0

Residential- High Density ,  DU 71,    I 85. 2

Residential- Mobile Home DU 378    i 408. 2

Commercial KSF     i 1, 524. 8

Office KSF 366. 6

lndustrial`    KSF 19, 243. 0

Schools/ Institutional KSF 59. 8

Totals 6, 895 i 39, 256. 6

1

DU= dwelling units; KSF= 1, 000 square feet of gross building area
2

Existing dwelling units based on the California Department of Finance

2019 E- 5 report
3

Existing residential building area in KSF= dwelling units X square, feet •

per unit from Table 2. 1/ 1, 000; non- residential building erea from
2018 San Joaquin County Assessor data j

I

Table 2. 3 on the next page shows forecasted future development in the City through buildout.

I     .       . .

I

1 Non- residential development inc.ludes the commercial, office, industrial and schooll/ institutional categories.

N s Lath op-Maafeca Fi e Disliicf Page 2-3.
Fire/ mpactFee Study i
u/y>8, 2019 I .

i
178



I

I

Table 2. 3 Future Development to Buildout of the City   

Land Use Unit Dwelling Bldg Area

Category Type
1

Units
z

i ( KSF) 3
Residential- Low Density DU 9, 156    '; 25, 179. 0

Residential- Medium Density DU 3, 565 i 6, 060. 5

Residential- High Density DU 4, 005       4, 806. 0

Residential- Mobile Home DU 0    0. 0

Commercial KSF i 8, 276. 4

Qffice KSF 1, 947. 1

Industrial KSF 16, 152A

Schools/ Institutional KSF 2, 714. 5

Totals 16, 726     65, 135. 5

I
a

1
DU= dwelling units; KSF= 1, 000 square feet of gross building area

z
Added building area in square feet= buildout development from

Table 2. 4 less existing development from Table 2. 2
i

Table 2. 4 shows forecasted total development in the City at buildout.  '

Table 2. 4 Total Developmen# at Buildout of the City  ;

Land Use Unit Dwelling Bldg Area

Category Type
1

Units
Z      ; ( KSF) 3

Residential- Low Density DU 15, 452      42, 493. 0

Residential- Medium Density DU 3, 715 6, 315. 5

Residential- High Dens'ity DU 4, 076    !   4, 891. 2

Residential- Mobile Home DU 378 408. 2

Commercial KSF 9, 801. 2

Office KSF j 2, 313J

Industrial KSF 35, 395. 0

Schools/ Institutional KSF 2, 774. 3

Totals 23,621    104, 392. 1

i
1

DU= dwelling units; KSF= 1, 000 square feet of gross building area

Z Buildout dwelling units based on data from the City of Lathrop 2018
Integrated Water` Master Plan and the proposed( as of Jun 2019)

increase in dwelling unit counts for the River Islands development
3

Buildout residential building area= buildout dwelling units X square

feet per unit from Table_ 2. 1/ 1, 000; buildout non- residential building

area based on the City of Lathrop 2018 Integrated Water Master Plan

The information in. these tables is used in the next chapter in the calculation of fire facilities

fees for the City of Lathrop portion of the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District.
i

i

N S Lathrop-Ma teca Fire District i Page 2-4

Fire/ mpactFee Study

u/y 18, 20>9

1

i
179



3. Fire Facilities Fees

This chapter calculates fire facilities fees for fire protection facilities, apparatus vehicles and
equipment: serving the portion of the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District within the City of Lathrop.
The District currently operates five fire stations, three of them located in the City of Lathrop.
The District' s 2018 Master Plan calls for three additional fire stations, to be constructed in the..

City.

Methodology

The method used to calculate fire facilities fees in this chapter is the plan- based method

discussed in Chapter 1. That method calcu ates fire facilities fees by allocating the cost of
specific capital facilities to the development served by . those facilities.  ( When the term

facilities" is used in this report, it is meant to include firefighting apparatus, vehicles and

equipment associated with those facilities.) In this case, the cost of the District' s existing and

future facilities will be allocated to both existing and future development so that those costs

are allocated equitably to all development.

As noted in Chapter 1, while the boundaries of the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District encompass     •

some unincorporated territory in San Joaquin County, the fire facilities fees calculated in this
report are intended to apply only to development within the City of Lathrop. Consequently, this
analysis must recognize that the District' s existing facilities serve areas' outside the City.

The unincorporated part of the District is mostly agricultural. That area is not expected to
experience significant urban development in the future due to a lack of water and sewer

service: Two of the District' s existing fire stations are located in the unincorporated portion of
the District. And, although fire companies assigned to those stations do respond to calls within

the City, this analysis excludes the value of those two stations and their assigned fire engines
from the calculation of fire facilities fees for the City portion of the District.

Level of Service
i

The critical measure of level of service for fire protection and emergency medical services is

emergency response time. The number of fire stations needed to se'rve. a particular area with
acceptable response times is determined by specific conditions within!the area. In this case, the
District' s 2018 Master Plan has determined the number and general location of fire stations

needed to provide an acceptable level of service within the City of Lathrop. Those future
stations and their associated apparatus, vehicles and equipment are; shown in the Tables that

fol low. .   

Existing and Future Facilities

Table 3. 1 lists the District' s existing facilities and planned future facilities with estimated
building construction cost ( for future buildings) or replacement cost ( for existing buildings),

I

NB     Lathrop-Manteca Fire District Paqe 3- 1

Fire/ mpactFee. Sfudy
u/y 8, 2019

180



i

I

I     .  

i
i

I  '        I

depreciated replacement cost for existing buildings,  and . estimated land cost  ( for future

facilities) or land value ( for existing facilities). Estimated building cost or replacement cost
includes site development and furniture, fixtures and equipment.       ,

As discussed on the. previous . page and shown in the tabie below, the value of existing Fire

Stations 32 and 33 is excluded from the cost basi$ used in the calculation of fire facilities fees

for the City of Lathrop portion of the District. 

Table 3. 1: Existing and Future Fire Stations

Constr Building New Useful Depr Building Site      '  Est Land Facilities Fee

Facility Date
1

or Repl Cost
1

Life( Yrs)
1

Repl Cost
Z

Acres
1

Cost or Value
3 Cost Basis 4

Fire Stafion 31 1972    $  10, 000, 000 50      $    600, 000 2. 5      $     500, 000   $   1, 100; 000

Fire Station 32 1976    $   4, 500, 000.      50'   '  $'    630, 000 1. 0      $     200, 000  $     0

Fire Station 33 1976    $   4, 500, 000 50      $    630, 000 1. 0      $     200, 000  $     0

Fire Station 34 2006    $   6, 00O, OOb 50      $   4, 440, 000 2. 5      $     500, 000  $   4, 940, 000

Fire Station 35 2019     $   7, 500, 000 50      $   7, 500, 000 2. 5      $     500, 000  $   8, 000, 000

Fire Station 36 Future    $   7, 500, 000 50      $   7, 500, 000 2. 0      $     400, 000  $   7,900, 000

Fire Station 37•     Future    $   5, 500, 000 -    50      $   5, 500, 000 2A      $     400, 000  $.   5,900; 000

Fire Station 38 Future    $   5, 500, 000 50      $  . 5, 500, 000 2. 0      $     400, 000  $   5,900, 000

Training Center Future   $  10, 000, 000 50       $ 10, 000, 000 2. 5      $     500, 000  $  10, 500, 000

Total 3, 600, 000     $  44, 240, 000

1 Inf.ormation provided by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District;. figures include furniture, fixtures and equipment
Z Depreciated building replacement cost using straight- line depreciation over the useful life of the asset
3 Estimeted land value based on$ 200, 000 per acre.

Fecilities fee cost basis= depreciated building replacementcost+ estimated land value. The value of fire stations 
32 and 33 is attributed to the County portion of the District' s service area and is not included in the cost basis
for the impact fee calculations.   

Table 3. 2 on the next page shows the replacement cost and deprecia' ted replacement cost for

the District' s existing firefighting apparatus and vehicles. As with fire stations 32 and 33 iri the

previous table, no cost is included in the facilities fee cost basis for Engines 32 and 33. Some
other units listed in Table 3. 2 also show zero in the facilities fee cost basis column because they
are fully depreciated.  

i

j

I

N BS Lathrop-Manteca Fi e Dist ict I Page 3-2

Fire/ mpactFee Study i
u/y>8, 20>9

181



i      .

Table 3. 2: Existing' Fire Apparatus and Vehicles    

Model Useful Replacement Depr Repl  .   Fecilities Fee

Yearl.

Description
1

Life( Yrs)
1

Cost
1

Cost
z Cost Basis 3

2004 Engine 33( Reserve)       15       $     850, 000   $    0  $    0

2008_     Brush Engine 30 15       $     450,000   $. .  120, 000  $    120, 000

2014 Rescue 30 15       $     650, 000   $     433, 333   $    433, 333

2018 Truck 30 15       $     882,000   $ ,   823, 200  '$.   823, 200

2018 Truck 30 Equipment 5       $     250, 000 ' $   . 200, 000  $    200, 000

2004 Engine 31 15       $     850, 000   $    0.  $    0     •

2010 Engine 32 1S       $     850, 000   $.. '  340, 000   $    0

2010 Engine 33 15       $     850, 000   $    340, 000   $    0

2006 Engine 34 15       $     850, 000, $  ,.  113, 333   $    113, 333.

2018 Engine 35 15       $     850, 000   $    793, 333   $    793, 333

2018 Engine 35 Equipment 5       $     250, 000  ;$  ;   200, 000  $    200, 000

2016 Chevy Tahoe( Fire Chief)  5       $      60, 000   $      24,000   $     24,000

2015 Chevy Tahoe( Battalion Chief),    5       $'      60, 000   $      12, 000   $     12; 000

2015 Chevy Tahoe( Battalion Chiefj 5       $      60, 000   $  '    12, 000   $     1Z, 000

2014.    Chevy Tahoe( Fire Prevention)    5       $      60,000  $    0   $    0

2016 Reswe Boat 3z 5       $      60, 000   $      24,000   $     24,000

2018 Chevy Silverado 2500 5 60, 000   $      48,000   $     48, 000

2019 Chevy Silverado 2500 5 60, 000   $  ,    60,000   $     60, 000

2018 AlI Terrain Vehicle 5 35, 000  $      28, 000   $     28,000

2018 All Terrain Vehicle 5 35,000   $  ,    28, 000   $     28, 000

2018 Command Trailer 5 35, 000   $  '    28, 000   $     28, 000

Total i 3, 627, 200   $  2,947, 200

1 Information provided by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District; no equipmenf cost is' shown for
apparatus older than five years because that equipment would be fully depreciated

Z Depreciated: replacement cost using straight- line deprecietion over the useful 1ife;of the asset
3 In most cases, the facilities fee cost basis equals the depreciated replacement cost in this table; 

However the depreciated replacement cost of Engines 32 and 33 is not included in the impact fee

cost basis( see discussion in text)     

Table 3. 3 on the next page shows the estimated cost of planned future fire apparatus and

vehicles that will be needed to serve the City of Lathrop as it grows. That estimated cost is used
as the facilities fee cost basis for those items.    

i 
i

S'     Lathrop-Manteca Fire Disf ict i Paqe 3-3

Fire/ mpactFee Study . 
u/y 8, 20>9

i

182



Table 3. 3: Future Fire Apparatus and Vehicles

Estimated

Description
1 Cost 1 '

Truck 35 1, 500, 000

Truck 35 Equipment 250, 000

Engine 36 850, 000

Engine 36 Equipment 250, 000

Brush Engine 36 450, 000

Brush Engine 36 Equipment 175, 000

Engine 37  .      850, 000

Engine 37 Equipment 250, 000  ,

Brush Engine 37. 450, 000'

Brush Engine 37 Equipment 175, 000

Engine 38 850, 000

Engine 38 Equipment 250, 000

Brush Engine 38 450, 000

Brush Engine 38 Equipment 175, 000

Chevy Tahoe( 2)  120, 000
Total 6, 750, 000

1 Information provided by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire
District

Table 3. 4 summarizes the fire facilities fee cost basis from the three previous tables and also

includes the cost of personal protective equipment for additional firefighters needed to staff
future fire stations.and apparatus. 

Table 3. 4 Impact Fee Cost Basis- Existing and Future Assets

Facilities Fee

Component Cost Basis

Existing Fire Stations
1 14, 040, 000

Future Fire Stations and Training Facility
1

30, 200, 000

Existing- Fire Apparatus and Vehicles
Z

2, 947, 200

Future- Fire Apparatus and Vehicles
3 6, 750, 000

PPE for additional firefighters( 39)
4

390, 000

Total Cost   •       54, 327, 200      

1 See Table 3. 1 i

Z See Table 3. 2

3 See Table 3. 3

4 Estimated cost of personal protective equipment for additional
firefighters at$ 10, 000 each

i

N s Lathrop-Maateca Fire Districf j Paqe 3-4

Fire/ mpacf Fee Sfudy
u/y98, 20>9

183



i

i
I

j     .   

Average Cost per Square F.00t

As discussed in Chapter 2, building area in square feet is used as theidemand variable for fire
facilities fee calculations in this report. Table. 3. 5 caleulates an average cost per square foot by

dividing the total facilities fee cost. basis from Table 3. 4 by the total existing and future square  "
footage of building area at buildout of the City, as shown in Table 2. 4 in Chapter 2.

Table 3. 5 Fire Facilities Fee per Square, Foot

Total Facilities:      Total Building facilities Fee   '     Admin Tofal Facilities

Fee CoSt Basis
1

Square Footage
2

per Sq Ft
3

Charge( 2%) 4 Fee per Sq Ft 5
54, 327, 200 104,392, 140 0. 52 0. 01 -   0. 53

1 See Table 3. 4

Z Projected total existing and future building square footage at buildout of the City;
see Table 2. 4

3 Fire facilities fee per square foot of enclosed building area= total facilitie' s fee cost
basis/ total building square footage

4
Administrative charge= impact fee per square foot X 2%( see text)       '

5 Total fire facilities fee per square foot= impact fee per square foot+ administration

charge

I

Administrative. Charge. Table. 3. 5 also calculates a 2% administration charge that is added to

the fi,re facil,ities fee. That charge is intended to,cover the cost of accounting and reports and
other administrative activities required 6y the Mitigation Fee Act, as well as the cost of periodic
updates to tlie fee study.      

The fire facilities fee per squar.e foot shown in Table 3. 5 can be appl'ied directly to any future
development project in the City of Lathrop, based on the amount of ;enclosed building squar`e
footage contained in that project. It is not necessary to convert the square foot fee to a fee per
unit of development for various types of development.     

Projected Revenue

Table 3. 6 on the next page projects the total potential revenue. from the fire facilities fees

calculatecl in this chapter. Potential revenue is projected by applying the fire facilities fee per
square foot to added building square footage ( excluding schools and institutional development)
from Table 2. 3: That projection assumes that the total square footage;of future development in

the City of Lathrop is consistent with the forecast shown in Table 2. 3 in! Chapter 2.

i

I

Lafhrop- Manteca Fi e District I Page 3-5
Fire/ mpactFee Study i

u/y 18, 2019

i184



1  .

I

i.
I

Table 3. 6 Projected Revenue

Impact Fee Future Building Projected

per Sq Ft
1

Square Footage
Z Revenue 3

0.52 62, 421, 000 32,484, 803

1 See Table 3. 5

Z Projected future building square footage in the City excluding '     .
schools/ institutional buildings; see Table 2. 3

3 Projected impact fee revenue through buildout excluding admin
charge= impact fee per square foot X future building square footage

The total fire facilities fee revenue projected in Table 3. 6 is about $ 4.8 million less than the

estimated $ 37. 34 million cost of future facilities, apparatus and e'quipment shown in this

chapter.   

Updating the Fees i

The fire facilities fees calculated in this chapter. are based .current cost estimates. Over time,

both costs and development plans are likely to change, so we recommend that these fees be
reviewed periodically and adjusted if necessary to reflect actual costs and development plans.       

Nexus Summary

As discussed in Chapter 1 of this report, Section 66001 of the Mit'igation Fee Act requires that

an agency establishing, increasing or imposing impact fees, must make findings to:

Identify the purpose of the fee;

Identify the use of.the fee; and,

Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between:

a.  The use of the fee and the development type on which it is imposed;

b.  The need for the . facility and the type of development on which the fee is
i.mposed; and

c.  The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to ;the development
project.  

Satisfying those requirements also ensures that the fees meet the " rational nexus" and " rough
proportionality" standards enunciafed in leading court decisions bearing on impact fees and
other exactions. ( For.more detail, see ': Legal Framework for Impact Fees" in Chapter 1.)

The following paragraphs explain how the fire facilities fees calculated in this chapter satisfy
those req irements.

i

N BS Lafhrop-Manteca Fi e Disfrict Paqe 3-6

Fire/ mpactFee.Study
u/y>8, 20>9

i185



Purpose of the Fee: The purpose. of the fire facilities fees calculated in this chapter is` protect   ,

the public health safefy and welfare by ensuring that the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District has. the
facilities, apparatus; vehicles and equipment necessary to provide adequate fire protection and

emergency medical services to new devefopment in the City of Lathrop;.

Use of the Fee. Fire facilities fees calculated in this chapter will be used to pay for future fire
protection facilities, apparatus, vehicles and equipment identified in th is report.

Reasonable Relationship between the Use of the Fee and the Development Type on Which It
Is Imposed. The facilities, apparatus, vehicles and equipment to be funded by fire facilities fees

calculated in this report will support fire protection and other emergency services provided by

the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District to all new development in the City of Lathrop.`

Reasonable Relationship be#ween the Need for the Facilities and the iType of Development on
Which the Fee Is Imposed. The need for facilities, apparatus, vehicles and equipmenf funded by

fire facilities fees calculated in this report and needed to serve new development in the City of

Lathrop is identified in the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District 2018 Master Plan.       

Reasonable Relationship between the Amount of the Fee and the Facility Cost Attributable to
the Development Project. The amount of the fire facilities fees charged to a deveiopment

project will depend on the amount.of building square footage added by that project. Thus, the
fee, cha'rged to a development project reflects that project' s proportionate share of the cost of

Lathrop- Manteca Fire District facilities,  apparatus,  vehicles and equipment serving futu,re

development in, the City of Lathrop:

i

i

I       .

I
i

I

NBS Lathrop- Manteca Fire District
i Page 3. 7

Fire/ mpactFee Study
u/y 8, 20 9    

186



4. Implementation       

This cha pter of the report contains recommendations for adoptio'n and administration of
impact fees, and for the interpretation and application of the development impact fees

calculated in this study. It was not prepared by an attorney and is not intended as legal advice.

Statutory requirements for the adoption and administration of fees imposed as a condition of
development approval ( impact fees) are found in the Mitigation Fee Act ( Government Code

Sections 66000 etseq.).       

Adoption

As discussed in Chapter 1, California Health and Safety Code Section 13916, which is part of the
Fire Protection District Law of 198Z, does not allow the board of a fire protection. district to
charge a fee on new construction or development for the construction of public improvements

or facilities or the acquisition of equipment.    

Consequently, the fire facilities fees calculated in this report, which are intended to apply only
to that portion of the District which lie's within the City of Lathrop, must be adopted by. the
Lathrop City Council.      

The form in which fire facilities fees are enacted should be determined by the City attorney.  . 
Procedures for adoption of fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act, including notice and public

hearing requirements, are specified in Government Code Sections 66016 and 66018.  It should

be noted that Section 66018 refers to Government Code Section 6062a, which requires that the

public hearing notice be published at least twice during the 10- day notice period.  Government
Code Section 66017 provides that fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act do not become

effective until 60 days after final action by the governing body.

Actions establishing or increasing fees subject to the Mitigation Act require certain findings, as
set forth in Government Code Section 66001 and discussed below and in Chapter 1 of this .
report.      

Establishment of Fees.  Pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, Section 66001( a), when an agency

establishes fees to be imposed as a condition of development approval, it must make findings

to:

1.       Identify the purpose of the fee;

2.       Identify the use of the fee; and

3.       Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:

a.       The use of the fee and the type of development project
on which it is imposed;

b.       The need for the facility and the type of development
project on which the fee is imposed

NBS Lathrop-Manteca Fi e District i Page 4-> .  

Fire/ mpact Fee Sfudy
u/y 18, 2099

187



I

Examples of findings that could be used for fire facilities fees calculated in this study are shown
below. The specific language of such findings should be reviewed and approved by the City

Attorney. A more complete discussion of the nexus for the fire facilities fees can be found in
Chapter 3 of this report.

Sample Finding: Purpose of the Fee. The City Council finds that the purpose of the fire
facilities fees hereby enacted is to protect the public health, safety and welfare by
requiring new development to contribute to the cost of fire protection facilities needed
to mitigate the impacts of new development.     

Sample Finding:  Use of the Fee.  THe City Council finds that revenue from the fire

facilities fees hereby enacted will be used to provide public facilities needed to mitigate
the impacts of new development in the City and identified in the 2019 Lathrop- Manteca

Fire Facilities Fee Study by NBS. Z

Sample Finding:  Reasonable Relationship:  Based on analysis presented in the 2019

Lathrop- Manteca Fire Facilities. Fee Study by NBS, the City Council finds that there is a
reasonable relationship between:

a.       The use of the fees and the types of development projects on

which they are imposed; and,  

b.       The need for facilities and the types of development projects

on which the, fees are imposed.    

c.       The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable to the
development project on which it is imposed:

Administration

The California Mitigation Fee Act  ( Government Code Sections 66000 et seq.)  mandates

procedures for administration of impact fee programs, including collection and accounting,

reporting; and r.efunds.  References to code sections in the following paragraphs pertain to the
California Government Code.

Imposition of Fees. Pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, Section 66001( a), when' an agenCy

imposes an impact fee upon a specific development project, it must make essentially the same
findings adopted upon establishment of the fees to:    •   

1.       Identify the purpose of the fee;       

2.       Identify the use of the fee; and

3.       Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:       

z

According to Gov' t Code Section 6600( a)( z), the use' of the fee may be specified in a capital improvement
plan, the General Plan, or other public documents that identify the public facilitie; s for which the fee is charged.       

The findings recommended here identify this impact fee study as the source of tfiat information.

I
j

N BS Lafhrop-Manteca Fi e Disfiict Page 4-2

Fire/ mpactFee Sfudy i
u/y>8, 2019

188



a..      The use of the fee and the type of development project

on which it is imposed;

b.       The need for the facility and the type of development
project on which the fee is imposed

i

Per Section 66001 ( b), at the time when an impact fee is imposed o'n a specific development

project, the City is .also required to make a finding to determine how there is a reasonable
relationship between: 

c.       The amount of the fee and the facility cost attributable
to the development project on which it is imposed..

The sample findings proposed in the previous section are intended to satisfy the requirements

of Sections 66001( a) and 66001( b).  

In addition, Section 66006 ( f) provides that a local agency, at the time it imposes a fee for public
improvements on a specific development project, "... shall identify the public improvement that

the fee will be used to finance."  The required notification could refer to the improvements

identified in this study.       

Section 66020 ( d) ( 1) requires that the agency, at the time it imposes an impact fee, provide the
applicant with a written statement of the amount of the fee and written notice of a 90- day

period during which the imposition of the fee can be protested. Failure to protest imposition of
the fee during that period may deprive the fee payer of the right to subsequent legal challenge.

Section 66022 ( a) provides a separate procedure for challenging the establishment of an impact
fees. Such challenges must be filed within 120 days of enactment.     ;

Collection of Fees. Section 66007 ( a), provides that a local agency shall not require payment of
fees by developers of residential projects prior to the date of final in;spection, or issuance of a
certificate of occupancy, whichever occurs first.      

However, " utility service fees"  ( not defined) may be collected upon application for utility
service: In a residential development project of more than one. dwelling unit, Section 66007 ( a)

allows the agency to choose to collect fees either for individual unit's or for phases upon final
inspection, or for the entire project upon final. inspection of the first dwelling unit comp leted.

Section 66007 ( b) provides two exceptions when the local agency may require the payment of
fees from developers of residential projects at an earlier time: ( 1) when the local agency
determines that the fees " will be collected for public improvements or facilities for which an

account has been established and funds appropriated and for wtiich the local agency has
adopted a proposed construction schedule or plan prior to final inspection or issuance of the

certificate of occupancy" or ( 2) the fees are " to reimburse the local agency for expenditures
previously made."     I

Statutory restrictions on the time at which fees may be collected do not apply to non-
residential development;   I  ,

N B'     Lafh op- Manteca Fire Dist ict Page 4-3

Fi e/ mpact Fee Study
u/y>8, 20 9

I
189



In cases where the fees are not collected upon issuance of building permits, Subsections 66007

c) ( 1) and ( 2) provide that the City may require the property owner to execute a contract to

pay the fee, and to record that contract as a lien against the property. until the fees are paid.       ;

Earmarking and Expenditure of Fee Revenue.   Section 66006 ( a} mandates that fees be

deposited " with other fees for the improvement in a separate capital; facilities account or fund.

in a manner to avoid any commingling of the fees with other revenues and funds of the local
agency, except for temporary investments, and expend those fees s.olely for the purpose for
which the fee was collected."  Section 66006 ( a) also requires that, interest earned on the fee

revenues be placed in the capital account and used for the same purpose.

The language of the law is not clear as to whether depositing fees, " with other fees for the
impr.ovement" refers to a specific capital improvement or a class. of improvements ( e. g., street

improvements).

We are not aware of any municipality that has interpreted that language to mean that funds
must be segregated by individual projects.  And, as a practical matter, that approach would be
unworkable in any event because it would mean that no pay- as' you- go project could be
constructed until all , benefiting development had paid the fees. ; Common practice is to

maintain separate funds or accounts for impact fee revenues by facility category ( e. g., fire

protection or park improvements), but not for individual projects.     ;

Impact Fee Exemptions, Reductions, and Waivers.  In the event that a development project is

found to have no impact on facilities for, which impact fees are charged, su.ch project must be
exempted from the fees.    

If a project has characteristics that will make its impacts on a particular public facility or

infrastructure system significantly and permanently smaller than the average impact used to
calculate impact fees in this study, the fees should be reduced accordingly.  Per Section 66001
b), there must be a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the

public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is imposed.  The fee reduction
is. required if the fee is not proportional to the impact of.the development on relevant public

facilities.

In some cases, the agency. may desire to voluntarily waive or reduce impact fees. that would
otherwise apply to a project as a way of promoting goals such as. affordable housing or
economic development.  Such a waiver or reduction may not result in increased costs to other
development projects, so the effect us such policies is that the lost r.evenue must be made up
from other fund sources.   

Credit for Improvements Provided by Developers.  If the City requires a developer,  as a
condition of pr.oject approval to dedicate land or construct facilities or improvements for which

impact fees are charged, the City should ensure that the impact fees are adjusted so that the

overall contribution by the developer does not exceed the impact created by the development.

In the event that a developer voluntarily offers to dedicate land, or construct facilities or
improvements in lieu of paying impact fees, the City may accept or 'reject such offers, and may

NB     Lathrop-Manteca Fi e Disf cf Page 4-4

Fire/ mpact.Fee Study
u/y>8, 20>9  ' 

190



i

I .
i

i

negotiate the terms under which such an offer would be accepted. Excess contributions by a

developer may be offset by reimbursement agreements.   

Credit for Existing Development.    If a project involves replacernent,  redevelopment or

intensification of previously existing development, impact fees should be applied only to the
portion of the project that represents a net increase in demand . for relevant City facilities,
applying the demand factors used in this study to,calculate that particular impact fee. ,

Annual Report. Section 66006 ( b) ( 1) requires that once each year; within 180 days of the close

of the fiscal year, the local agency must make available to the public the following information
for each separate account established to receive impact fee revenues: '

1.  A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund;     i
I

2.  The amount of the fee;
I

3.  The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund;       

4:  The amounf of the fees collected and interest earned;

5.  Identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the
amount of the expenditures on each improve,ment, including th'e percentage of the
cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees;      

6.  Identification of the approximate date by which the construction of a public
improvement wilf commence, if the City determines sufficient funds have been

collected to complete financing of an incomplete public improvement;

7.  A description of each inter- fund transfer or loan made from- thei account or fund,

including interest rates, repayment dates, and a description ofthe improvement. on
which the transfer or loan will be expended; 

8.  The amount of any refunds or allocations made pursuant to Secition 66001, paragraphs
e) and ( f).

The annual report must be reviewed by the City Council at its next regularly scheduled public
meeting, but not less than 15 days after the statements are_made pub1lic, per Section 66006 ( b)
2).           .     

Refunds under the Mitigation Fee Act.  Prior to 1996, The Mitigation Fee Act required that a

local agency collecting impact fees was required to expend or commit impact fee revenue

within five years, or make findings to justify a continued need for the money. Otherwise, those
funds had to be refunded.  SB 1693, adopted in 1996 as an amendment to the Mitigation Fee

Act, changed that requirement in material ways.      

Now, Section 66001 ( d) requires that, for the fifth fiscal year following the first deposit of any
impact fee revenue into an account or fund as required by Section 66006 ( b), and every five
years thereafter, the local agency shall make all of the following findi ngs for any fee revenue  ,_
that remains unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted:  .      

i

N gs Lathrop- Maateca Fire District . .       Page 4:5

Fire/ mpacf Fee Study .
u/y 8, 20>9

i
I

j
191



i

1.  Identify the purpose to which the fee will be put;

2.  Demonstrate the reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for
which it is charged;

3.  Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing of
incomplete improvements for which impact fees are to be used;       

4.  Designate the approximate dates on which the funding necessary to complete

financing of those improvements will be deposited into the appropriate account
or fund. 

Those findings are to be made in conjunction with the annual reports discussed above.  If such  

findings are not made as required by Section 66001, the local agency could be required to .
refund the moneys in the account or fund, per Section 66001 ( d)..      

Once the agency determines that sufficient funds have been collected to complete financing on
incomplete improvements for which impact fee revenue is to be used, it must, within 180 days,

of that determination, identify an approximate date by which construction of the public
improvement will be commenced ( Section 66001 ( e)):  If the agency fails to comply with that
requirement,  it must refund impact fee. r.evenue in the accourit according to procedures

specified in Section 66001 ( d).  

Annual Update of the Capital Improvement Plan.  Section 66002 ( b) of the Mitigation Fee Act ,

provides that if a local agency adopt s a capital improvement plan to; identify the use of impact
fees, that plan must be adopted and annually updated by a resolution of the governing body at
a noficed public hearing. The alternative, per Section 66001 ( a) ( 2) is to identify improvements

by applicable general or specific plans or in other public documents.

In most cases, the CIP identifies projects for a limited number of years and may not include all
improvements needed to serve future development covered by the impact fee study.   We

recommend that the City Council cite this study as the public document identifying the use of
the fees.

Indexing of Impact Fees.  Where impact fees calculated in this repo rt are based on current

costs, those costs should, if possible, be adjusted periodically to account for changes in the cost
of facilities or other capital assets that will be funded by the impact fees.  That adjustment is

intended to account for escalation in costs for land, construction, vehicles and other relevant

capital assets. We recommend the Engineering News.Record Building Cost Index as the primary
basis for indexing construction costs.  Costs for fire apparatus and vehicles should be adjusted

based on recent purchases. Land costs should be adjusted based on changes in local land prices.

Training and Public Information

Effective administration of an impact fee program requires considerable preparation and

training.  It is important that those responsible for collecting the fees, and for explaining them

I

N B'    Lathrop-Manteca Fice District Page 4-6

Fire/ mpact Fee Sfudy j
u/y 98, 2019

192



I   -

to the public, understand both the details of the fee program and its supporting rationale as

detailed in th.is report.    

Before impact fees are implemented, a staff training workshop is highly desirable if more than a
handful of employees will be involved in collecting or accounting for fees.

It is also important that handouts providing information about impact fees to the public explain
the purpose and use of particular impact fees and distinguish them from other types: of fees,

such as user fees for application pro.cessing.. 

Finally,  anyone responsible for. accounting,  capital budgeting, or project management for
projects involving impact fee funding must be fully aware of the restrictions placed on. the
expenditure of impact fee revenues.  Fees must be expended for facilities and other capital.

assets identified in this report.      j

i .     

i

1 N BS Lathrop- Manteca Fire District Paye 4-7

Fire/ mpactFee Study
u/y 8, 20>9

193



194



i    ----- ---  - ----  --

ITEM 5. 4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT   

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT NO.

TA- 19- 78  ,

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance to

Amend Title 17 of the Lathrop Municipal Code
LMC)   by Adding Chapter  17. 13 to Allow the

Creation of Easements by Covenant.

SUMMARY:

The proposed text amendment is a staff- initiated proposal to add a new Chapter,

17. 13 to the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) to allow the creation of easements by
covenants. Government Code sections 65870- 65875 creates an exception that allows

creation of easements on properties held by a common owner,, when necessary to
serve the limited purpose of parking,  ingress,  egress,  emergency access,  etc.

However,  before the City can enter into or establish such an easement,  the

Government Code requires the City to pass a, local enabling ordinance.

Staff recommends that the City Council consider all information presented at the
public hearing, consider all public testimony, and if determined to be appropriate,

adopt an Ordinance to add a new Chapter 17. 13 to the LMC to allow. the creation of

easements by covenants.

BACKGROUND:     

In certain situations, such as sharing of parking or access, s'ubdividing or merging of
parcels of land,  or the vacation of streets where a parcel may be landlocked,  an

easement is necessary to maintain access.  In these situations,  an easement can

protect the rights of property owners. However, when the properties in question ar.e
owned by the same person or entity, an easement cannot be created because any
restrictions placed by the current owner on himself or herself are not binding against
any future owner of that property.  Therefore,  access to the property or other
enjoyment of the property could be inhibited by a future owner of one of the
separated properties in question.

Government Code sections 65870- 65875 creates an exception to this general rule

and allow creation of easements on properties held by a common owner,  when

necessary to serve the limited purposes of parking,  ingress,  egress,  emergency
access, landscaping, or open space purposes.

195



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -

EASEMENTS BY COVENANT

However,  before the City can require such an easement,  the Government Code

requires the City to pass a local enabling ordinance that allows creation of easements
for properties held in common ownership. The covenant of easement document would
describe the parcel to be subject to the easement and the parcel to be benefited.

At their regular meeting of July 17,   2019,  the Planning Commission voted

unanimously ( 4- 0), one absent, to recommend the City Council adopt an Ordinance
regarding the proposed amendment to the Lathrop Municipal Code. Attached is the
Planning Commission Resolution No. 19- 8 for reference. ( Attachment # 3).

ANALYSIS:

Staff is recommending a new chapter ( 17. 13) under Title 17 of the LMC that would

provide a solution to s'ituations associated with creating easements over properties
held in common ownership. The new Chapter 17. 13 would allow for the recordation
of covenants of easement. Although this situation is infrequent in the City, passage
of this ordinance will solve a significant City and developer problem of trying to satisfy
requirements to ensure that these easements are permanent. This ordinance will help
eliminate delay in development projects by simplifying the legal requirements for
property owners in this situation and enable the City and property owners to ensure
that necessary easements exist in perpetuity.

For example, the Planning Commission recently approved the Tru by Hilton Hotel
project on Louise Avenue.  In order for the project to meet the minimum parking
requirement, it was required to share parking and access with the adjacent Hampton
Inn  & Suites Hotel which had excess parking spaces.  Since the owner for both

properties are the same, a covenant involving the City as the third party is necessary
to ensure that the easement is binding and in perpetuity in the event of future
ownership change. These covenants would act as easements while the properties are
held by a common owner and revert to easements when the properties become
owned by separate entities.       

The fee for processing a Covenant of Easement document is  $ 150,  which is the

current fee established for easement review. The applicants would be required to

take the document for recordation and pay the associated fee at the San Joaquin
County Clerk/ Recorder' s office.

Municipal Code Amendments

According to the Lathrop Municipal Code, amendments to the Zoning Ordinance must
be reviewed by the Planning Commission with a recommendation forwarded to the
City Council for approval.  Before any recommendation to approve by the Planning
Commission,  or final approval by the City Council, the following finding must be
made:

That the proposed amendment will be consistent with applicable provisions of the

General Plan':

196



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 3

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

EASEMENTS BY COVENANT

Staff has determined that the proposed code amendments conforms to the General

Plan. The attached resolution includes the above required finding.

Public Notice

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin on August 1, 2019
and the meeting agenda was posted at our designated posting locations in the City.
As of the writing of this report, no comments were received in favor or against the
proposed amendments.

CEQA REVIEW:

The proposed Municipal Code Text Amendment is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 15061 ( b) ( 3) by the General Rule" that
CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical
change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in
the environment. The amendment does not change the zoning designation on any
individual property and does not affect existing land use or density. The purpose of
the amendment is primarily procedural in nature. It also does not propose or require
any specific development project, any specific development project undertaken in the
future pursuant to the amended zoning code would be required to comply with CEQA
at that time.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Council consider all
information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and, if

determined to be appropriate, take the following action:

Introduce an Ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC)
by adding Chapter 17. 13 to allow the creation of easements by covenant.

FISCAL IMPACT:   

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Lathrop, only staff time to prepare the report.
Applicants will be required to pay the Covenant of Easement processing fee of $ 150,

which is the current fee established for easement review.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.       Ordinance Approving Municipal Code Text Amendment TA- 19- 78
2.       New Chapter 17. 13 Covenants for Easements

3.       Planning Commission Resolution No. 19- 8

197



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 4

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUIVCIL I EGULAR MEETIMG

EA EMENTS BY CO OENANT

APPROVALS:

l - l

Ric Caguia Date

Pr'  cipal PI ner

M rk M issn r Date

Community Development Director

3d  ' 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z'`
S J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

198



ORDINANCE NO. 19-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO
AMEND TITLE 17 OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING A NEW

CHAPTER 17. 13 TO ALLOW THE CREATION OF EASEMENTS BY COVENANT

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing at a regular meeting on July 17,  2019,  at which they adopted PC
Resolution No.  19- 8 recommending the City Council adopt Municipal Code Text
Amendment No. TA- 19- 78 pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public
hearing at a regular meeting on August 12,  2019 to review and consider the

Municipal Code Amendment; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed code amendment is Citywide and affects all

applicable properties in the City; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop desires to protect the interest of future
property owners by requiring easements,  when necessary to provide for access,
parking  ( ingress,  egress,  or emergency access),  light and/ or air access,  signage,

landscaping, and/ or open space purposes; and

WHEREAS, Government Code sections 65870- 65875 allow for the creation

of easements on properties held by a common owner whenever the local agency
passes a local enabling ordinance that allows creation of easements for properties
held in common ownership by covenant; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the
transmittal of a Planning Commission recommendation to the City Council by
resolution; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed code amendment is exempt accorcling to the
California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 § 15061 by the " General Rule"

that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical
change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in
the environment; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that the.  proposed code amendment is
consistent with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement
the City' s Economic Development goals by providing streamline procedures and
incorporate updated policies; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony preserited to date.

Ordinance No. 19-     

199



NOW, THEREF0IZE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration,  does hereby approve
Municipal Code Amendment as shown on Attachment 2", incorporated by reference
herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.  The Lathrop Municipal Code is hereby amended as shown in Attachment
2", incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2.     This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given

effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so
as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by
law.

Section 3.     Severabilitv.     If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,

sentence,   clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or

invalidity of any section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,  clause or

phrase.

Section 4.     Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 5.     Publication.   Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the

City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published in full accordance
with Section 36933 of the Government Code.

Ordinance No. 19-

200



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop on the 12t" 

day of August 2019, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED at
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on

9th

day of September
2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 19-

201



ATTA HMENT " ..     '°

Chapter 17. 13 - COVENANTS FOR EASEIVIENT

17. 13. 010- Purpose.

This chapter provides procedures for the creation of easements through the execution and recordation of

covenants, pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65870 to 65875.

17. 13. 020- Applicability.

A. This chapter shall apply to all development projects approved by the city, and acts independently from
any other authority or method for the city to require an easement.

B. The provisions of this chapter shall only apply when the covenant for easement is for:

1. Parking;

2. Ingress, egress;

3. Emergency access;

4. Light or air access;

5. Landscaping;

6. Open space purposes.

C. At the time of recording the covenant of easement, all the real property benefited or burdened by said
covenant shall be in common ownership.

17. 13. 030— Preparation of covenant.

A. Whenever a covenant of easement is required, the covenant shall be either:

1. In a form and manner approved by the City Attorney based upon the advice of the City Engineer and
Community Development Director; or,

2. Whenever the City Attorney prepares a covenant of easement, the city shall be entitled to
reimbursement from the applicant for all associated costs.

17. 13. 040 - Content of covenant.

A covenant of easement required by this chapter shall contain, at a minimum, the following elements:

A. Identification of the owner or owners of the real property to be burdened, including a statement that
both the burdened and benefited parcels are under common ownership.

B. A consent to the covenant of easement and its recording by the record owner or owners to the
covenant.

C. Identification and legal description of the real property to be benefited and to be burdened by the
covenant.

D. A statement that said covenant shall act as an easement pursuant to Chapter 3 ( commencing with
Section 801) of Title 2 of Part 2 of Division 2 of the California Civil Code, including an express
statement that the easement and covenant of easement shall not merge into any other interest in real
property pursuant to California Government Code Section 65871( b).

E. A statement that the covenant of easement shall run with the land, be binding upon all successors in
interest to the burdened real property, inure to all successors in interest to the real property benefited,
and be subject to California Civil Code Section 1104.

F. A statement of the purpose of the easement( i.e. for access, parking, etc.).

202



G. Identification of the approval, permit, or designation granted which required the covenant.

H. A statement identifying the Lathrop Municipal Code section which sets forth the procedure for release
of the covenant.

17. 13. 050— Reviewing authority.

A. The Community Development Director or the City Manager' s designee may accept an easement on
behalf of the City when such an easement is required as a condition of a land use approval, permit or
designation pursuant to this title.

17. 13. 060- Release of covenant.   

A. Pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions hereinafter set forth in this part, the Planning
Commission and the City Council, on appeal from a decision of the Planning Commission, may
approve and attthorize recordation of a release of a covenant of easement.

17. 13. 070 - Petition of release.

A. Any person inay request that the city make a determination as to whether the restriction imposed by
the covenant of easement is still necessary to achieve the city's land use goals. The determination of
the need for the covenant of easement shall be made by the Planning Commission. A person shall be
entitled to only one such determination in any twelve ( 12) month period.

B. The petition for release of a covenant of easement shall be filed in writing with the Community
Development Department. The application shall include a fee as set by City Council resolution.

17. 13. 080— Hearing by the Planning Commission.

A. Upon receipt of a completed application, the Community Development Director shall set the matter
for public hearing before the Planning Commission, in a manner consistent with Chapter 17. 124. 040
Notice of Public Hearing).

B. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall determine and make a finding,
based upon substantial evidence in the record, whether or not the restriction imposed by the covenant
of easement is still necessary to achieve the land use goals of the city. If the Planning Commission
determines that the covenant for easement is still required, the Planning Commission shall, by
resolution, determine that the need still exists.

C. If the Planning Commission finds that the covenant of easement is no longer necessary, the City shall
record a release of the covenant of easement in the office of the San Joaquin County Recorder' s
Office.

17. 13. 090— Appeal to City Council.

A. The Planning Commission action on the continuing need for the covenant of easement is subject to
appeal to the City Council by following the procedure set forth in Chapter 17. 125 ( Appeals).

B. The City Council' s determination shall be final and conclusive.

203



ATTACH IENT "       '°

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 19- 8

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANIVING COIVIlVIISSION OF THE CITY OF LATI ROP

RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND TITLE 17 OF THE LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING CHAPTER 17. 13 TO ALLOW THE CREATION OF

EASEMENTS BY COVENANT ( TA-19- 78)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting
to consider the text amendment pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the proposed text amendment is Citywide and affects all applicable properties

in the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop desires to protect the interest of future property owners by
requiring easements, when necessary to provide for access, parking ( ingress, egress, or emergency
access), light and/or air access, signage, landscaping, ancUor open space purposes; and

WHEREAS, Government Code sections 65870- 65875 allow for the creation of easements

on properties held by a common owner whenever the local agency passes a local enabling ordinance
that allows creation of easements for properties held in common ownership by covenant; and

WHEREAS, chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the transmittal of a
recommendation to the City Cotmcil by resolution; and

W EREAS,  the proposed text amendment is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 § 15061 by the " General Rule" that CEQA applies

only to projects that have a potentia] for causing a direct physical change in the environment, or a
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Coinmission finds that the proposed text amendment is consistent
with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement the City' s Economic
Development goals by providing streamline procedure and policies that aid development; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as required by
law; and

W IEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

NOVV, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council adopt Zoning Text
Amendment No. TA- 19- 78 as shown in Attachment 2 of the Staff Report, incorporated by reference
herein.

Planning Commission Resolution No. 19- 8 Page 1 of 2

204



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
regular meeting on the 17" day of Jttly, 2019 by the following vote:

AYES:  Gatto, Ralmilay, Ishihara, Rhodes

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Dresser

Bennie Gatto, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ark eissner,   ecretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 19- 8 Page 2 of 2

205



206



CITY MANAGER' S REPOI T
ITEM 5. 5

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPOIN7' MEIVT OF  iOTING DELEGATE FOR 2019

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL

CONFERENCE

RECOMMENDATION:     Appoint City' s Voting Delegate for the 2019 League
of California Cities lnnual Conference, October 16-

18, Long Beach

BACKGROUND:   

Each year, the League of California Cities holds an Annual Conference and business

meeting to decide League policy for the upcoming year.  This year, the Conference

is being held at the Long Beach Convention Center, October 16 - 18, 2019. In order

for the City to participate as a voting member during the Annual Business Meeting,
the City Council must formally appoint one voting delegate and an alternate as the
City' s official representatives.

Tonight' s discussion item is intended for the City Council to discuss availability
amongst its members,  consider formally appointing one voting delegate and

potentially an alternate as the City' s official representatives.

REASON FOR FtECOMMENDATION:

The City would like to remain informed and participate in the policy decision- making
process for the League of California Cities.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds are available in the City Council Training & Travel account for FY

2019- 20 for one to two Councilmembers to attend this event. The approximate cost
per person is estimated at $ 550 for conference registration,  hotel expenses,  and

airfare is approximately an additional $ 850. The total cost is expected not to exceed

1, 400 per person.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  2019 Annual Conference Announcement and Tentative Schedule of Events

B.  2019 Annual Conference Voting Procedures and Delegate/ Alternate Form

207



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

VOTING DELEGATE FOR 2019 LOCC ANNUAL CONFERENCE

APPROVALS:

a/ jq
eresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8• i t q
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

208



ATTACHMENT ._

A NN UAL
CONFERENCE

EXPO I 2019
M

r.,   +'     

r , "' 

l      LEAGUE    .    
t

a   ;

E    

C: Lf FOI: N 1 ,       
Y'+ '      `   

v..  

I T 1 F S
t     

t: 
Y

f/     ,    a F- s 1

h       

f ;.   r

F  

r

r `'

M.         '   .

ro
s .      s ik

i t
o

y         A

t E F  `    `            

r,:       r„ t-      

r s r+•r lr

Rp,!  ' Mn'.:.
y.      

g  

I ..    y
s

4       „      j

W

F    -:;

k   P

t   _     -
y

g

x'         j''

t 2       
f       `

r         » .{

i a`    

i 
d             ti  ' i#y

yx. 

r4    +

irSS

g       

r 

Nf
ir ,

r
tr    

e    :"'}   ...  i.. y$.   4,':: y.

n     _   .   ,
t             a'

s

f      +'  s'
sv

g` M"

r"
r` c -      i'    

n s

f

r,

I       

r

w Z "     .vy      '  C   

r'       $    

i
r   .

av '

f  "f``  a

y.:     

j

i 1 Y

3'..         ......   }     ; r.   •.:   l       .

f:   b s, c      a al .

a d     ',' ,      ..       ..;...

4

s.      C 1        

t

yp .
t.   

t     , x  

e`''! F'    ,
xti a w   ^ t" l°"

a° i" F            
v.

y

1   a t-!.  r     „
9

y

Y

v a
x' i1+a3.-   x

209



3  

F

f`=`   
n; s

v 

e.

s
r- a  - °

3 vz..  

i

s          """^ ,        ,  

x-  
yi:=`

a,     s:.

z-..       

s;     z"  

µ';    

4,.           
Xv,`      

s v-.
r%  

4
x' 

w

w:;_=.:„ 3

1   '  ,:

mr.,.  ,  , u.,, r.
a..""

a. r,.» 

s,_

S

w NVITATION TO

ATTEND I am excited to invite you to attend the League of California Cities 2019

Annual Conference& Expo in Long Beach this October 16-

18.The League's Annual Conference& Expo isan opportunity for city officials to learn
and collaborate on solutions forthe common challenges facing California cities. And
an opportunity to celebrate the accomplishmentsof California cities and the

League. When you are in Long Beach, you will want to be sure to visit the Expo,where you

will meet companies that provide products and solutions to help you enhance the
services you provide for your

communities. I look forward to seeing you in Long Beach this

fal!!Jan

Arbuckle Council Member, Grass
Valley President, Leagueof California

Cities Leagueof Califania Cities 2013 Anr. ual Conference&

210



PROGRAM AT A GLANCE:

Wednesday, Octr ber 16
8: 00 a. m.- 6: 00 p. m.................................... Registration Open

8: 30 a. m.- 1: 00 p. m.................................... City Clerks Workshop
odditional registration required)

9: 00- 11: 00 a. m........................................... Policy Committees; AB 1234 Ethics Training
11: 00 a. m.- 12: 00 p. m................................ Department Business Meetings

11: 30 a. m. - 1: 15 p. m................................. Regional Division Lunches

12: 45- 1: 15 p. m........................................... First Time Attendee Orientation

1: 30- 3: 30 p. m............................................. Opening General Session

3: 45- 5: 00 p. m............................................. Concurrent Sessions

5: 00- 7: 00 p. m............................................. Grand Opening Expo Hall& Host City Reception
exhibitor exdusive; no competing events)

7: 00- 10: 00 p. m........................................... CitiPAC Leadership Reception

Thursday, Octaber 17
7: 00 a. m.- 4: 00 p. m.................................... Registration Open

8: 15- 9: 30 a. m.............................................. Concurrent Sessions

9: 00 a. m.- 4: 00 p. m.................................... Expo Open

9: 45- 11: 45 a. m........................................... General Session

11: 30 a. m.- 1: 00 p. m.................................. Attendee Lunch in Expo HaU

1: 00- 2: 15 p. m............................................. General Reso( utions Committee

1: 00- 5: 30 p. m............................................. Concurrent Sessions

2: 15- 2: 45 p. m............................................. Diversity Caucus Board Meetings

4: 00- 5: 30 p. m............................................. Board of Directors Meeting

Evening.......................................................... Division and Caucus Events

Friday, October 18
7: 30 a. m.- 12: 00 p. m.................................. Registration Open

7: 30- 9: 15 a. m.............................................. Regional Division Breakfasts

8: 00 a. m.- 12: 15 p. m.................................. Concurrent Sessions

8: 45- 10: 45 a. m........................................... AB 1661 Sexual Harassment Prevention Training
12: 30- 2: 30 p. m........................................... Closing Luncheon& General Assembly

NOTE: Conference Registration is required to attend all conference activities including
Department and Division meetings and the General Assembly.

League of California Cities 2019 Annual Conference& Expo

211



w    

u           

x   

r!,

4

iz  

n. 

r

a          

d

v

p

o

x  ""

n  

r     "°`   +

t^     %   

ync

l    

t

A 

F

x

r .

7

l     

I...     

Q;^

I.

T   

k

p    

g.

i.

cM^

NDaMprm,

ti>     

n. %+{     . 

1 

1    .,

a,

L.
5eat4

Ys 

4

s

r

T'      

3

7"     .

5

5

k   

4,

n  ..

4

r

c

i'.     

m..

y      '   

i

a5,:      '

s''  

a'

M

M1   

N

f.

4+  "

e

1

ac '"

r    `      `    

ti

e,       

l' :.*       .    

c " 

s  '     

r

s

4. [  

f

r  

4.

y{       

1

y,'

kv #      

44y  _'

y     

r7'

I:

C

R

M

W
Y

iP      &      ,

y,

i•      

Y<.   

ik..;

J.:

l

1'  

q€'..

ij   =$ 

C        :

1

S.

N...

7

k

MS

a

i+

4

1  -:.,

G.   "

c :

g      .,        

a.     

r

r^' 

4   

t

l

I/

s

E   

az3

t

R      

dsr

2

F

7 _    .

p.  

ro;,

r'`

k

t

t   

S       ,  

t      

4

4 

h  _{

j

R

a

w,

1{,   .,     

i  ^"  *'    }       

Y     

1°£

3

N

b  '   

u"
Q  ,...'$

Rw

4.
c

A 

l,*

F.

e" +^` '_

L

c

P  ""  

k    .'

C

L

v.

l

t

w

f  '     

r

l.  ;       

F _      

YS-       

r             - '    '       -  

r

i..:       

v  ,-_       .   

i   ".   '*    ..    .. .   

i

x

i.    

g       ' '  

r^ 

2,`

k"   `

v,'

i

n7

q 

i`'.,``,;..

t?.,        

s-,

n .;     .  __ , 

212



r   _. ..__  . :...       :.   a _.:      

3 I

GE 1E L SESStONs

Duringthe Opening General Session on Wednesday, attendees      '"'.'~''''-"
A"'

will hearfrom a dynamic keynote speaker and the League will       

announce the winners ofthe Helen Putnam Award for Excellence.

On Thursday morning, attendees will hear from a variety of speakers about
futuristic" tools that are available to city leaders of today and how technology will

c ntinue to transform the landscape of our communities. Hear ideas on how you

c< n ensure your city will not only survive, but also adapt and thrive as our state
ex: eriences major changes in demographics, mobility, and technology.

I riday' s General Session is where the work gets done. Come celebrate the future of
tr e League as the 2019— 20 Board of Directors are sworn into office. In addition,

any resolutions approved bythe policy committees and/ or General Resolutions
Committee will be considered.

s a

P

r ,     

t

w__

4

y

s

o

s '
3 1.    

4  

p•     . 

yy.,    '
4 

y
yr

r .
y

y
t,

r

C'{       t1"" 7^

Aa`       .
e+."    .  " i      .

Tf ». v  

B; v

r. s  ,       ,• w   ,                 

t R   ';.      ' 

a
r ',

s      ,       
er"      m    ', ,'     :     v.'       '

0*`

s;-,`' ;- Jy  ,   ` F a      
g$ •.  

1F  i4r         
p' F     >

s;   i     :,   -#       " 1    :.
4:

x

y

y

s 

LYKi''              '  '"    '     '   -  1
N ;;'      T' s

2z    ,         '"      +,.
b.

A  ",. x  '    f°+'`  y  '

G'        
yse  ;    1  _   

S' k n f r..t ._     .. 5' t fx. ia       °  

r.   4'   
T

V      

r^
b

4     

i_.       e

1
J

4   

I   '

r'.I

r   

r. _
y9 s x

a• r.  .
r. 4

w i"'     a:'    .!

4
y:

tis

4

y   

0    -

k       

g:.:..

r

s

213



M.           

q

u
E e

4,
a

T        ;

E

r k=     `  `"
r`         

s
e Q,      

e    t

K

e   ,                  £ .
a,     -    

n. k f,.
E';

i        

t-'    e  , _       ,. r., ,  
aa......

e

s

EDUCATIONAL SESStONS

nets, Faciti ated [ iscussir r s, ad Sp ed Sess c ns
Educational sessions at the Annual Conference are offered in a variety of fonnats and
include professional development focused on leadership skills and workable solutions.
Targeting a broad audience, sessions concentrate on innovative, evidence- based, and

discussion- provoking trends, tools and best practices. Connecting professional experience

and collective understanding, these sessions aim to provide attendees the opportunity to
gain practical skiUs and useful resources. Session titles and descriptions will be posted at

www. cacities. org/ AC as they are confi rmed.

State Mandated Trainir

Training to meet state requirements on specific ethics laws and principles and
workplace harassment prevention, discrimination and retaliation will be offered.

Understanding Public Service Ethics Laws and Principles( AB 1234 Training) will
be available as a pre- conference workshop on Wednesday morning, and Sexual
Harassment Prevention Training for City Officials( AB 1661/ 1825 Training) will be
available Friday morning during the concurrent sessions.

League of California Cities t , 2019 Annual Conference& Expo

214



A

x_"'_ .., ._„-` .:    c      ._:

4

d 3 .. '. p r

R. $ 
4.    h      :,

R. 
tc

e`     

h`"a
a^,      x   ' ^ ii w

x`...    , e; k e, k:a u"1       ahnk` n,,.,,.,  .:

9

Located in the League Partners Village on
r;

the Expo floor, the Speaker Theater will

showcase presentations by League Partners.      

a  

a .        

Wednesday, October 16)

The annual City Clerks Workshop is

scheduled on Wednesday morning at
x

8: 30 a. m The workshop begins with a
y' `   '           30- minutedepartmentbusinessmeeting

followed byafour- hourworkshop.
Additional registration required; CMC/

MMC Advanced Education Point
t

a   *.   f accreditation will be available.

s

3

I C l:i l   i i

a
a,

a . '-    

The League City Attorneys' 
Department will present its

municipal law track at the Annual

Conference, providingMinimum              

Continuing Legai Education
MCLE) presentations for California      '` '  

d 

attorneys. Legalupdateswillbeoffer,,, u , i, tiu , r c areas:

General Municipal Law, Torts& Civil Rights, Labor& Employment, and Land Use

CEQA. Additional timely municipal law topics will be covered. The department' s

track will also include one hour of MCLE specialty credit. All conference attendees

are welcome to attend City Attorneys' Track presentations of interest.

League of Califc rnia Gties 5 ; 2019 Annual Conference&. xpo

215



e   Po      '"      .   <

O RGAN 1 ZAT I O 1 1

MEETtNGs

A1 1D SESSIONS
N.,,,,,,  ` ,

r'

irst 7ime At ndees

o     `   °=   ` ,         A special presentation to welcome
x°  ,

E  first- time attendees is scheduled for

k`   , '    Wednesday, October 16, at 12:45 p. m.
Joinustohearaboutourorganization

and how to get the most out of your

conference experience.

aa

Functioning as professiona( societies with educational and networking opportunities,
professional departments play an essential role in forming League policy and programs.
Discover what your colleagues are working on with the League by attending the
department business meetings at 11: 00 a. m. on Wednesday.

Policy Gomrnittees
Close to 350 city officials serve on the League' s

policy committees and add their collective
k           

expertise, wisdom and opinions to the policy
t. .._ ,

debatethat is the foundation of League policy.     
Recommendations from the policy committees           
are forwarded to the League Board of Directors or       `     

r       

y, ,.

General Assembly. Policy committees will meet on
Wednesday morning as needed to review Annual

F"       

3-

Conference Resolutions and other pending issues.          

a: %    °'°      Generat Resolutions

Committee
r.,

The General Resolutions Committee( GRC),

R      which comprises representatives from each

r division, department, policy committeei

and individuals appointed by the League
v+,    "      President, will meet on Thursday aftemoon

p      `-' to consider resolutions. Resolutions
y     .'

t&.a ,.

wi` s '

approved by the policy committees and/
r `        '      or GRC are next considered by the General

Assembly on Friday. See page 9 for more
information.

League of California Cities j L019 Annual Conference& Expo

216



4 y
Jd    ,^ v; h' r^ r

r
y

u

r;*   ,

z a 9   ...

f_   ':"
4

1°'   "   
F qO,'''

F'         }   
t    

s I+^   '+ i'     
4`  ' 

f• xsf

yy ' 

f      ` §`   '  5   Y E-   

t

l
t

S   . YF       , 

Pj       h

h

j

1 Fl st City Rec ption
1  ,     The City of Long eeach welcomes
f   '    delegates to the eague

F .

r.
a + e"_.   '.: 

t:
ofCalifornia CitiesAnnuai

Conference& Expo. Pleasejoin
w  :

us at the opening night host city
reception and enjoy a selection

of delicious hors d' oeuvres. The

reception will take place from

5: 00- 7: 00 p. m. on Wednesday,

October 16, at the Long Beach

Diversity Grt ups
Convention Center in the Expo

The Board of Directors has recognized five
HaIL A registration badge is

diversity groups: African- American Caucus;  
required to access the event.

Asian- Pacific Islander Caucus; Lesbian, Gay, CitiPAC—
Bisexual& Transgender, Queer Caucus; Latino

Leadership Reeeption
Caucus and Women' s Caucus. Sign up to join

In conjunction with host Keenan&
one or more of the League' s caucuses. Caucus

networking events at the Annual Conference are

ASSOCiat25, CitIPAC Will pfe5211t it5

open to all attendees.       
Leadership Reception immediately
following the host city reception.

Regianat Divisions Join conference attendees for

Regional Divisions function as the League' s
this wonderful event in support of

grassroots advocacy teams. Divisions are staffed CitiPAC, featuring food, beverages

locally by regional public affairs managers to
and entertainment.

support League goals. Contact your regional

manager( www. cacities. org regionalmanagers)

for more information about division networking
events duringthe conference. Additional fees

may apply.

League of California Cities 2019 Annual Conference& Expo

217



e       

je

6:      

l

Y 5 V       

y      F      -   ANNUAL
x,      

j '

CONFERENCE

2;`      RES( JLUTI4N S   
a  ,      

ROCESS

a         

f m,     ''

n_.     

a           i

4

i   
i

i  
E" r  k.;'          . fi. y r,;.''Y

w t.

e

a`'   IF
im y a,.++.."'. A i'      

3 <     

t r

x 

i

Y {  

a1Mi!. '   

d... byi'.

2
d Ukrhau-.

i;          Policy development is a key part of

p  .
z,        the eague' s legislative effectiveness.

The League' s Annua( Conference

r.     resolutions process is one way that

ciry officiafs can directly participaCe
in the development of League policy.

Any elected or appointed city official,
s.    s  .

individualcity, division, deparCment,

policy committee, or the Board of
5

Directors may submit a resolution for
consideration at the conference. For

complete information on the process

ti            a and how to submit a resolution, visiC

www. cacities. o[ reso( utions.

x.  

League of Californla Cities 8     2019 Annual Confarenc& E: x o

r

218



a, 

t

D

a''    > 

f
x       

r„  

4

F,   

z..  . x;#,  z

k         

r

a"`' "„ '       ,..       ''       

a4 w.d";   
s. 4 ; u

ti 2        
I

1 ' '

r d r,'`'   

I
I

f+r_.,     .     
Y'..       

t    .—•    -"    ,':

m.,.:.. u` i._a. Y...   .'' a, A, o-'*`      

2019 RESOLUTIONS CALENDAR

AND DEADLI [ 1ES

c f

Friday, July 12: Deadline for submitting appointments to the General Resolutions
Committee.

Saturday, August 17, Midnight: Deadline for submitting resofutions to the League office
by regular mail, email orfax.

Friday, August 30: Resolutions distributed to city officials and posted on the League
website.

A k$'! . C> t1" t' t1C8

Wednesday, October 16, 9: 00— 11: 00 a. m.: Policy committees meet to review
resolutions and make recommendations to the General Resolutions Committee on

resolutions assigned to each committee.

Thursday, October 17, 12: 30 p. m.: Deadline to submit signatures to qualify a
petitioned resolution.

Thursday, Oetober 17, 1: 00 p. m.: General Resolutions Committee meets to consider
and make recommendations on resolutions.

Friday, October 18, 12: 30 p. m.: Consideration of resolutions by cities in the General
Assembly at the Annual Business Meeting.( oting Delegates must be regrstered for the

conference and muststay until condusion of voting. They may register for Friday only.)

League of California Cities 9 ; 2019 Annual Conference& Expo

219



EXHIBITOR LISTING   :;; ti; .,,

Bold are League Partners

ADA Consultant Services Department of Housing and Community
AED Total Solution Development

Alfiance Resource Consulting Diehl Metering LLC
Allied Powers LLC Diesel Technology Forum
Ameresco DLR Group

American Ramp Company DRC Emergency Services,/ SLS
Amgen Tour of California Earth Systems

ANP lighting eCivis

Architerra Design Group ECS/ Gold Crew

Asphalt Zipper, Inc.       EdgeSoft, Inc.

Avenu Insights& Analytics( MuniServices) ENGIE Services U. S.

Best Best& Krieger Ennis- Flint

Blais& Associates, Inc.    Enterprise Fleet Management

Blount Intemational Fieldman, Rolapp& Associates, Inc.

Bob Murray& Associates First Capitol

Burke, Williams& Sorensen ForeFront Power

California Association of Code Enforcement George Hills

Officers GHD

California Association of Public Information Gordian

Officials GovHR USA

Califomia Association of Public Procurement GovPayNet
Officials

Granicus
Califomia Building Officials( CALBO) Graphic Solutions
California Consulting, Inc.       

Greenfields Outdoor Fitness
California Department of General Services

HAI, Hirsch& Associates Inc.
Californla High- Speed Rail Authoriry Hapco
California Housing FinanceAgency( CaIHFA)

HB Staffing
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority HdL Companies
California State University San Bernardino

Holman Capital Corporation
CentralSquare Technologies

HR Green, Inc.
Charles Abbott Associates, Inc.( CAA)     

IES/ SiteloglQ
Citrus Pest and Disease Prevention Program

In God We Trust, Inc.
CleanStreet

INFRAMARK
Climatec LLC

IntelligentTraffic Equipment MarketingLtd.
CSG Consultants

Interwest Consulting Group
Dapeer, Rosenblit& Litvak, LLP

1. M. Equipment Company
Dave BangAssociates, Inc.

Johnson Controls

Davey Resource Group, Inc.
Jones& Mayer

David Taussig& Associates
JustServe

Kaiser Permanente

Keenan& Associates
s

Keyser Marston Associates, Inc.

KOMPAN Playgrounds

Kosmont Companies

Learn4Life

LECET Southwest

Library Systems& Services

x          Liebert Cassidy Whitmore

i   r LINC Housing

y '     Lincoln Financial Group

Mattress Recycling Council
r.  

P

v ,         MeyersNave

MGO
r.._       a_       

LeG u r i afi i u t ie5 Q 2019. 1nrr fal Confcir nce& E po

220



t   k
I

q    '           

y+       3'
K d'      

wy°'      
w'      

l  ..

y
F    

r   .°       a `

4- s
S

p

a   

X..m.,,

j,    
s.  

r r      _,      

ue f tt"" f
f

As#     ,   r4 i
y;

y J y       
F <       N.

r      "     ..   .

ti 3.

4,       _
r

1"a,
ar r      (  

o    ,     
t ^ '    

1 ,  ` .   ,        iT` a„'  
si. 1 ! ra

s rr'

wd   '     

s

a,    

mv

y+ h;;      
j"_  

I      •    

s'  —_
r      ,   

s"`.

k

m

P. li l  ,  , i  . i xlio„ ii   u  ..

MNS Engineers SDI Presence LLC

Municibid Securlry Lines US
Navio International SERVPRO

NLC Service Line Warranty Program Siemens Energy
Northern California Carpenters Regional Silver& Wright LLP

Couneil Sloan Sakai Yeung& Wong LLP
NVS Smart Cities Prevail

Omega II Fence Systems SmartWatt

Optimum Seismic Inc.    SolarMax LED

Otto Environmental Systems North America, Inc.    Stalker Radar

PARS State Water Resources Control Board

PARSAC Study. com
PERC Water Corporation Superior Tank Solutions

PetData SwihComply US OpCo Inc.
PFM Financial Advisors LLC SyTech Solutions

Pi er Jafiray& Co.       TAPCO

PowerFlare( PF Distribution Center, Inc.)   TBWB Strategies

Powersmiths International Corp.  The Code Group, Inc., dba VCA Code
Precision Concrete Cutting The Pun Group, LLP
Public Restroom Company The San Diego Foundation

Radarsign, LLC TNT Fireworks

Ral h Andersen& Associates Toyota Motor North Amcrica

Renne Public Law Group Trane Energy Solutions
Republic Services Transtech Engineers, Inc.

Richards Watson Gershon Troy& Banks
RICKMAR Products LLC Vanir Construction Management, Inc.

Hi 6 ViewPoint Cloud

RJM Design Group, Inc.   Wagners CFT LLC

RKA Consulting Group WEH Technologies Inc.

SA RECYCLING LLC WeUs Fargo Bank

SAFEbuilt, LLC West Coast Arborists, Inc.

SafetyStepTD Willdan

Schaefer Systems Inte na[ ional William Avery& Associates, Inc.
Schneider Electric Ygrene

Lea; ue ot Californla Cities 201911nnu, 31 Conferenaa& F.x o

221



REGISTRATION INFORMATION
Pre- Registration Deadline: Octobc .       

After this date, please register onsi' e

Confer r ee Loca# ia    

The 2019 Annual Conferencc Expo will bc ncl l t i e   „   ^' „

Long Beach Convention Center, located downto.      
300 East Ocean Boulevard. All sessions will be held<, 

the convention cenCer unfess otherwise noted.       

Full Registration Includes:     

Admission to Expo and education sessions( unless otherwise indicated)

Wednesday host city reception; Thursday grab- and- go breakfast; Thursday lunch
with exhibitors; Friday closing luncheon

Admission to CitiPAC and Diversity Caucus Receptions

Electronic access to all program materials

Online Registration( credit card): Visit www.cacities. org/ AC

Mail- in Registration( pay by check): Contact mdunnC cacities. org to request a
registration form.

NOTE: Conference Registration is required to attend all conference activities including
Dep rtment and Division meetings and the General Assembly. Sharing of registration
is arohibited.

l t'°; s s"  . c:e i iStt°<, , . a,..

City Delegate

Member Ciry
m,    

550 600

Non- MemberCit k" '' yy 1550 1600

Public Official y°,,"      

StateJCounty/ Public Officiaf 625 675

AU Others 725     ,  ' , a``     $ 775

r-: r egistration Fees

Ecarlv h d,, rc s rre not available for one- day registration

City Delegate

Member City 325

Non- Member City zy, K.      51325

Public Official

State/ County/ PublicOfficial j, s:     $ 375

AU Others 425

League of Califa nia Cities 12 2019 Annual Conferenw& Expo

222



Id 3" iS C" I i"i C- pE"i5 jnon- refundab( e)

City lerks Workshop( includes lunch)—$ 150 member cities,$ 300 non- member cities

Guest Registration—$ 125

The guest rate is restricted to those who are not ciry/ public officials, are not relaCed to any

Partner/ Expo company, and would have no professional reason to attend for learning or
business. Rate includes admission to the Expo and receptions only. Session seats
are reserved for conference registrants. There is no refund for the cancellation of a guest

registration. It is not advisable to use city funds to register a guest.

Questions or special needs? Contact our conference registrar at

mdunnCa cacities. org before Tuesday, September 24.

F€ E' 48i1 PO ICy+
Advance registrants unable to attend will receive a refund of rate paid, minus a$ 75

proeessing eharge, only when a written request is submitted to the Le gue nf Californi
Cities, Conference Registration, 1400 K Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814 or

mdunn? cacities. org and received on or before Tuesday, September 24. Refunds

will not be available after this date. If you are unable to attend, you may substitute a
coUeague for your entire registration.

HOTEL I N FORMATION

A limited amount of hotel rooms

are available at reduced rates

for registered attendees and

exhibitors atthe 2019 Annual y

Conference& Expo. Reserve

yyourhotelnightswhilespace
z:       

is available. The discounted z    

s,  

s       w e.; .    r, r:hotel rate cut- off is Tuesday,       „_      z„, p

s      ^,,,„,   a  r a

September 24. Hotels are

subj@ct to sell out prior to the

d adlin— reserve early!    
yi x X3'

STEP ONE:( Register for the      "`  ;

Conference)       
rc

x'""  a 

Registration can be con pleted

at wtvw. cacities_ o 1C.    

STEP TWO:( Book hotel room)

After your registration For the conference is received and processed, a confirmation

emaif will be sent containingthe links for housing reservations. Phone reservations will
not be accepted.

League of California Cities 1 3 2019 Annual Conference& Expo

223



LEAGUE
or- cnuFoaNin

GITIES
1400 K Street, Suite 400

Sacramentq GA 95814

www. cacities. org/ AC

a      
E' `.                 ,,—

E

g.     S . a', 

8
Y:.       

iY W

r    :a'  L,      '   I m r;

E'      ,

r

4                  
va   

M.. :        t    .. 4  

a

i n.   .
r    ,;      . .      , 

224



A    IVIENT   
OP CALII QRNIA

H
ITIES

Annual Conference Voting Procedures

1. One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to
League policy.

2. Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Annual Conference, each city
council may designate a voting delegate and up to two alternates; these individuals are
identified on the Voting Delegate Form provided to the League Credentials Committee.

3. I egistering with the Credentials Commfttee. The voting delegate, or alternates; may
pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in the conference registration
area. Voting delegates and alternates must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they
will receive a special sticker on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at
the Business Meeting.

4. Signing Initiated Resolution Petitions.  Only those individuals who are voting delegates
or alternates), and who have picked up their city' s voting card by providing a signature to

the Credentials Committee at the Voting Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a
resolution.

5.       Voting. To cast the city' s vote, a city official must have in his or her possession the city' s
voting card and be registered with the Credentials Committee. The voting card may be
transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but may not be transferred to
another city official who is neither a voting delegate or alternate.

6. Voting Area at Business Meeting. At the Business Meeting, individuals with a voting card
will sit in a designated area. Admission will be limited to those individuals with a special

sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate or alternate.

7. Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the Credentials Corrunittee will deternline the
validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of a city official to.vote at the
Business Meeting.

o       •  .  .  : :  

225



o EAGUE

CITIES cITY:

I

2019 ANNUAL CONFERENCE

VOTING DELEGATE/ ALTERNATE FORM

Please complete this form and return it to the League office by Friday; October 4, 2019. Forms not

sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk located in the Annual
Conference Registration Area. Your city council may designate one votin dele ate and up to two
alternates.    

In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting( General Assembly), voting delegates and alternates must be
designated by your city council. Please attach the council resolution as proof of designation. As an alternative,
the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the designation reflects the action taken by the
council.

Please note: Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the Annual Business Meeting.
Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals( voting delegates and alternates) who are

identified with a special sticker on their conference badge. This sticker can be obtained only at the Voting

Delegate Desk.

1. VOTING DELEGATE

Name:

Title:

2. VOTING DELEGATE- ALTERNATE 3. VOTING DELEGATE- ALTERNATE

Name:     Name:

Title:       Title:

PLEASE ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERIVATES.

OR

ATTEST: I affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to designate the

voting delegate and alternate( s).

Name:    Email

Mayor or City Clerk Date Phone

circle one) signature)

Please complete and return bV Fridav, October 4, 2019

League of California Cities FAX: ( 916) 658- 8240 '

ATTN:  Darla Yacub E- mail: dyacub@cacities. org

1400 K Street, 
4th Floor 916) 658- 8254

Sacramento, CA 95814

226



i- ---  -      -

I

Item 6. 1. 1 

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
L

AUGUST 12, 2019 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Appointment of Three     ( 3)     Youth Advisory
Commission Members With Terms Expiring May 31,
2020

YOUTH ADVISORY COMMISSION — LMC CHAPTER 2. 20

The commission currently has four ( 4)  available vacancies;  three ( 3)  applications

were received. Staff will continue to recruit until all vacancies are filled.

Former ;      .   `'       `    Date of Reappoin, tment       ,  '    Term

Commissioner( s); Appointment Date. , >       Expiration

Date  .     ,

Junior Dhaliwal 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Micaela Estavillo 6/ li/18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Andrea Solis 6/ 11/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

Angelica Gomez 8/ 13/ 18 n/ a 5/ 31/ 19

APPLICANTS FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.       Phil Tyalla

2.       Navni Saini

3.      Taurus Kohn

227



COMNIISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applying for: _     ,. l      td I,; S E; u     ' CLN h;<< o ti

Saecial Requirements:      

Ynuth Advisory Corremissiu: Must be a I.athrop resident between I3 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
Senior tidvisory Ca uitissio e: Must be 50 years of age or ovev and a resistered voter lo serve on this commission.
Pla r ri lg and Parks& Recreatiou Conrnlusio ts: Must 6e a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve an this commission.

RECEjVED
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

M 4 zo 9

Name:   f til      ! t.(.,:      L"'' Y CLERK

Address• City:       c,- l nr r  Zip:    l S

Telephone( home)   Telephone{ work)

Telephone( cell)      Telephone( other)

Email:   Resident of the City of Lathrop:     CJ years

Do you ha e Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yesll ' No

I

Buckground Inform tion:

Are you related to a current City Employee?  d

If yes, give name and relationship

Employment/ Volunteer Information:

Orga rfzation Da e

Locatlon Postrlo, f(s)

Responsibilitieslaccomplishments:

Orga ei= adion Date

Location Aosrtiori( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:

228



Community Activities that you have been invoIved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

v J  Gt?' r! 9r: e

14' nme ojOrga ri atio    Positron RespollsiBilities Dates

Nanie ojO ga ri ation Positior:, fRerpa sibililies/ ACc'on plishn e tls Dares

Special A vards or Recognitions you have reeeived:

I _- _,< ` W'      

Educational Information:

i.fc5 i- 1 ---..._- 5?       r  
ro, c,'  2

Ediicationa! nstit ilion Degre Diploma Field Year

Edttcalionallrrsliltrlio r Degree/ Diplonia ield Year

Additional Infbrmation ( Please pro, ide nny other inforntntion tit hicli yoir feel iuoulrf be usejrl to Ihe Citv Cottnci! in
ret ietiving you npplication.)

Please sig,: ar: d dare you applicatio r aird sirbr eit ta the Office of' tlr City Cdeph at the address belo v..

3, 1 . l
Signature Date

n , 17, 1;
ParenUGuardian Sigt ature( Required jor Youth Advisory Cartdidales wtly)

City Clerk
City of Lathro

390 To vne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

229



COMMISSIONICOMNIITTEE APPLICATION

Applying for: V      1 f l

Snccial Reqpiremen,;

arr h AdvJsary Cammission: Must be a Lathrop residrnt he wecn i3 to 18 years af ase to senre on this commissinn
Sei iot Rdvixnr+ Cooipiiutos: Mast be SO ycars of agc or ovcr and a resistered voier lo serve on this commission.
P1ainLr cad Purks& Rccreadon Conimissionr. Must bc a Lathrop residrnt and a regisiercd voter to ser, ppd ip

f C rC

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWlNC INFORMATION:
u 2 Za 9

Name:       I I I' 11 CITY CLERK

Address•   Ciry:       Zip:

Telephone( home) Tcicphane( work)

Telephone( ceil)   Te[ ephone( other)

Email Resident of the City of Lathrop:^ years

Dv you havs Transportation to attend the Commission meetings und Functions?   YcsE NoCI

Backgraund I formation:

Arc you releted to a currcnt City Employee?    1/,

If yes, give name and re ationship      '

EmploymentNolunteer Information:

t4 I Uh    . ik4     T YIOIe Cur, i-
O a1 i=alron Dafe

I r,   C       N/ A
c. Aero,   lo» S 

Responsibil"sties/ accomplishments;      t ll/ 1 i'l,r L# LI' I   w i I Q

Y U    .

h L; n i aUl -  Presen t
Or ani_alroa Dete

a f nruo,         N/ A
Locarloit Posiria( s)

esponsibilitieslaccomplishments: i- 1       (( 1 f    h          S( rl' 1 rl
1 e u[       s c du .    

230



i

Community Activities that you have been inv lved with( feel free to Alt ch additionn! pages)

Lf- I S Li n1  Crtw N A 2 1  -  l c en f
Ncnie ofOrgaui: alion Posi1 on/ Ra pal sibilities Da1ec

S uc,l u   S I h Tc+m 4e       . 00 i f c h e c Y e r.
Nmr, e ojOrgani_atiolr PosJllar/ R: xpo sibili Fes/ econrpllslmreuts Da1rr

Special Awurds nr Recognitions you ave rece ved: l.+ S          t 1 T 1 f     t 1( 1' t f 
U CY 1        CS ci P i r dn U f)

a I s L!-! S r l e aJketh all  018

Educational Information:

lafhrU M       fchUaf Ju nl ur oa
Ed rcvrrorra! tsliunian QegrneJDrplonia Fielui Year

OSSG d C EIeY1 nfd U UUy    ZU17
EJricatio rat I utilirliorr DebreeJDipinn a Fielrl Year

Atfditional In!'ormation( Please proi ide nny otlier inforniation ivhich yoir feel u vtild be crseJtr! ra the Ciry Cotrnci! irr
re ving you applicario».) 

f
u It o Grnld cholar

loh I U Cr in J a

5     ( nPf 1 k      ri c    

al v a rah e rr a
U

hr-_ rnUv.

Pleasc sign and datc you application aud subn il tv tlr Offrce af tlte City Clerk a[ the address bclorv..

iui/  .' l.i(%'    117/ 1 1 q
Sig aturc Datc'

I`?a17     lil

ParrndGuardian Signuturc( Regsfredjor Yoirdi. lrh isary Ca fdidares onlv)

City Clerk
City of Lathrap

390 Towne Centrc Drive

Luthrop, CA 45330

231



CUMMISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applyingfor•   P Y1     c', ts

Special Rcauirements:

Ynrrllr Advisary Comnlissinrr: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to l8 years of a; e to serve on this commission
Se iiorAtivisor Caianissio r: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this cornmission.
Plm ni rg and Parks& Recrerrtfon Cn tr rissrons: Must be a l.Athrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT R TYP THE FOLLOWING INFORMA EIVED

1,       UL 2 9 2019
Name: _( U US i` ld

CtTY CL,,
Address:   City:       Zip:     S ` 3C)

Telephone ( home)      Telephone( work)

Telephone ( cell) Telephone ( other) 

Email:       Resident of the City of Lathrop:       years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Ycs   No

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee?    U (- C..

lf yes, ive name and relationship

EmploymentNolunteer Information:      

G t. 5    a  Co C l2 C.q 120 
Organi= aliar Da( e

e~f'h o   ;    {. q T3ea u- u 1   ;-- i  f,,,a., 4
LocalioiT Posilion( s}

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:_  (.' Ge n    -- n-2 S'a 1'?   (,, OGfi Q 1) tN     11iP S

C G rz c4v P 1 R2e     I ti n l   f̀-,e e;-    :

Orga ri. alipr       DGIE'

Lacaliolr Posilioli( s}

Responsihilitieslaccomplishments:   

232



Communily Activities that yoa have been involved with( feel free ko attach additional pages)

Name ojOrgani atian 1' nsifiat/ Responsrbililres Da1es

NameofOrgani= ario t Po.ri iol/ Resparsibilrties' Accourplisluirenls Dales

Special Awards or Recognitions you have received:

Educational Infarmation:

Edurationa! lnsti ta ior   Degree/ Diplanra Field eu•

Educaliona! htslilulron Degree/ Diplonta Field ear

Additiat al Information ( Please proride nrry otlrer info• ura roit tii hiclr} ou feel tivould be usefiil ro tlte Cit} CO! l17CfI J1I
reti ietiri rg j oir applicatio.)

Plerrse sigrt a id date yoaa applicnti r n ed srrbnrit to dlle Offrce nf tlte City Clerk rt tlre nddress beloiv..

Signature Qate

ParendGuardian Signature( Reqirired for }'oirrh Adt isor} Calulidales o r!)

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Torvne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

233



234


	2019-08-12 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2019-08-12 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting of July 8, 2019
	2019-08-12 Item 4.3 Uncollectible Utility and Miscellaneous Customer Accounts
	2019-08-12 Item 4.4 Creation of Job Description for an Administrative Assistant III Position
	2019-08-12 Item 4.5 Approve Policy for Development Impact Fees and Municipal Code Relating to Accesssory Dwellling Units to Conform to State Law
	2019-08-12 Item 4.6 Ratify Purchase of a Telescopic Handler
	2019-08-12 Item 4.7 Approve Professional Services Agreements for Right-Of-Way Consulting Services
	2019-08-12 Item 4.8 Reinstate Master Agreement and Approve Task Order No. 7 with Interwest Consulting Group
	2019-08-12 Item 4.9 Acceptance of Public ROW and PUE Dedications Located at 14266 Avon Avenue
	2019-08-12 Item 4.10 Approve Task Order No.3 to the Master Consultant Agreement with Vali Cooper & Associates
	2019-08-12 Item 5.1 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Amendment to Title 2, Chapter 2.36 and Title 3, Chapter 3.30
	2019-08-12 Item 5.2 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Amendment to TItle 3, Chapter 3.32, Section 3.32.150
	2019-08-12 Item 5.3 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Adoption of LMFD Fire Facilities Fees Study
	2019-08-12 Item 5.4 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Municpal Code Text Amendment No. TA-19-78
	2019-08-12 Item 5.5 Appointment of Voting Delegate for 2019 Leaue of California Cities Annual Conference
	2019-08-12 Item 6.1.1 Appointment of Three (3) Members to the Youth Advisory Commission with Terms Expiring May 31, 2020



